City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting
AGENDA

o N =1 : 2
E] RIOTEULIN ;]

Monday, June 9, 2014

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages
1. Call to Order
This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.
2.  Confirmation of Minutes 4-11
Regular PM Meeting - May 26, 2014
3. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws
3.1 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0014 - 890 Mayfair Avenue, Henry & Ingrin 12 - 28
Jenzen
The purpose of the application is to consider a rezoning to add the ‘c’
designation to the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone of the subject property in
order to convert an existing accessory building into a carriage house.
3.1.1 Bylaw No. 10972 (Z14-0014) - 890 Mayfair Road, Henry & Ingrid 29 - 29
Jenzen
To give Bylaw No. 10972 first reading.
3.2 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0015 - 2248 Abbott Street, Susan Bennett 30 - 45
The purpose of the application is to consider a rezoning from RU1 — Large Lot
Housing zone to the RU6 — Two Dwelling Housing which would allow a duplex
to be built on the subject property.
3.2.1 Bylaw No. 10973 (Z14-0015) - 2248 Abbott Street, Susan Bennett 46 - 46
To give Bylaw No. 10973 first reading.
3.3 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0003 and 47 - 62



Rezoning Application No. Z13-0004 - 1800 Crosby Road, DRS Ventures Ltd.

The applicant is proposing to amend the future land use and zoning to
accommodate a 12 lot development on a portion of the subject property in
the Glenmore area.

3.3.1 Bylaw No. 10960 (OCP13-0003) - 1800 Crosby Road, DRS Ventures Ltd. 63 - 64

To amend Bylaw No. 10960 at first reading.

3.3.2 Bylaw No. 10961 (Z13-0004) - 1800 Crosby Road, DRS Ventures Ltd. 65 - 66

To amend Bylaw No. 10961 at first reading.

3.4  Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A13-0012 - 1740-1760 KLO 67 - 93
Road, Brenda & William Berard

The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission
(ALC) for a “Subdivision of agricultural land reserve” under Section 21(2) of the
Agricultural Land Commission Act. The subdivision is more specifically a
“Homesite Severance” request as per Policy #11 — Homesite Severance on
ALR Lands, and the addition of a park for ecological preservation.

3.5 Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0004 - 4410 Wallace Hill 94 - 114
Road, Blair & Kelly Wilson

To obtain approval from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section
20(3) of the ALC Act for a “non-farm use” within the Agricultural Land Reserve
(ALR) to permit the activity of an apple vodka distillery and tasting room to
complement their apple orchard.

Bylaws for Adoption (Development Related)

4.1 Bylaw No. 10946 (Z14-0011) - 412 Christleton Avenue, David & Pamel Watland 115 - 115

To adopt Bylaw No. 10946 in order to rezone the subject property fromthe
RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c - Large Lot Housing with Carriage
House zone.

Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 City Park Water Concession 116 - 257

To obtain Council support to enter into a three (3) year License of Occupation,
with two (2) one year (1) renewal periods (attached as Schedule A), for a City
Park non-motorized water activity concession with Kelowna Wibit.

5.2  Mill Street Road Closure 258 - 260

To transfer a portion of excess City roadway to Westcorp Holyrood
Developments Ltd. and 1324632 Alberta Incorporated (collectively, the



5.3

“Purchaser”) to be consolidated with their property for the construction of a
hotel.

5.2.1 Bylaw No. 10971 - Road Closure Bylaw, Portion of Road adjacent to
235 Queensway

To give Bylaw No. 10971 first, second and third readings.

Rescind Loan Authorization Bylaw No 10582 - Electrical System Upgrades

To rescind Bylaw No. 10582 Loan Authorization Bylaw for the Electrical System
Upgrades as it is no longer required.

5.3.1 Bylaw No. 10908 - A Bylaw to Rescind Loan Authorization Bylaw No.
10582

To give Bylaw No. 10908 first, second and third readings.

Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

6.1

6.2

Bylaw No. 10958 - Road Closure Bylaw, Portion of Bird Road

Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected
by the proposed Road Closure to come forward.

To adopt Bylaw No. 10958 in order to authorize the City to permanently close
and remove the highway dedication of a portion of highway on Bird Place.

Bylaw No. 10966 - 784 Elliot Avenue, Heritage Building Property Tax
Exemption Bylaw

To adopt Bylaw No. 10966 in order to exempt eligible heritage property from
taxation.

Mayor and Councillor Items

Termination

261 - 262

263 - 264

265 - 265

266 - 267

268 - 274



Date:
Location:

Members Present

Members Absent

Staff Present

1. Call to Order

D e A
B S

flu“m

City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting
Minutes

Monday, May 26, 2014
Council Chamber
City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Mayor Walter Gray*, Councillors Colin Basran, Andre Blanleil,
Maxine DeHart, Gail Given, Mohini Singh, Luke Stack* and Gerry
Zimmermann

Councillor Robert Hobson

City Manager, Ron Mattiussi*; Acting City Manager, Doug
Gilchrist*; City Clerk, Stephen Fleming; Park & Building Planning
Manager, Terry Barton*; Active Living & Culture Divisional
Director, Jim Gabriel*; RCMP Superintendent Nick Romanchuk®,
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services Manager, Todd
Cashin®; Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Planner, Melanie
Steppuhn*; Urban Planning Manager, Ryan Smith*; Long Range
Policy Planning Manager, Gary Stephen®; Financial Services
Manager, Keith Grayston*; Financial Services Director, Genelle
Davidson*; Regional Planning Manager, Rafael Villarreal®;
Accountant, Matt Friesen*; Capital Assets & Investments Manager,
Joel Shaw*; Sustainability Coordinator, Tracy Guidi*; and Council
Recording Secretary, Arlene McClelland

Mayor Gray called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m.

Mayor Gray advised that the meeting is open to the public and all representations to

Council form part of the public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and
recorded by CastaNet and a delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor DeHart

R355/14/05/26 THAT the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 12, 2014 be

confirmed as circulated.

Carried



3. Public in Attendance

3.1. Presentation of PIBC Award, re: 2014 Gold Award, Award of Excellence

Terry Barton, Park & Building Planning Manager
Presented Council with the PIBC's 2014 Gold Award of Excellence in Planning Practice in
recognition of the Bernard Avenue Revitalization Project.

3.2. Cory Krist, General Manager, H20 Adventure & Fitness Centre, re: Annual
Report

Jim Gabriel, Active Living & Culture Divisional Director
Introduced Cory Krist, General Manager, H20 Adventure & Fitness Centre

Cory Krist, General Manager, H20 Adventure & Fitness Centre
Displayed a Power Point Presentation of the Annual Report.
Responded to questions from Council.

The City Manager joined the meeting at 1:40 p.m.

3.3. Richard Rosenthal, Chief Civilian Director, Independent Investigations Office
of BC

Richard Rosenthal, Chief Civilian Director
Displayed a Power Point Presentation and responded to questions from Council.

The City Manager departed the meeting at 2:22 p.m.
Acting City Manager, Doug Gilchrist joined the meeting at 2:27 p.m.

3.4. Superintendent Romanchuk, re: Policing Report
Superintendent Romanchuk
Introduced Gord Stewart as Operations Inspector.
Displayed a Power Point Presentation and responded to questions from Council.
4. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

4.1. Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0002 - 1980, 1982-
1984, 2048 and (N of) Union Road, Union Road Properties Ltd. et al

Councillor Stack declared a conflict of interest as the Society of Hope owns substantial
properties across from the subject property and left the meeting at 3:01 p.m.

Staff:
Displayed a Power Point Presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Mayor invited the Applicant or Applicant's Representative to come forward.

Bob Elliot, Co-owner
Displayed a Power Point Presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Grant Maddock, Protech Consulting Ltd.
Responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Zimmermann

R356/14/05/26 THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0002 for
Lot A, Section 4 TWP 23 ODYD Plan KAP75150; Lot B Section 4, TWP 23, ODYD Plan KAP
75150; Lot 12 Block 5 Section 4 TWP 23 ODYD Plan 896 Except Plans H8323 and




H14719; and that part of Lot 12 Block 5 Section 4 TWP 23 ODYD Plan 896 shown
outlined in green on Plan H8323 (PID 025-283-995); that part of Lot 12 Block 5 Section
4 TWP 23 ODYD Plan 896 shown as parcel 12 on Plan H8323 (PID 025-283-979), located
at 1982-1984 Union Road, 1980 Union Road, 2048 Union Road, and (N of) Union Road
for exclusion, pursuant to Section 30(1) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act, NOT
be supported by Municipal Council;

AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration.

Defeated
Mayor Gray, Councillors, Blanleil, Basran, Given, DeHart and Zimmermann - Opposed

Moved By Councillor Zimmermann/Seconded By Councillor Basran

R357/14/05/26 THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0002 for
part of Lot 12 Block 5 Section 4 TWP 23 ODYD Plan 896 Except Plans H8323 and
H14719; and that part of Lot 12 Block 5 Section 4 TWP 23 ODYD Plan 896 shown
outlined in green on Plan H8323 (PID 025-283-995); that part of Lot 12 Block 5 Section
4 TWP 23 ODYD Plan 896 shown as parcel 12 on Plan H8323 (PID 025-283-979), located
at part of 2048 Union Road, and 2 parcels (N of) of Union Road, in accordance with the
City of Kelowna Future Land Use Plan and Map 2 - Permanent Growth Boundary shown
in grey, for exclusion, pursuant to Section 30(1) of the Agricultural Land Commission
Act, be supported by Municipal Council;

AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration.

Carried
Councillor Singh - Opposed

Councillor Stack returned to the meeting at 3:56 p.m.

Mayor Gray stepped out of the meeting at 3:56 p.m.
Deputy Mayor Stack resided over the meeting at 3:56 p.m.

4.2. Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP14-0006 &
Rezoning Application No. Z14-0008 - 560 & 562 McKay Avenue, 0781540 BC
Ltd.

Staff:
Displayed a Power Point Presentation and responded to questions from Council.
Mayor Gray returned to the meeting at 3:59 p.m. and resumed the Chair.

Moved By Councillor Basran/Seconded By Councillor Given

R358/14/05/26 THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0006 to
amend Map 4.1 of the Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by
changing the Future Land Use designation of Lot 12, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769,
located at 560 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC; Lot 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769,
located at 582 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC; and the portion of McKay Avenue to be
closed adjacent to Lots 12 and 13, from the MRM - Multiple Unit Residential (Medium
Density) designation to the MXR - Mixed Use (Residential/ Commercial) designation, as
shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated
May 9, 2014, be considered by Council;

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0008 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 12, District Lot 14, ODYD,



Moved

Plan 3769, located at 560 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC; Lot 13, District Lot 14, ODYD,
Plan 3769, located at 582 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC; and the portion of McKay
Avenue to be closed adjacent to Lots 12 and 13, from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing
zone to the C4 - Urban Centre Commercial zone, as shown on Map “B” attached to the
Reportl of the Urban Planning Department dated May 9, 2014, be considered by
Council;

AND THAT Council considers the APC public process under OCP07-0032 and Z07-0093 to
be appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government
Act, as outlined in the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated May 9, 2014,

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone
Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
completion of a Purchase/Sale Agreement with the City, finalization of the road
closure adjacent to Lots 12 & 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769 (560 & 582 McKay
Avenue), and registration of the public access Right-of-Way agreement, to the
satisfaction of the City of Kelowna;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
dedication of a 0.75 m widening of the north lane;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
registration of a plan of subdivision to consolidated the properties into one title;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
registration of an agreement in the Land Titles Office, to the satisfaction of the City of
Kelowna, securing the provision of six (6) required parking spaces on the property at
561 & 583 McKay Avenue upon its redevelopment;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Parks & Public Places Branch and Development Engineering
Branch, as attached to the Report of the Urban Planning Department dated May 9,
2014, being completed to its satisfaction;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction
with Council’s consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance
Permit for the subject properties; ‘

AND FURTHER THAT Bylaw No. 10246 and Bylaw No. 10245, for Rezoning Application
Z07-0093 and for OCP Amendment Application OCP07-0032 respectively, be forwarded
for rescindment consideration, and the files be closed.

Carried

4.2.1. Bylaw No. 10245 (OCP07-0032) - 560, 561, 582 & 583 McKay
Avenue, 0781540 BC Ltd.

By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R359/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10245 be rescinded at third reading and the file be
closed.

Carried



4.2.2. Bylaw No. 10246 (Z07-0093) - 560, 561, 582 & 583 McKay Avenue,
0781540 BC Ltd.

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Given

R360/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10246 be rescinded at third reading and the file be
closed.

Carried

4.2.3. Bylaw No. 10968 (OCP14-0006) - 560 & 582 McKay Avenue, 0781540
BC Ltd.

Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor Stack

R361/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10968 be read a first time;

AND THAT the bylaw has been considered in conjuntion with the City's Financial Plan
and Waste Management Plan.

Carried

4.2.4. Bylaw No. 10969 (214-0008) - 560 & 582 McKay Avenue, 0781540 BC
Ltd.

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Given

R362/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10969 be read a first time.

Carried

9. Bylaws for Adoption (Development Related)

5.1. Bylaw No. 10917 (TA14-0002) - Medical Marihuana Production Facilities -
Industrial Zones

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Given

R363/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10917 be adopted.

Carried

5.2. Bylaw No. 10920 - Medical Marihuana Producer Business Licence and
Regulation Bylaw

Moved By Councillor Basran/Seconded By Councillor Blanleil

R364/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10920 be adopted.

Carried

5.3. Bylaw No. 10921 - Amendment No. 8 to Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw
No. 10475

Moved By Councillor Blanleil/Seconded By Councillor Basran

R365/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10921 be adopted.

Carried



5.4. Bylaw No. 10944 (TA14-0006) - Medical Marihuana Production Facilities -
Industrial Zones

Moved By Councillor Basran/Seconded By Councillor Blanleil

R366/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10944 be adopted.

Carried

Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

6.1. Transit 2014/2015 Annual Operating Agreements

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor DeHart

R367/14/05/26 THAT Council approve the 2014/2015 Annual Operating Agreements
for conventional and custom transit services for the City of Kelowna;

AND THAT Council approve the amendment to the 2013/2014 Annual Operating
Agreement for conventional transit;

AND THAT Council approve the Master Operating Agreement to be in effect June 1,
2014 to March 31, 2023;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute all of these
Operating Agreements between BC Transit, the City of Kelowna and FirstCanada ULC.

Carried

6.2. Security Issuing Bylaw - Lawrence Avenue Local Area Service

Moved By Councillor Given/Seconded By Councillor Zimmermann

Staff:

R368/14/05/26 THAT Council approves borrowing from the Municipal Finance
Authority of British Columbia, as part of their 2014 fall issue, $345,000 as authorized
through Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 10748 which authorized the construction of the
local improvements.

AND THAT the Regional District of Central Okanagan be requested to prepare a
security issuing bylaw with a 20 year term.

Carried

6.3. 2013 Household Travel Survey

Displayed a Power Point Presentation and responded to questions from Council.

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor Basran

R369/14/05/26 THAT Council receives for information, the report from the Regional
Planning Manager, dated May 7, 2014, regarding the results of the 2013 Household
Travel Survey and trend comparison to the 2007 Household Travel Survey.

Carried



6.4. Copeland House - Heritage Tax Exemption

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Zimmermann

R370/14/05/26  THAT Council receives for information the report from the
Department Manager of Policy and Planning dated May 26, 2014 regarding the Heritage
Building Tax Incentive Agreement for the Copeland House at 784 Elliot Avenue;

AND THAT Bylaw No. 10966, being Heritage Building Tax Exemption Bylaw - 784 Elliot
Avenue be forwarded for reading consideration;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Heritage
Building Tax Exemption Agreement.

Carried

6.4.1. Bylaw No. 10966 - 784 Elliot Avenue, Heritage Building Property Tax
Exemption Bylaw

Moved By Councillor Basran/Seconded By Councillor Singh

R371/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10966 be read a first, second and third time.

Carried

6.5. Corporate Energy and GHG Emissions

Moved By Councillor Stack/Seconded By Councillor DeHart

R372/14/05/26 THAT Council receives, for information, the report from the Capital
Assets and Investment Manager dated May 26th, 2014 with respect to corporate GHG
emissions data and emission reduction projects.

Carried
6.6. Road Closure Bylaw - Portion of Road Near Bird Place

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Basran

R373/14/05/26 THAT Council receives the Report from the Manager, Real Estate
Services dated May 20, 2014, recommending that Council adopt the proposed closure
of a portion of road near Bird Place;

AND FURTHER THAT Bylaw No. 10958, being proposed closure of a portion of road near
Bird Place be given reading consideration.

6.6.1. Bylaw No. 10958 - Road Closure Bylaw, Portion of Bird Place

Moved By Councillor Singh/Seconded By Councillor Basran

R374/14/05/26 THAT Bylaw No. 10958 be read a first, second and third time.

Carried

7 Mayor and Councillor Items

Councillor Stack:
Inquired as to the timing of the North Clifton Area Structure Plan coming to Council.

10



Acting City Manager:
Will circulate dates to Council.

8. Termination

This meeting was declared terminated at 4:59 pm

Mayor

RN

City Cferk )

11



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 5/2/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC)

Application: Z14-0014 Owner: Jenzen, Henry & Ingrid
Address: 890 Mayfair Avenue Applicant: Jenzen, Henry
Subject: Rezoning Application

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES - Single / Two Unit Residential

Existing Zone: RU1 - Large Lot Housing

Proposed Zone: RU1c - Large Lot Housing with Carriage House

1.0 Recommendation

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0014 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by
changing the zoning classification of Lot 9, District Lot 143, ODYD, Plan 24833, located on 890
Mayfair Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c - Large Lot
Housing with Carriage House zone be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the requirements of the
Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction.

2.0 Purpose

The purpose of the application is to consider a rezoning to add the ‘c’ designation to the RU1 -
Large Lot Housing zone of the subject property in order to convert an existing accessory building
into a carriage house.

3.0 Urban planning

Staff support the proposed rezoning to allow a carriage house on the subject property. The
subject property has a future land use designation of Single / Two Unit Residential (52Res) in the
current Official Community Plan (OCP) and is currently zoned RU1. The property is within the
Permanent Growth Boundary.

The proposed use is consistent with the OCP definition of S2RES as well as OCP Policy 5.22.12
“Carriage Houses & Accessory Apartments” which supports carriage houses and accessory
apartments through appropriate zoning regulations. There are numerous RU6 & RU1c properties

12



714-0014 - Page 2

along the west side of Mayfair Road. These properties and the proposed carriage house are
located adjacent to existing and future industrial uses to the west. The applicant is aware that
there may be impacts from ongoing or future industrial operations immediately adjacent.

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during consultation with neighbouring parcels.

4.0 Proposal

4.1 Project Description

The applicant wishes to convert an existing accessory building into a carriage house.

4.2 Site Context

The subject property is approximately 990 m? in area. The subject property has residential areas
located to the north, south, and east. The properties to the west are predominately zoned A1-
Agricultural however they are utilized as existing and future industrial land uses. Specifically, the
neighbouring land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
RU1 - Large Lot Housing
North RU1c - Large Lot Housing with Carriage House Residential
RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing
East RU1 - Large Lot Housing Residential

RU1 - Large Lot Housing

RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Residential

South

West A1- Agriculture Industrial

13



714-0014 - Page 3

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table

Zoning Analysis Table

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Development Regulations
Principal Bldg Carriage House Principal Bldg Carriage House
Maximum Height 9.5mor2.5 4.5m 5.5 m (1 story) 4.5m
storeys
Minimum Front Yard 45m 9.0m 7.6 m 37.4m
Setback
Minimum Side Yard 2.0 m for 1 / 1.5 storeys 1.8m 9.9m
(north) Setback 2.3m for 2 / 2.5 storeys ’ )
Minimum Side Yard -
(south) Setback 4.5m for building / 6.0m for Garage 3.0m 1.3 m
Minimum Rear Yard 7.5m 1.5m 23.2m 1.5m
Setback
Site coverage of buildings 40 % 20.0 %

Site coverage of all

[+ 2
accessory buildings 8.5%/84.7m

14 % / 90.0 m?

Site coverage of

buildings, driveways & 50 % <50.0 %
parking
Lot Area 550 m? 990 m?
Lot Width 16.5m 19.8 m
Lot Depth 30.0m 50.3m
Other Regulations
Minimum Parking 2 stalls for SFD / 1 Stall for 3
Requirements Carriage
Distance between units 4.5m 14.0 m
Private Open Space 30 m”/ dwelling unit 46 m* / dwelling unit

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Development Process

Compact Urban Form." Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Sensitive Infill.> Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design,
height, and siting.

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter).
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter).

14



6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

714-0014 - Page 4

Technical Comments
Building & Permitting Department

Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any
Building Permits.

Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia
Building Code (BCBC 12).

Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.
Development Engineering Department

See attached

Fire Department

Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. If a fence
is ever constructed between the dwellings a gate with a clear width of 1100mm is
required. Any gate is to open without special knowledge. Additional visible address is
required from Mayfair Rd.

7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: April 9 2014
Date of Public consultation: May 15" 2014

Report prepared by:

Adam Cseke, Planner |

Reviewed by: I:l Lindsey Ganczar, Supervisor - Urban Planning
Approved for Inclusion: Ryan Smith, Manager - Urban Planning
Attachments:

Application Package
Development Engineering Memo

15



Map Output

Page 1 of 1

Z14-0014/DP14-0061

890 MAYFAIR RD

Subject Property

A
A PLAN 22053

5 4
: 1 RU1C
S GS NS, 2 6
PLAN|22014
cp —_— =
“ruell [+ | @
cP K33 S
A g A , o 2 22
Sl y 24 ]
¥ pL.24833 : il = P2
: RU
7 RU6 1 20 o PLAN 426
I g =
L. 27075 | PL 2743
: ) P kser 5 19 < ._;__
: : !_Cj 10 .
: * 5 CP|
/ =
1 —PL24837 ‘RUG = L
p 4 —e o 11
P 7 —_—
; YA cp RUG6 12
y y PL.21429
14 13
S ! = il
Z. PEARSON RD, e
¥ =
2
(. rRud ),
K546 |- ®
= RU6 | el |=
s <
f 5 = xI
: 10 23 (7]
PLAN 13359 by =
Ao ‘ o
P 9 o
s 0 | PLAN 19747 106 M:eters
% ‘9 8
2014-04-08

IMap: 531

X 276 m -- Scale 1:3,139

http://kelintranetd/serviet/com.esri.esrimap. Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview Map&Clie... 08/04/2014

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

16




CITY OF KELOWNA

MEMORANDUM
Date: April 24, 2014
File No.: Z14-0014
To: Urban Planning (AC)
From: Development Engineer Manager (SM)

Subject: 890 Mayfair Road — Lot 9, Plan 24833, D.L. 143, ODYD

The Development Engineering comments and requirements regarding this application to rezone
from RU-1 to RU-1c (carriage) are as follows:

1 Subdivision
Provide easements as required

2. Domestic water and fire protection.

This development is within the service area of the Black Mountain Irrigation District
(BMID). Al the fees and charges are to be paid directly to BMID.

3: Sanitary Sewer.

The subject property is located within the Local Area Service (LAS) #20. The current
Policy requires that all the LAS charges be cash commuted when the property is
rezoned to a higher density. The pay-out charge for a house and a carriage house is 1
and % SFE. The current LAS #20 payout rate is $3,530.47 per SFE and the total charge
is in the amount of $5,295.71 the charge is valid until April 30, 2014. The charge should
be paid prior to the preparation of taxes notices in order that the annual levy is not
collected for 2014

4, Bonding and Levies Summary.
Levies
Local Service Area #20 charges $ 5,295.71

(valid until April 30, 2014)

Steve Muenz, P.Eng.
Development Engineering Manager

BZ

17



18

dentec

AT

t

www.identecsolutions.com

, e
|

”,>,

gy g T

e %@%




(. \;'(/ NN

H (H(M/\ﬂ S \\ﬂf\\L(’ u/v\gf L\\ :2)’\ Q mlﬁ’\ ,? Xb 7’11}) 4

Application for Development Permit : Guy Coates 976 Lawrence Avenue, Kelowna, BC V1Y 6M2

Legal: Parcel 1 of Lot 9, Block 55, DL 138, Plan 262

COLOUR BOARD

Roofing Material: Drows él(shingles Colour: Black

Main Exterior Material: Vinyl Colour: Grey \,\/7( L‘ ;1(_'

Window & Door Trim: Vinyl Colour; - Cf\\(’(?‘ M\ fr‘l] )/ﬁ ((yeu F

Roof Railings surmounted onte-Mansard xoof/soffit to be made of anodized=alunsinum V)ff?lé(

Colour of front door r \,{) if\(i‘LQ

Style No, 462NC




SELECT HOME DESIGNS

e % 2
) h,._v.%n e S
.\znﬂ, ...Mu . e "
S e = e >y
eﬁ(mwve. By S —— 4 .,.,_mf % ﬁ o T
- - =z ————+ SR .
: = X d
g e TS g T
e — = e \\.HU‘“HHT!
7 > P = w2 .m,nc,r%ed*
; f & e
- - Joop
\\,._ %%B a.%mw.*\zh 3 i
o -~ PLAN NO. SGA017 Kot
O Couphght Beiact Hama Dusos. A HMY Ferved L.\ﬁ

20




= [~
i .\\_ __W
i

e WATH PARTNIN OF THE.

TRIGH COLUMELA BUILIMG COT
— (CUNACHT EOITICH)

THE NATIONAL BUILEING COCH: QN UNIPGRM
= BLALDING CODE 1 PEFERENGE D ALIXAE HWAD

AT THE 1M OF PIREPARAT
AR Dot i, ﬁ.pssa-.-:dxﬂ
i —— ACOoROMCA -4

IN FEOOR
amn ] [Reven
) '

Rz
\ “,
Ff

L Mdidavss

F7

\x_pk w o R

k\&w&im B.C

21



‘ — e

. e it o
-\ T Srem s srte o e s s
a Moaet  SD SEHAY he o s

o Pl e ol b i by Cuds wr e
ot A
e e s
Lo e o e
e A

s ik Lol sinide gx v prafkas e TG

:e_,. H . ey ol
[ Tew? Faptplaba for Sho et bl
\ F5art -
_ & 81 3 R o oracn, e e s it
P § _T.Fn frs H-Illu-h.lﬂ. s i e
y A T Gt b e |
] e T
. , . LT et
b ABOH Pz S e e
aaaaaaaa o
= "SR - DT LR
B RRREE N | sy
T T ——
“ »" _.‘;.’ |““ 3 AND A0 COMSTRLOTGN GClen, Secd rus
i L Lo ELECIRIGAL SceouL
i i z [ i L
_ ‘ _ ScH
I T —i rol, g
I o b 3 b
! i L~ H b 3
i : L3 ucHt g

(|
) I
Sl e N -
1
M..I P e i i .u&c%e\w X1
i M.me..m,nimmu oA n X R fien
1N e i St
=43 - ot oot
i e 5] Witk 2V acypwss
i e 76 VALLET NALDR " _ms Viwbs b~
I e — Y e \ .
» ' "

1
L1
! L DITE DT ThussES @ 34= 0.

]
Tl
i 11

e

e —|

I 5o.ure ss5mt vz a3

/9’1?://;:24‘,_‘_7; e -

_ | M e ——.
Y T ] (S ey Tl [
\ee wAl..,ll..I!mHu!m.I".._w». S

{ Erg — ) =
SECTION A T D

S bt e pasisian o4 raa

B R gy
e : | b
LRV Raray B 14 T il Golly gond 4ecls PROPOSID
R o Rl ol woibh sl o snd Inils . -
A

o
=

|

B
i
i
i i
i

;
CHLCAED
1 L
— et ’ pm— -
g o St U GIONG P
it L ﬁrﬂgcﬁzﬁii:ﬁﬁt
1 et NOT i PCETBERED s
s e | o b

] g
O P I
. T

_7 = R x; W

oy L S
vt _ trin
| i i / :
bsalpmtiadana - & .1_ _ 4_ o AT, g0, w0
{inae) BM=1120

22




o S B sires oA e ity 4
Tymssztn I (TR fat wer ot
Lo i 3 ; S AT S T
ST ULt (5w M= OC s o] i i ey T o1

2xe GTUOB @ dd* 0 G LS, e e o 327 1. weleds staruine mnbed,
! 26 HIOCL DO, 2xés BIUCD © HIGH WALLD oW LMD wa of Sk pens
\ 45 Ry L0 o) et o ok

e ¥

SITC BALT ROOF THUSECS i X . ADOER FRAFING % 4=t e, Loaes oF
L A e v B QULT UGS @ M OG. 1d LADDER FRATNG - e o WL RR T
2x0 FASCIA BOMD ‘ oy _ U e vates vomrms i ot S
A LADOW FRAMING (8 39/ O.C) L S i s e e e
TYPICAL QUIHIOL Y T o tas vy st 18
CORNER FRAMING § (] o Winar arpes, an Soniwer's sapSs
A~ e i | o i ot et ey
- 4 1 1 57 Vo] DIUNT, doen mal wuemma habady o
p 4 { L e e
- e ‘ ‘I...I . . - I - l!!,ll-.nl!l.l(r
| e 4 ) | _ g L e A IR 0oy g oy
| 7 el k -}, 3 W — ey L gmgurbathee
o | b | e s o o i Emirien. Foriaor,
& | L s

wenmren PR

T o7
i e ot A
H ; 2 ..hﬂ_iuo .“.. = A e T T T
AL e ST
I | I & ¢ L) v e OL. N b R T YOUR | IPORMANON COIR GHIDT
L. : g X AR sz ol | i e
. _Lﬁ.? o A3 k5 ! T S Sy ¥ P
; <ol il 3 3 iy , e
|11 FPEn ¥ SRRUAIR =2 Fizz
_ E . ; . ‘ el
. m 1T B
! - A, Ry
ot e —Ti&“ﬁﬁ.wcnxﬁ A L

. W .
R e < P Y i Y R
G Afor |

FRONT WALL FRAMING PLAN : T LEFT WALL FRAMING PLAN TEEIEE Do

NOTE: OVERLAR TOF PLATE FROM DIDES 10 ENOS

Revensc plast

.
- \.;_

' #
~ %
s i
(I P ; 3 : L C
{2VIZ Pl wedd Toe e 4 e g i e 18,3 speiind
i : i u:“....v.vll.l!.!l.l...lr.
‘ o adl, Bt e Uy e ] e Tsane b e, soprnnet
with 1<l d L ¥ B i reipee righ e ber prromoe i
o ]
1 i Yol i
. " et3

&y | ik o DTk sy bt o
BITE BALT LoD W par Dol o , u\\...\.\ k

2 = o [} fad _w..\ i vy hy et W b,

: K h @thar smuans. 4 -

alnbent e 1e parsally under g e

t
* | et o
B

!

] - ]
A f = L.M . T Tamiage
i i Bay
‘ | _ g = T
£ \ = l"_ _f|.+ | # __ .x/r S [ diws o o
(BT B 7535 | |2 s | =
CER . o 1 u..c . I un. ¢H¥n \\..u.vuhllvuu,.gaa
| = = “w |24" QL
i ' . & b I | T .“.uﬁm B I,
|| 5 sl
Z - Z SIOS oy " ' . 4 cnmded] s — ) SR J—
LU e L T T {SEE]
; pr | Carpe? HOME DESIENS

H“llll_f E Taa 3o " . I -
REAR WALL FRAMING PLAN RighT WALL FRAMING PLAN ——

CuT OUT SILL PLATE AT DOOR OPCNINGS AFTER WALLS ARE NAED W #lact TR
gt

23




NOILVATTE

v
 NoiLvAZTE L.

W = =il iR

v NOILVAZ T3

NOILVAZTI

sty

LA,

VAT TE_ LN

v TNOILV AT T
oIy AT IE avaa e 0

=15
o

N

T Jhh,
JANIA LNOT O

—

o g Z
i N

T
b

p 4o » 133HS

il ‘?“
?Ea 1‘:1 ”

gi i{?i ﬁi‘;l i
d P e
i E{Qﬁl}

e s




IMPORIAN I =FLEAw svas
i, emiractes 1a veily ol dimmmisnt
oy kioorid

ers O e et et et

It BN amamtiom.
o 7 e by shet cormply =i Poct 16
i A e aanat Wit Cnde (vemd mbtiss)
#aun i e (bt bt
T aien e W e o e drameL e
e e far it aewmat
T hnme sal T e vpen labley Semned
Gastosr 1O = L i Trsions thmking Code ¢
e Oy o
e ..,...

ALagiran. - e e i Po7a e AR wlrtite bl
R o ABE ORIV DUILICE FACK G FRAMIMG. AN CORCAITE . E U.QD_M G o I S
it A gl JAMB FOR 16! O.H - e A
o o cumoeR, 10 E 8 L ST EARECT 1o WEATING A o s tand PO LOAD WM AT MY i cane ot bigh amm Lo o -

i

i Geds m e UGA

3
s
%“'\\Agﬂﬁlzw\f}i—seg's‘aﬂra%% h
A ® FBF. GCAR LOAD Fom 10tAL BOsicN LOMD OF ub P8 F 3
A O e LA ™ HASHD O & CATOMTE LIk LOAO Il § o
oa.h.cun-\.!hnljv\un..npie-h.s.&-?grubn. S
DEOF i non BRARRG CatACTY W ClCOCND, o I I ﬁ_
B Lo T b MECIIN 1 WenN s risty 10 V6L 8E o
R e i i SMATEE BOVE T ID I
D i iAo 10 vl W L pevTocss
pripniming)
oo .ﬂ..a...i‘..\.us..ngn. TYPICAL DOOR FRAMING SCHEDULE
" I i O e, T BEEN BELLETES cucTReA, S
pr— —rea TYPICAL WINDCW FRAMING 2 o bt
Lot -'i- ot Tud LADDIM FRAFTNG. NP RO WTTH WIRDOY ShLRLIRD Toma
244 HOIE DLW 7 e pocmac
yn GaadTs. Fda. PLATES ey 4 roi i
pee i i e e okl | MTN R KLICHT
: 4 — 8l 3 e
._l P o0 FLABHNG 4 7au voul GuLL
. » e i < oumen cunct -
T 5 i orLLA GUILCT= THIOH DG S0%
A sEa | & oM st LG Procr ¢ UK Ui~ SRl OO
g { S T A0
e = . _ ARAGE OR HEADER m e i Couis
GABLE END GARAGE DOOR HEADER 13 GARACE e i
Yo, oy H.
He s ooe v o st q.o4 DOOR ROGF a0 Wil ATHE GNCT MECHAMICAL SCHEDULE
_sq.!a‘..:hxcn.!g:s?nxhr-cnin ' RoCH LoAD Wit ATIE GILY Lty rosceo = S
LANED AR FLUOH WATH i W

p——
ax O PROVIDE 104 SCNINEUD DOTION Co0e BRACING
o . GC. 1TP. 162 Al TADD BRANS.

EEL - T L

L - . - @ £ l‘-
[l ot _ i
e T T P i e D B s
o [ i i i Gl Gl i oeen T8 me i M
&
SITE BUILT — e N 2

i A T
2 ABLE ROOF TRUSS DESIGN 712 PITCH : s B n ke
E et 5

2UILT GUSSET DETAILING SITE BUILT
£ ROOF TRUSS DESIGN 7142 PITCH ROOF TRUSS DESIGN 72 PITCH

25



RN Guding arivanisr . sandy i 4o
| = ST G i et ot e
e eRICA AF et Uit cainy el Pos fn
Yoarvid i3 o e Ouibih, Cotusatva. Uiy Costa
Tan P Benc AHZY - s e
B e eve oo ke siten = I drmmgs 44
o onrd e it T iy s
2 L i Vs scianes
O, MoRl” - i‘llclllril]t-
= M ety
e CAOIGCAC e = o e Fo7a __ smems siherete netsd.
! - e i DR o @l wach g I
PLEGHTAL AGE ROX LATUNON 3
AT RIS AT OB O COM R Y ..-unﬂ/l-..}o-..nh: 1 40 RSl W) s otbure Sated.
i st i I e cuve o ign drme lasin ar ot b2
B R .I...nﬂ.l!l.ﬂlz.lli\.url.hnlu.
- - e Do e (usiig Duoe.
T .l o L e e
‘A 2 ki O nn.lnz.?\l-l..l.Htrll.
acea == === | [ [P Rees Wit 1 S o 35 e
i Eﬂ.!na.gl.lllﬂi.lg_l
4t e it e iess 4 Win e, ain widasd
) e e
el UL “TTCRET RO Jes s e e et St
i P e i e ey wovird by
& ~ 4 el s e e
U = ot 1 47 o o, €,
CLADDING TRANSITION S o S e
A

Ty s wn_reapact
lunuhan, WESA GF ILL QRIS 6
SIAGIY Pamie.

T e e

CLADDING TRANSITION

26

PLAN DETANL

Wk NTB

g
T RS s

e & et € st
B S T L e
T
el T ——
© 1 A 13 e i e o —
R i
R i’ T O S £ Jon o
oL Rel I E
o cath o s £ ey it ® | @ i e
e 2omal ST e e el R : P TR e e e
rasTES o Palh YR i e H b =g ¥ - ——
Eiinito riaremna I Gl e ok 0 " L T 1o ety e e
o [l

o (R raniticn

" b G O 4 ENCa WACE) Ste 6 SULDING PACER
L8 LA ATty PAFTIR
4

A@ . ",m_ ﬂIWOCmIEE-rmr.P@x_ZD
b 4 BAND BOARD
AT WALL Rpes o

s TS
POy




RAINSCREEN STRAPPING DETAIL |52
ARCUND WINDOWS

D LT, W PLAUHITS VERICALLY U AL P b
i, B CLACICHES A SOALLART & micidd JAED

1 G PR PUIMMED B 1k, BN GOt
PAIAID * DG, + COLOW 10 aICH Cualiiek

o wilhad e gresmien o Lo,

:¥13
z
t

Eet
};‘;§§Ll
¥ R
T

P I
y I

SHEET RS2 OF 2

|
|

27



Yy

NM\__J.., nl...ar\.ﬁm.v\ LA

¥ 5
ye A T

4l .
g ! o

— \\\ﬂ ey 8 e

v Ol =

— & e
o b
L =5l

L i R - — I

~
LS
I —
= 1
» .
Lo =
Pl ™
i R
n e
-

28

v

ezl

P L



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10972
Z14-0014 - Henry & Ingrid Jenzen
890 Mayfair Avenue

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 9, District Lot 143, ODYD, Plan 24833 located on Mayfair Road,
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c - Large Lot Housing
with Carriage House zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Approved under the Transportation Act

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

29




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 5/5/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC)

Application: Z14-0015 Owner: Susan Bennett

Address: 2248 Abbott St. Applicant: Steven & Loretta Nicholson
Subject: Rezoning Application

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES - Single / Two Unit Residential

Existing Zone: RU1 - Large Lot Housing

Proposed Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing

1.0 Recommendation

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0015 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by
changing the zoning classification of Lot 24, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 535, located on 2248
Abbott Street, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two Dwelling
Housing zone be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the requirements
Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction.

2.0 Purpose

The purpose of the application is to consider a rezoning from RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the
RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing which would allow a duplex to be built on the subject property.

3.0 Urban Planning

Staff are supportive of the proposed rezoning to allow a duplex on the subject property. The
proposal is consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use designation for
the area. There is one example of a nearby RU6 development in the immediate vicinity which is
located at 384 Glenwood Avenue (the applicant also developed this property).

The application does not require any variances to the Zoning Bylaw. The application does require
a Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP) which will address the form and character of the new
development. The HAP was reviewed by the Community Heritage Committee (CHC) on May 1%
and passed a resolution approving of the design in principal but required the applicant to submit

30



714-0015 - Page 2

full colour renderings prior to issuing the permit. This will not affect the overall application
timeline as the next Community Heritage Committee meeting is June 5 2014.

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during consultation with neighbours.

4.0 Proposal

4.1 Project Description

The subject property presently contains one single detached dwelling. The applicant is proposing
a rezoning of the property to RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing in order to allow a duplex be built. The
existing dwelling is to be essentially demolished with the retention of the existing foundation.

4.2 Site Context

The subject property is approximately 971 m? in area. The OCP designates the subject property
S2RES - Single / Two Unit Residential, the lot is within the Permanent Growth Boundary, and the
lot is within the Abbott Street Conservation Area.

The property is bordered by residential uses to the north, hospital uses to the east and a park to
the south which includes a parking lot immediately adjacent to the subject property. The City is
building a trail between this property and the lake. The applicant is aware of this project and has
planned their onsite landscaping to fit. Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
North RU1 - Large Lot Housing Single detached dwelling development
East HD1 - Kelowna General Hospital Institutional
South P3 - Parks and Open Space Park
West City Park and Okanagan Lake Future public trail

Subject Property Map: 2248 bbott Street

12 ey N
| A

31



714-0015 - Page 3

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table

Zoning Analysis Table
CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Development Regulations
Height 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys 8.3m
Front Yard 6.0m 7.0m

2.0 m for 1 / 1.5 storeys

Side Yard 2.3m for 2 / 2.5 storeys Varies between 2.0 m & 7.0 m
Rear Yard 7.5m 20.0 m
Site coverage of buildings 40 % 37.6 %

Site coverage of buildings,

driveways & parking 0% 49.9%
Lot Area 800 m? 969.6 m?
Lot Width 20.0 m 20.07 m
Lot Depth 30.0 m 48.3 m

Other Regulations

Minimum Parking
Requirements
Private Open Space 30 m’/ dwelling unit Greater than 30 m* / dwelling unit
*Variance Requested

2 stalls / Duplex Unit = 4 stalls 4

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Development Process

Compact Urban Form." Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Sensitive Infill.” Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design,
height, and siting.

6.0 Technical Comments

6.1 Building & Permitting Department

e Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any
Building Permits.

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter).
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter).



214-0015 - Page 4

o Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia
Building Code (BCBC 12).

e Potential spatial separation issues with glazing at the decks which may affect form and
character.

e Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.

6.2  Development Engineering Department

e See attached

6.3 Fire Department

e Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. Ensure
proper addressing off of Abbott Street.

7.0  Application Chronology

Date of Application Received: April 15 2014
Date of Public consultation: April 15" 2014
Date of Community Heritage Committee Meeting: May 1% 2014

Report prepared by:

Adam Cseke, Planner |

Reviewed by: I:l Ryan Smith, Manager - Urban Planning

Approved for Inclusion: I:l D. Gilchrist, Divisional Director -
Community Planning & Real Estate

Attachments:

Site Plan / Landscape Plan

Colour Board

Conceptual Elevations

Development Engineering Comments

33



£14-0015

Z14-0015

2248 ABBOTT ST

Subject Property

et i I T T —

TS s e s e e

1PLAN  pagy
i
%‘ " PLTaere
'y B
PLrEren f )
8 PLAN  mven

G

Cily of Kelowna -Acturacy and cormctness not

|Map: 539 x 300 m -- Scale 1:3,184 4-05—ﬂE

Attachments

34



214-0015

This application is seeking 1o rezone the subject property from the RU-1 Large Lot Housing
zone to the RU-6 Two Dwelling Housing zone 1o construct a Semi-Delached Two Unit
Townhouse on the subject property. A Herltage Alteration Parmit Is required given thal the
exiting bullding is proposed to be demolished to allow for the consiruction of a new Semi-
Detached Two Unit Townhouse. The subject property Is situated in the Abbott Streel
Consetvation Area, but is not Included on the Herltage Register. The applicant has worked with
& local design firm and artisl to creale a bullding which will allow for the conveniences of a
modenmn lifestyle vet siill have avery traditional exteror, Ironically when complated, the proposed
new construclion will have more traditional lines than many of the existing neighbowing homes
which appear to have been conslructad since the 1£60's.

Located on a comer, the site and configuration of the subject propery is a departure from tha
small lots that used lo be to the east and south. However, these properties have now bean
redeveloped In a combination of green space, park space and parking for the Kelowna General
Hospital and no homes exist. The properlies o the north are an exisling single family home
covering two large lols and a large home In a state of disrepalr. However, the proposed Semi-
Detached Townhouse will face both Abbotl Street and Lake Okanagan and falls within the front
yard siting distance of neighbouring properties and the 120 degree sile line requirements,
thereby conlinutng the rhwthm of this portion of the street. Located within the Permanent Growth
Boundary, the proposal allows for more efficlant use of the subject property and helps to
divarsify the housing supply In an area close to many amenlties including the Kelowna
Downtown Core, Pandosy Village and the hospital complex,

The existing dwelling on Ihe site is a large 70's home with a chaos of additions and will be
demolished. The applicant |s proposing fo construct a Slorey and a Hall Semi-Detached Two
Unit Townhouse in its place utifizing only 37% of the lot for the new consiruction. The Buiiding
has been designed to incomporale individual porch entries at both the Abbott Street facing
frontage as welf as the Lake Okanagan facing frontage. The Abbot! St facing porilen of the
building has been daliberately reduced in width to reduce the massing of the home while fhe
Lake Okananan frontage has been asymmetrically designed to give the appearance of two
single family detached homes on a traditional 33’ lot. The proposal incomporates reducing the
height of the walt on the Abboll 5t frontage to delineate the privale space yel allow padesirian
activity to enjoy ths property and provide an Interface belween the private and public spaces,

The flush gable verges, brick and stucco siding, clustered herizental windows, asymmetrical
facade design and gable roof form fit within the guideline characteristics of both the Late
Vernacular Cotlage and Arts and Grafl Style. Addilionally, some visual gueues are drawn from
the Frank Lloyd Wright Roble home constructad in 1909 and renowned as the greatest example
of the Praitie School styile, the first architectural styvle that was uniquely North Amerlcan,
including large overhangs, brick and stuceo cladding and detailing, hidden front entrance and
rear parking. The colour palette consigt ol neutral brick and off white stucco for the walls,
concrete sills for the windows, grey trim colours and black rool shingles. A brick and textured
stucco finish is proposed lor the exteriar walls,

Parking is achieved within two single garages and two open parking areas which are accessed
off of & meandering dilveway al the ront of (v site. The site maets the lot area requirements to
accommadate Semi-Datached housing and required outdoor open space and on-site parking

Visually Interesting features such as planter boxes, arbors, hedges, ree plantings and water
sensitive vegetation will be Incorporated to create an area of socalization between the puldic
beach (Lake Okanagan), the linear park (Abbott Sty and the prvate home; a space lor beach
parties, family barbecues and nelghbourly conversation,

Attachments

35



£14-0015

Eer |3
GEee |l £l
- 8.4 g L5 T
SE TR
ER (LS|
i’ i :
O e
¥ = 1 l
i b ip=t=
"l I |'D_--!"
LS ) 1L
'.“,_L I: ]'%!'-!I'
"l_"ll.'rI :'l' | Irt
Ty 5 il
| 4 | |J] Iiu'.'l fi_:"i_! |"|l
; Y/
Gl /5
N STR
.,I'_' R 1I‘L ] W '
gl 11|
LEITH L O
[ i W k I Jj.""_ r:tll I.I
. ¢ .'I'
"/} 2k .:"Ili!ﬁ f '
{ i
] "’w‘v ¢ |i |:-' i J ; I|

= W B
s R

e T L
T liEs N
i ]"lll_‘_'t.JJ i
L/ Ll \ "

= | =

. i

Attachments




Z14-0015

VARSI RN

S ——— I —
J{.ﬁ Tt -

3

\
o] e &=
= o e \l
T

N — N

1...._,_ e rl.lf__
] e

L —

Attachments

37



Z14-0015

o 0oy

b et S8 TNTS
AAILLE ORET s
EHINTTIET S e LT

—

1

J—
T R it
) P |
e TGOS
-y
1 Tl S

1™
,
|

Attachments

38



214-0015

Attachments




214-0015

prs— | i
- 1
]
-
_ o
==y
A
.||Ml.|

L
AT
A0E e W=
Al Eviaasi
J—
OB YT 02 LD
3 Alh DI T4
L2 LS SR
SNEPNATIEAST SR I
N e — e e ——— ——— =3
J— <

S p—

Attachments




214-0015

FIOZ 1L Ukl

Nl 2RO

e

6% HY1d ST LOT
1ZHAIA 8 VMO
133HLS 1408 RIES
ANINADTEANIC ATHW S IT0H

oval

Attachments

41



Z14-0015

GUIOH 21BiliA BL1 PUE JORLOD 1S B0y eyl fyoesq aignd eyl Ueamiad UgNEZ|RIoos

10 3B UR 8iEsia O] pelRiodioou; ag ||im uonziaben snsuss Jsiew pue sbunue|d san ‘sefpay ‘sioqie

S9X0Q JeluB|d S8 LoNSs sounies; Duissssiul Ajjensiy "sa(bulys joou 32Ejq pUE SINOJ0D WiLE Aeuf 'Smopuim au)
F0} S|IE S]210U00 'SHEM 8L 105 030035 RRINIXE] Bl|LUM JO PUE 3oug AJSISAILN PO J0 JEISU00 Sy8Ed NRIoD

SUL

Attachments

42



214-0015

MEi AN TE Souy  rrEall

Attachments

43



Z14-0015

Attachments

44



=== = = — e ]

CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date: April 30, 2014

File No.: Z14-0015

To: Urban Planning (AC)

From: Development Engineering Manager

Subject: 2248 Abbott Street , RU&G

Development Engineering has the following comments and requirements associated with this
application to rezone from RU1 to RUS., ‘

1.

o

Domestic Water and Fire Protection

Our records indicate this property is currently serviced with a 19mm-diameter water
service. An additional water service will be required and can be provided by City forces
at the developer's expense. The applicant will be required to sign a Third Party Work
Order for the cost of the water service upgrade, For estimate inquiry's please contact
Sergio Sartori by email ssartori@kelowna.ca or phone 250-469-8589,

Sanitary Sewer

Our records indicate that this property is serviced with a 100mm-diameter sanitary sewer
servlrice complete with inspection chamber. The service is adequate for the proposed
application.

Road Improvemenis

Abbott Street has been upgraded along the full frontage of this property, and no further
Upgrades are required. .

Access, Manoeuvrability and Parking Requirements

The Parking Area shall be designed so as to allow vehicles to turn-around on-site and
exit onto Abbott Street in a forward direction.

Electric Power and Telecommunication Services

It is the applicant’s responsibility to make a-servicing application with the respective
electric power, telephone and cable transmission companies to arrange for service
upgrades to these services which would be at the applicant's cost.

iy

\-St}e've

Devel
SS

uepz, P. Eng.
opmgnt Engineering Manager

45

e NS L



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10973
214 - 0015 - Susan Jane Bennett
2248 Abbott Street

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 24, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 535 located on Abbott Street,
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two Dwelling
Housing zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

46



Report to Council

Date: 6/9/2014 Clty Of

File: 1250-30 Kelowna

To: City Manager

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS)

Address: 1800 Crosby Rd Application:  OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004
Subject: Supplemental Report

Recommendation:

THAT Council receives, for information, the Supplemental Report from the Subdivision,
Agriculture & Environment Services Department dated May 30, 2014 with respect to proposed
amendments to Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0003 and
Rezoning Application No. Z13-0004 for the property located at 1800 Crosby Road;

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw (Bylaw No. 10960) and the
Zone Amending Bylaw (Bylaw No. 10961) be forwarded for amendment consideration;

AND FURTHER THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone
Amending Bylaw, as amended, be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration.

Purpose:

To consider a request by the applicant to amend the original application and to forward the
revised application to the next Public Hearing.

Background:

At a Regular Meeting held on Monday, May 5, Council granted 1°* Reading to the proposal by
DRS Ventures Ltd to amend the future land use and zoning in order to permit the
development of 12 lot development on 1880 Crosby Road. Following comments received from
Council and interaction with the public the applicant has agreed to amend their application
such that the footprint of the proposed subdivision will be reduced and more Major Park /
Open Space will be dedicated to the City.

Staff acknowledge that this additional gain to Major Park / Open Space of approximately 3.6
ha, together with the blanket Statutory Right of Way and No Build No Disturb Covenant on the
parent remainder, presents a balanced approach that achieves the policy intent of the OCP to
preserve parks and open space, contribute to a green connection between Knox Mountain

47



Park and Stephen’s Coyote Ridge Regional Park, and provide a reasonable solution to the
topographical and access challenges to the site. As such, staff supports the updated proposal.

Respectfully Submitted by:

Todd Cashin, Manager

Approved for inclusion: Shelley Gambacort, Director

Attachments:

Ccc:

Terry Barton, Parks & Public Places Manager
Steve Muenz, Development Engineering Manager

48



Page 1 of 1

Map Output

OCP13-0003/Z213-0004

Subject Property

4 @v:\\\ﬂw.\
2
T S Sy,
SRS,
L5

swizs

sSwis

21 /P

;@Zm.

acy and tagrectness not gu

2014-03-26)

IMap: 2,484 x 1,411 m -- Scale 1:14,667

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

3/26/2014

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject Properties Ar...



0 NV1d 3Sn ANV ONILSIX3

[ON "A3Y| NOISING
- STUNLNIA S¥a
e avoy ABSO¥O 008l

000°2:L

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

VYNMOT3IX 40 ALID 3IHL
i 6 IS,

(vd) 30vdS N3do
ANy Svd

(run) (aLisNZA woian) <l
TVILNIQIST
INR TN

() (ALISN3Q MOT)
TVILNIAISTA
LINA 3TILTAN

(Hs3wzs) (3AISTUH)
TVILNIAIS3Y
LINN OML/ZONIS

(S3uzs) WILNIAIS3Y
1INA OML/3ONIS

(nnoo)
VIONINNOD

SNOILVN9IS3d
3SN ANV d20

AMYVANNOE
ININdOTIAZQ = = = ==

aN3931

€2 dL § "03S ¥/1 3s
NOILdI¥OS3ad V931

0s

ON 34 ALID
SL
(1sNa3) WVV WO
TVNOLLALILSNI ANE Y e
/Noliyana3 s
s yig i

anod
Y3Nd3H

- e
l/ (ey 92°5€)
A¥VANnogd

1N3INdOTIAIA




l NV1d LNIWNdOT13IAIA 1IVH3IA0 000Z:1 . u.m._.,..us.aﬂ.miw.nu..dh.. o X NOISIAY sa] 3iva |onfpa NOISIAZY s8| 3vg [N x08 zemﬁomﬁn M T -_uljﬂ$
o Y] iNoisg SIYNLNIA S¥d Iwos 430 NOILVOId30 Mivd Q3SYIHONI Zn[v1/0z/s0] b (@250d0Nd) H MAOLS gy, <@ WA 4 ————— w%hwﬁﬁu
ed—c¥cc A vioz v ava RN i o v © " RIS REOL

“ON SNIMYND avod Ag9S0d0 008l 930 QaBddY \w m: _— _ 1 &u. (3MNLN4 HO ONILSIXI) HA MHOLS gy ' o womssTa D
ININLNYAIA  ONWIINONI 30vd NoIs3a - o AN gy NISYE HOLYD ® === AT
o il VYNMOT3IX 40 ALID FHL ) RO, (1404 40 ONASI) Wt AVANYS prysO o T Nzt

D
€Z dL S *03S #/1 38

NOILJINIS3A Tv931

LNVNIAQD
g¥NLSIa ON/aling ON
Q350d0¥d

NOILYDId3d X¥vd
a3s0do¥d

(VANILNI WS) ¥nOLNOD
aNnON9 TYNISWO  S0se "

W3LSAS VYL ONILSIX3 =========
A¥VANNOS LN3NHOT3A30 == = = = ==

aN3oa1

€2 dl § '03s v/L 3N

(seuoe L ep) By L9°LL s
NOILY21a3a M¥vd wia
a3asodoyd

(sa1oe pzp) ey LL°LL
LNVN3IAOD
g3N.LSId ON/aTing OoN
a3asodoid

9z dL 2¢€ 23S ¥/L N

1

/ (sa10e p°gg) ey 92°5E
AdVANNOd

AIN3NdOTIAIA

€2 dL G '03S ¥/1 MN
Y655 NVId
v

€T dL § '03S ¥/L WS




d3ad33qo0d4dNsS

A
Lo
0 ac 000'Z:1 u“.w“.‘mmu.du .19 3 A8 ¥a oNlpwd]  NOISIA] A8 Iva@ ['ON|  xoB NOWONAM ALMLA e .
on Az|  3ova nVu &(M‘MM\DHMM\A-QMMM‘/\ apo ° Sise Eilisiadadanlcs YINHOISNVAL T
4 Qv0M ABSOYO 008} C e N L T
uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu
s VNMO13X 40 A
(1sNnig3) |
IVNOLLALILSNI -+

/NOILYONa3 |

(>svd) 30VdS N3dO
OGNV SHdVd

(WM) (ALISNZO WhIOSW)
TVILN3OIS3Y
LIND 3TN

(T9M) (ALISN3G MOT)
TVILN3QIS3Y
1IN 3AILTINN

(Hs3uzS) (3aISTUH)
TVILN3QIS3Y
1INN OML/3TONIS

(s3yzZS) WVILN3QISRY

LINN OML/3TONIS
=
IVIOUINWOD
S3¥ZSs oL
R, Mivd WO ‘o5,
SNOILVYNOIS3A s B a
3SN GNV1 400 i

(uvd) 30vdS N3dOo l WUVd SNIVINIY MdVd ¢ L ay
ANV Suvd

€2 dL 6 035 ¥/1 N 1 L

]
g anNod

1 ¥3Nd3H Snee

—_— v
SNOILVNOIS3a 3SN
GNV1 dJ0 a3S0d0o¥d LLEE e Yyvd oL
g 038 v HS3¥EZS o4

<
(s3uzs) WINZaISR (B
1N omL/3oNIs (P

R R —
400 0350d0¥d 20 sy

¥
A¥VONNOE Ly
INIWdOT3A30 = = =

[{NEREY]

€2 dl S "03S ¥#/1 38
NOILdI¥IS3a VoA

—+




¥T0Z ANNC - AISINTY

Jisls e [P0 NOISIA3Y A8 | 3iva  [on|pwof NOISIAZY Ag8| 3wva [oN X08 NOILONAP ALIULA a8 R 1A%
L | 8¢ WV dYN / LNINANIWV 400 00021 O i ot atea |on] ssoswessun B e
oN A3 20vd 325 d30]  NOILYDIQ3Q XdYd Q3SVIHONI zn|efoz/eo V| | bbb (a350doud) HA MNOLS gy ° WA B —————.
e STUNLNIA S¥Q s soirmaens s
,,,,,,,, A QvO¥_ABS0¥ 008L g AT e
30vd NOIS3Q

SNOILVYN9IS3A

3SN ANV 420

aNod

mmmmmmm
SNOILVNDISIa 3sn |

ANV 420 a3S0dodd

L ] wavaor V2
0 AHsaues wowd [
¥3Nazy / I 77,

aN3oa1 g

€Z dL S '03S ¥/1 3s
NOILLdINIS3A Tv931




d3ad33o044dNs

ZZZZZZZZ A8 31v0 oN X08 NOILINAM ALrILn -
A/ 00/nn
i auvanvis dwvy @
umosswyL B - OAITIT T
- ° FIS N S —

0|92 | .8, d¥W / LN3INANIAV ONINOZ
= S3YNLINIA S¥Q

ot el avod ABSO¥O 0081

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

mmmmmmmm
mmmmmm

NOILLdI¥DS3A Tvo31

ONISNOH L1071 WNIGIW - ZNY
oL
IVANLINORIDY - LY
[ [e2-F]

\

e S |
i

JOVdS N3IdO ® SMiVd - €d

anod | oL
AVANLINDNNOY - LY N
[e2:E]

J_

6¥6SC NVId
A\




¥10Z ANNC - NV'1d d34SIA3IY

= STUNLNIA S¥Q
Z-EVEE avoy AESOY¥O 008l

zzzzzzzzzz

E ‘ 92 | .48, dVW / LNIWANIWY 9NINOZ

S3RVANNoa
3NOZ Q3S0d0¥d

AMYANNOSE
ININdOTaA3g = = = = =

€2 dL S "03S /L 3s
NOILJIN2S3A 1v931

YNMOT3N 40 ALID IHL

WM,
N
9
S
¥

3JIVdS NIdO 8 SHUVd - €d

oL

AVANLINDNOY - bV
INOYd

ONISNOH 10T WNIA3IN - 2Ny
oL

IVANLINDRDY - LY
N0

3IVdS NIdO 2 SHYVd - €d
oL
AVANLINIRDY - LY
INOoYd




el .10 NOISIAZY A8 oN x08 nouONA Auaa B i rm

N, LNOAVT LOT AYVNIANITINL s g A/m imoswi, B GNGNIS a1, D R
oN “A28|  NoISIAG S3y ALNIA sya d3a SNOISIAY TYNIN3D ZA| vi/80/v0 | L (435040Yd) HA WHOLS gyy @ INWA P4 — === NARIDITTeN
—n_n.nN,vNN avoy }MMOMO 008l nxu,wuﬂan}mumn___:—,mM 430 SNOISIAZY TYHIN3O ZA1| v1/02/50 | T (30LNS ¥O INILSX3) HN INOLS gy O v @ |lhﬂ§
o st e Sl (ers0aou) o i y® O8I | —— "
- N Y TR JWvd

el YNMOTIN 40 ALIO 3HL T AR g s

AdvaNNog
1N3INDOT3A3A

‘oY L9°LL
N¥Vd Q3s0d0¥d

avoy Avyanon

[
st 9L

NY1d

-
o
= < =
o 6 [ 4
8 @ 2
@ ]
a % o
= 7} 0
X o =z
= 159y Nvd @ ]
(S} (&} K%
Z o
= o
o
[az4 vveh
ovzht ciai ; 85168 NV1d
- )
280043 pas
00403
ozt
. 9 oam 1 9
6 8 s
9v161dd3 Nv1d X3
LB9SY NYId
mmm mm B
P B
wsor
s 101

' wioset

ot

VIuY oDV [904
NHVd 035040¥d s

oy L1221 'N3Y e~

1304vd W3y S~ S~

€2 dL 6 '35 ¥/1 35

NOILJINIS3A V931

(VNMOTIH JO ALID) ALINIAMOD ~—— NOUDITI0) Javauvo
INInLEY4IQ U4 YNAOTIN ~——— NOLLOILOHd .4

(VNMOTIA 40 ALID) ALNANGD ¥50d5ia_JOVAIS
R — U T 1

SATAL T INOHdITL

S¥O VANLYN 90 SIL¥0d SO TYUNLYN

1OMLSI0 LININIACHAM NOSITII-THOWNITO ¥ILYM TI8Y10d

AdVANNOg
olsiAlgans
@3s0doyd

N¥Yd d3S0d0dd

AHYONNOS NOISINIGENS QISOONd 8 U B 8 0 B B

ANVONNOE ININGOTIAN INEEEEEEmEE

anNaoal

56



LU LS Uil WsLese R0

T B U NR—— I
' .
-
=
g i
| 2
ﬁ =

100

3,500

D.E. Pilling and Associates Lid.
o A o AL 0 T o 3375 e P

RW
NADE3-UTM Zone 11
Environmental Sensitivity Rating
50
1:
Legal data provided by

FIGURE 3




CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date:
File No.:
To:
From:

Subject:

February 22, 2013

Z13-0004

Land Use Management (GS)

Development Engineering Manager

1800 Crosby Road. Sec 5 TP 23

Development Engineering has the following comments and requirements associated
with this application to rezone from A-1 to RU-2, P3

The road and utility upgrading requirements outlined in this report will be a requirement
of this application.

The Development Engineering Technologist for this project is John Filipenko. AScT

1) General

a)

This proposed subdivision may require the installation of centralized mail
delivery equipment. Please contact Rick Ould, Delivery Planning Officer,
Canada Post Corporation, 530 Gaston Avenue, Kelowna, BC V1Y 2KO0 to
obtain further information and to determine suitable location(s) within the
development.

.2) Geotechnical Report

a)

Prior to initial consideration, provide a Geotechnical report prepared by a
Professional Engineer competent in the field of hydro-geotechnical
engineering to address the following:

(iv)

(v)

Confirm that each development node (heighbourhood) is suitable
for the proposed land use.

Identify lands that should not be developed such as
environmentally sensitive or hazardous conditions areas.

Area ground water characteristics, including any springs and
overland surface drainage courses traversing the property.
Identify any monitoring required.

Site soil characteristics (i.e. fill areas, sulphate content, unsuitable
soils such as organic material, etc.).

Any special requirements for construction of roads, utilities and
building structures.

58



Z13-0004 1800 Crosby Road Page 2 of 5

3)

4)

5)

(vi) Suitability of on-site disposal of storm water, including effects
upon adjoining lands.

(vii)  Identify slopes greater than 30%.

(vii)  Recommendations for items that should be included in a
Restrictive Covenant.

(ix) Any special requirements that the proposed subdivision should
undertake so that it will not impact adjacent properties.

Further detailed reports will be required for each subdivision or
development phase as they progress.

The property is located within the Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District
(GEID) service area. The developer is required to make satisfactory
arrangements with the GEID for these items. All charges for service
connection and upgrading costs are to be paid directly to the GEID.

Provide an adequately sized domestic water and fire protection system.
The water system must be capable of supplying domestic and fire flow
demands of the project in accordance with the Subdivision, Development
& Servicing Bylaw. Provide water calculations for this development to
confirm this. Ensure every building site is located at an elevation that
ensures water pressure is within the bylaw pressure limits. Note: Private
pumps are not acceptable for addressing marginal pressure.

Sanitary Sewer

a) Provide an adequately sized sanitary sewer system.

b) Provide sanitary routing design complete with calculations ensuring the
downstream infrastructure is capable of supporting this rezoning

Drainage

a) Provide an adequately sized drainage system. The Subdivision,

Development and Servicing Bylaw require that each lot be provided with
an individual connection; however, the City Engineer may permit use of
individual ground water disposal systems, where soils are suitable. For
on-site disposal of drainage water, a hydrogeotechnical report will be
required complete with a design for the disposal method (i.e. trench drain
/ rock pit). The Lot Grading Plan must show the design and location of
these systems for each lot.

59



Z13-0004 1800 Crosby Road Page 3 of 5

.6)

7)

b)

d)

Roads

Provide the following drawings:

i) A detailed Lot Grading Plan (indicate on the Lot Grading Plan any
slopes that are steeper than 30% and areas that have greater
than 1.0 m of fill);

ii) A detailed Stormwater Management Plan for this rezoning; and,
iii) An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.

Show details of dedications, rights-of-way, setbacks and non-disturbance
areas on the lot Grading Plan.

Significant banks are located on the subject property. The slopes appear
to be sensitive to erosion; temporary and permanent measures must be
taken to prevent erosion and sediment transport.

Dedicate and Construct the Crosby Road extension to a Local — Class 2
standard (SS-R4)

Provide traffic control and street name signs where required. The City will
install all signs and traffic control devices at the developer’s expense.

Grade the fronting road boulevards in accordance with the standard
drawing and provide a minimum of 50 mm of topsoil. Major cut/fill slopes
must start at the property lines.

Verify that physical driveway access will satisfy City requirements for all
lots. For steeper lots (15% and greater), show driveways on the lot
grading plan with grades or profiles. Where lots are serviced by onsite
sewage disposal systems, show limits of cut and fill lines.

Maximum length of a permanent cul-de-sac is to be 200 m unless
approved otherwise by the Approving Officer.

Cul-de-sac approach roads must not exceed bylaw grade requirements.

Power and Telecommunication Services and Street Lights

a)

b)

All proposed distribution and service connections are to be installed
underground. Existing distribution and service connections, on that
portion of a road immediately adjacent to the site, are to be relocated and
installed underground

Street lights must be installed on all roads.
Make servicing applications to the respective Power and

Telecommunication utility companies. The utility companies are required
to obtain the City’s approval before commencing construction.

60



Z13-0004 1800 Crosby Road Page 4 of 5

.8)

9)

.10)

Design and Construction

a)

b)

Design, construction supervision and inspection of all off-site civil works
and site servicing must be performed by a Consulting Civil Engineer and
all such work is subject to the approval of the City Engineer. Drawings
must conform to City standards and requirements.

Engineering drawing submissions are to be in accordance with the City’s
“Engineering Drawing Submission Requirements” Policy. Please note the
number of sets and drawings required for submissions.

Quality Control and Assurance Plans must be provided in accordance
with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 (refer to
Part 5 and Schedule 3).

A “Consulting Engineering Confirmation Letter” (City document ‘C’) must
be completed prior to submission of any designs.

Before any construction related to the requirements of this subdivision
application commences, design drawings prepared by a professional
engineer must be submitted to the City’'s Development Engineering
Brancht. The design drawings must first be “Issued for Construction” by
the City Engineer. On examination of design drawings, it may be
determined that rights-of-way are required for current or future needs.

Servicing Agreements for Works and Services

a)

b)

A Servicing Agreement is required for all works and services on City
lands in accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing
Bylaw No. 7900. The applicant's Engineer, prior to preparation of
Servicing Agreements, must provide adequate drawings and estimates
for the required works. The Servicing Agreement must be in the form as
described in Schedule 2 of the bylaw.

Part 3, “Security for Works and Services”, of the Bylaw, describes the
Bonding and Insurance requirements of the Owner. The liability limit is
not to be less than $5,000,000 and the City is to be named on the
insurance policy as an additional insured.

Other Engineering Comments

a)

b)

Provide all necessary Statutory Rights-of-Way for any utility corridors
required, including those on proposed or existing City Lands.

Parks & Public Places Branch has reviewed the development application
and provides the following comments and requirements:

i) The proposed park area shall be dedicated to the City as a titled
property zoned P3 — Parks & Open Space and transferred as part
of the Zoning Application;

ii) Adequate road frontage will be required for the park entrance to
provide public exposure, sightlines, security, and maintenance
access;

61



Z13-0004 1800 Crosby Road Page 5 of 5

ii)

iv)

Vi)

vii)

The park road frontage will need to be fenced and gated for
operations and security Fencing and vehicle gates shall be to City
Standards;

The sidewalk for the Crosby Road extension shall provide a
connection between the existing sidewalk on Crosby and the front
entrance to the park connecting to the existing old forestry road
(e.g. park trail);

A short term SROW for public access (5-10 years until future
development occurs) shall be secured on the remainder of the
upland portion of the subject property beyond the park dedication
(e.g. future development lands);

A plan will be needed to address fuel reduction, forest health and
the protection of significant characteristics of the forested area. All
approved recommendations of the report shall be implemented
prior to transfer in ownership of the lands to the City of Kelowna.

To prevent private/public encroachment, the applicant will be
required to delineate the private property lines adjacent to the park
parcel with a minimum 1.2 m high (4’) high black vinyl chain link
fence (or approved equivalent) located 150 mm (6”) within the
private property.

.11) Charges and Fees

a) Development Cost Charges (DCC's) are payable

b) Fees per the “Development Application Fees Bylaw” include:

Street/Traffic Sign Fees: at cost if required (to be determined after
design).

Survey Monument, Replacement Fee: $1,200.00 (GST exempt) —
only if disturbed.

Engineering and Inspection Fee: 3% of construction value (plus
GST).

Latecomer Processing Fee: $1,000.00 (plus GST) per agreement
(no charge for 1 day agreements).

c) Sewer Specified Area Administration Fee of $250.00 to amend service
boundary.

Steve Muenz, P.Eng.

Development Engineering Manager

JF

62



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10960

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP13-0003
DRS Ventures Ltd., Inc. No. BCO758611
1800 Crosby Road

A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1

THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of a portion of the South East % of Section 5, Township 23,
ODYD, Except Plan 896, located on Crosby Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the S2RESH -
Single/Two Unit Residential Hillside and PARK - Major Park/Open Space designation to
the S2RES - Single/Two Unit Residential and PARK - Major Park/Open Space
designation as identified on Map “A” attached to and forming part of this bylaw;

This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 5" day of May, 2014.

Amended at first reading by the Municipal Council this

Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

63



7102 INNC - A3SIATY

L| &2 WY dYN / LN3NAN3AY dO0 A A . — =
on el awansvas R .
Z-TveT S3UNLINIA S¥d

v e avoy ASSO0¥D 008l

v i YNMOT3X 40 ALID 3HL
>t &

Tl

P &

SNOLLYNSIS3a 3asn
CGNYT <20 g3sodoud

SAUYENNOG
50 D mem——

P T

anza

WALSAWS 2133
NOLLINOS3A TwDa1

(03200000} o PaSLS g ® POl BSR4
e e o ]

O e et

9T W e e
(30 33 DT, VLY D ws € |

64



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10961
Z13-0004 - DRS Ventures Ltd
1800 Crosby Road

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of a portion of the South East % of Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Except
Plan 896, located on Crosby Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to
the P3 - Parks and Open space and RU2 - Medium Lot Housing zone as identified on
Map “B” attached to and forming part of this bylaw.

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 5" day of May, 2013.

Amended at first reading by the Municipal Council this

Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

65



7102 INNM - NY1d A3SINIS

192 8. dvm / INZWAN3NY ONINOZ 00az:t === ___I"™ e o] o [ o 5[ 3 | i T ey m—————

e SIUNLNIA S¥Q = B o e o S P s o mdt 4n® iy

Zoavee QvOY ABS0¥0 008L oo R e 8 & o
S5 :

| =9vas N340 7 SH¥Va-£a
] aL

| TVNALINOROY - LY

SRR

SNISNOH 107 WNIGSMW - 2Ny
oL
TAEALINDMNDY - LY
WO

3IVdS N3O ® SHYVd -Sd
oL
TVEALINORIOY - LY
No¥

4

33 4 32232 v 3N

©re3 W
2

66



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 6/9/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 1210-21

To: City Manager

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS)

Application: A13-0012 Owners: \%TES; B('E:ﬁ;dBerar d
Address: 1740 - 1760 KLO Road Applicant: Bill Berard

Subject: Subdivision in the Agricultural Land Reserve - Homesite Severance & Park
Existing OCP Designation: Resource Protection Area

Existing Zone: A1 - Agriculture 1

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A13-0012 for Lot A District Lot 131 ODYD
Plan KAP45005 Except Plan KAP78655, located at (1740 - 1760 KLO Road) for a "Subdivision of
agricultural land reserve” under Section 21(2) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act, be
supported by Municipal Council;

AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration.

2.0 Purpose

The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for a
“Subdivision of agricultural land reserve” under Section 21(2) of the Agricultural Land
Commission Act. The subdivision is more specifically a “Homesite Severance” request as per
Policy #11 - Homesite Severance on ALR Lands, and the addition of a park for ecological
preservation.

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services

The applicant is requesting permission from the ALC for a “Subdivision of agricultural land
reserve” under Section 21(2) of the ALC Act. The applicants are seeking a three lot subdivision.

The proposal includes subdividing the parcel into three lots. These include the homesite parcel,
the wetlands and riparian forest to the north, and the remainder that includes the majority of
high quality arable land that is currently farmed.

67



A13-0012 - Page 2

Homesite severances are supported through the City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan' and the
Agricultural Land Commission Policy #11%. In addition, the City of Kelowna Official Community
Plan supports the creation of Natural Parks and Open Space where Okanagan ecosystems are
conserved and passive recreation opportunities are made possible. The Agricultural Land Reserve
Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation® allows biodiversity conservation, passive recreation,
wildlife and scenery viewing, as well as the use of open land established as park by a local
government”.

As such, staff supports the proposal as presented.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

The subject property was purchased by the current owners, William and Brenda Berard, in 1972.
ALC Policy #11 - Homesite Severance on ALR Lands states that “a once only severance may be
permitted where the applicant submits documentary evidence that he or she has continuously
owned and occupied the property as his or her principal place of residence since 21 December
1972”.

The owner has continually owned and occupied the property, based on estate documents. The
land was subject to a subdivision in 1991, whereby Plan 15131, (Lots 1 and 2), was divided into
two properties, Lot A and Lot B of Plan KAP78655. Documentation of the ownership and
subdivision is attached.

4.2 Project Description

The applicant is requesting permission from the ALC for a “Subdivision of agricultural land
reserve” under Section 21(2) of the ALC Act. The applicants are seeking a three lot subdivision.

The property is located at 1740 - 1760 KLO Road (Map 1, below). The proposal is to subdivide the
existing homesite located in the western portion of the property. The applicant is proposing a
0.47 ha (1.16 ac) subdivision from the existing 4.15 hectare (10.27 acre) parcel that includes
none of the existing farm structures. The applicant has elected to use the existing privacy hedge
located along the eastern property to create the proposed eastern property line. The 43.5 meter
lot width allows a couple of extra meters on the east side of the existing trees in order to protect
the root zone from damage.

The subdivision also includes a 1.17 ha (2.9 ac) parcel at the north portion of the property which
is predominately wetlands and associated riparian cottonwood forest. The area does include a
former homestead that is in disrepair and requires removal. The City of Kelowna has an
agreement to purchase this portion, to add this parcel to the Munson Pond Park to the north, in
order to conserve its ecological value and add to the passive recreation opportunities of the park,
including the possibility of a loop trail around the pond and bird watching. The proposed
subdivision line runs along the north side of an existing irrigation ditch that runs from the
northeast corner across the property to the west (Map 2, below).

' City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 85.
2 Agricultural Land Commission - Policy #11 - Homesite Severance on ALR Lands (http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-
03_homesite-severance.htm)

SALC, 2002. Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdividion and Procedure Regulation - Part |IlI, Section 3.
http://lwww.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/Reg/ALR_Use-Subd-Proc_Reg.htm#sec16-1
‘ALC, 2002. Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdividion and Procedure Regulation - Part |IlI, Section 3.

http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/Reg/ALR_Use-Subd-Proc_Reg.htm#sec16-1

68


http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-03_homesite-severance.htm
http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-03_homesite-severance.htm
http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/Reg/ALR_Use-Subd-Proc_Reg.htm#sec16-1
http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/Reg/ALR_Use-Subd-Proc_Reg.htm#sec16-1

A13-0012 - Page 3

All of the existing farm buildings and structures would stay with the remainder (farm) parcel with
an area of 2.52 ha (6.22 ac) if the subdivision is permitted as proposed.

The subdivision preserves the majority of the best land for agriculture, while making use of an
existing hedge as a farm buffer for the homesite parcel, and preserving the riparian forests and
wetlands to the north.

A community partnership has been established with the Central Okanagan Land Trust (COLT) that
demonstrates the priority of this acquisition and the overall importance of Munson Pond. In
addition, FortisBC Inc. has also expressed interest in a partnership for the development of
Munson Pond Park as the land is in close proximity to FortisBC’s interior headquarters on
Benvoulin Road.

4.3 Site Context

The subject property is located on the north side of KLO Road (a four lane arterial) between
Burtch and Benvoulin Road in the South Pandosy - Kelowna Sector of the City. The subject
property is in an interface area, surrounded by agricultural land (ALR) on three sides, low density
residential on one side and Commercial and Institutional uses in close proximity.

Figure 1: KLO Road Looking East (Subject Property on Left Side)
S 3 :

R

The property contains a single home site and single dwelling which is located approximately 45
metres from the front property line (i.e. KLO Road).



A13-0012 - Page 4

Figure 2: Homesite (Proposed Subdivision Area)

The farm buildings and structures, which include a greenhouse and farm gate retail sales area,
are located approximately 110 metres east of the dwelling. The farm buildings are located
within close proximity (i.e. approximately 10 metres) of KLO Road.

Figure 3: Farm Buildings including Farm Gate Retail Sales

i =

In 2010 the parcel to the west (i.e. 1650 KLO Road) was approved for a partial exclusion and two
lot subdivision. The ALR exclusion was authorized by the ALC after it was determined that part
of the property was used as a landfill. The ALC required that the remainder (eastern) portion
comprising 1.3 hectares of land be remediated to an agricultural standard. As the exclusion and
subdivision reduced the eastern (ALR) parcel size below the 2.0 ha minimum, the property is
proposed to be rezoned to the RR1 zone, while the western 0.7 ha is proposed to be rezoned to
the RR3 zone. The rezoning of the property to the RR1 and RR3 zone are currently being held at
third reading until the conditions are met.

70



A13-0012 - Page 5

The two parcels to the north are owned by the City of Kelowna and encompass “Munson Pond”.
Munson Pond was inventoried as part of the City’s 2008 Wetland Classification, Inventory and
Mapping (WIM) project®. The 42,251 m2 (4.22 ha) wetland is a shallow water basin with greater
than 95% open water and a condition of “Functional At Risk” due to habitat fragmentation.

While the extents of Munson Pond are limited to the City’s properties, Munson Pond does affect
the subject property in terms of the hydrology and hydrogeology. The unfarmed lands in the
northern portion of the subject property provide a natural buffer for the wetland from
agricultural impacts, are a significant source of wildlife habitat and provide an array of other
ecosystem services.

The irrigation ditch has a water license which is part of the Mission Creek Water Users Group.
Water rights should stay with the agricultural remainder of the property and this should be
confirmed as a condition of subdivision. The subdivision line should be on the north side of the
irrigation ditch so that the access to water and license remains on the remaining agricultural
parcel.

The City has purchased the three lots to the north of the subject property within the last six
years. There are plans to develop a park on these properties with a potential loop trail around
Munson Pond, bird blinds, and other facilities including benches, a small parking lot and park
signage (see attached).

Parcel Summary:

Parcel Size: 4.15 ha (10.27 ac)
Elevation: 350 - 351 masl

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use In the ALR?
North A1 - Agriculture 1 Future Park Yes
East A1 - Agriculture 1 Agriculture Yes
South RU1/RU6 Residential No
West A1 - Agriculture 1 Agriculture/Vacant Yes

> Ecoscape Environmental Consultants Ltd. 2008. Wetland C8-46.

71



Map 1 - Subject Property 1740 - 1760 KLO Road ]

Mission
Creek
Water
Users

Irrigation
Ditch to
remain on
farm

parcel

Existing
Dwelling /
Homesite
Parcel

A13-0012 - Page 6

Cdx of Kelowna - Aocurag and comectness not guaran(eed

@@w

ﬂﬁmmwsg

Proposed park
addition to Munson

Pond Park

Parcel
Remainder

Note: See Proposed Subdivision Plan attached

Mission
Creek
Water
Users

Irrigation
Ditch

Greenhouse
&
Farm Retail




A13-0012 - Page 7

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Protect and enhance local agriculture®

Protect Agricultural Land. Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR and by
protecting agricultural lands from development, except as otherwise noted in the City of
Kelowna Agricultural Plan. Ensure that the primary use of agricultural land is
agriculture, regardless of parcel size.

Subdivision. Maximize potential for the use of farmland by not allowing the subdivision of
agricultural land into smaller parcels (with the exception of Homesite Severances
approved by the ALC) except where significant positive benefits to agriculture can be
demonstrated.

Natural Area Parks & Open Space. Provide a city-wide network of natural area parks which
meet the following criteria:
» Contains representative Okanagan ecosystems;
» Contains areas of outstanding natural beauty;
» The land area is contiguous and forms part of a larger open space network;
o Contains Conservation areas;
e Protects view-shed corridors; and
» Where appropriate, the provision of trails which maximize public safety while
minimizing human impact on the most sensitive and vulnerable areas.

5.2 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan

ALR Application Criteria’

Exclusion, subdivision, or non-farm use of ALR lands will generally not be supported. General
non-support for ALR applications is in the interest of protecting farmland through retention of
larger parcels, protection of the land base from impacts of urban encroachment, reducing land
speculation and the cost of entering the farm business, and encouraging increased farm
capitalization.

Urban - Rural/Agricultural Boundary Policies®
Parcel Size (Agricultural Land) - Discourage the subdivision of agricultural land into smaller
parcels, except where positive benefits to agriculture can be demonstrated.

Homesite Severance - Continue to support the concept of homesite severance, consistent with
Agricultural Land Commission Policy #025/78 [11].

5.3 Agricultural Land Commission Policy #11- Homesite Severance on ALR Lands

Persons making use of this policy should understand clearly that™:
a. no one has an automatic right to a "homesite severance”;

¢ City of Kelowna Official Community Plan - Chapter 5 - Development Process; pp. 5.33 & 5.34.

7 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 130.

8 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 131.

° City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 85.

10 Agricultural Land Commission - Policy #11 - Homesite Severance on ALR Lands
(http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-03_homesite-severance.htm)

73


http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/policies/Pol11-03_homesite-severance.htm

A13-0012 - Page 8

b. the Commission shall be the final arbiter as to whether a particular "homesite severance”
meets good land use criteria;

c. a prime concern of the Commission will always be to ensure that the "remainder” will
constitute a suitable agricultural parcel.

5.4 Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation

Permitted uses for Land in an Agricultural Land Reserve, include:

(f) biodiversity conservation, passive recreation, heritage, wildlife and scenery viewing
purposes, as long as the area occupied by any associated buildings and structures does
not exceed 100 m* for each parcel;

(g) use of an open land park established by a local government or treaty first nation

government for any of the purposes specified in paragraph (f);

6.0 Technical Comments

6.1 Development Engineering Department

Development Engineering has no comments at this point in time with regard to this application,
however, a comprehensive report will be provided at the time of development application
submission when the Agricultural Land Commission agrees to the proposed activity on the subject
property.

6.2  Ministry of Agriculture

Upon review of this application it would appear that the proponents have owned and farmed the
property in question since before 1972. Because of this, the Ministry defers to the decision
making processes of the ALC regarding Homesite severance.

Should severance be granted by the ALC, the Ministry requests that a people and pet proof fence
be placed around the newly created parcel and a standard “noise, odour and dust” covenant be
placed on the Homesite.

7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: September 25, 2013

Agricultural Advisory Committee ~ November 28, 2013

The above noted application was reviewed by the Agricultural Advisory Committee at the
meeting on November 28, 2013 and the following recommendations were passed:

Additional Investigation: December 12, 2013

Application was put on hold in order to explore acquisition options for the northern section of the
property adjacent to the City owned Munson Pond Park parcels.

Additional Information Received:  January 9, 2014

City staff and COLT representatives met with property owner and agent to review acquisition
options.

74



A13-0012 - Page 9

Report prepared by:

Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner

Approved for Inclusion: I:l Shelley Gambacort, Director, Land Use Management

Attachments:

Subject Property Map

ALR Map

Proposed Severance and Subdivision

Proposed Severance and Subdivision - Survey Plan

Munson Pond Park Properties

Estate and Ownership Documents and Statement of Title
Plan of Subdivision of Lots 1 and 2, Plan 15131 to KAP45005

75



Map Output

Page 1 of 1

Application

A13-0012

Subject Property

47

City of Kelowna -Accurac

‘.1
LUW 8615
PLAN 415
2
B 15
PLAN B14830 PLAN 67173
B
1t
12 A b o 2
PLAN 415
- I

. i PLAN

: i
DRI [l T ) .
o0 b . R . :‘- :-:“_.-..:. ‘
o b P 2 | o
e L e MR
......... . == z »
.............. \ T ey
ey A gy Ce \7 ravsesn  gf S a0
R R I 5 & ' <
deid ¢ PLAN a5 |PLAN 418
'P2

Map: 1,557 x 1,207 m -- Scale 1:9,195

2014-05-07

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=0verview Map&Client...

51712014

76




Map Output Page 1 of 1

Application

A13-0012

2
AER ALR

D Subject Property

F
|
|
1
1

3
‘_ j1ll

TR ITIRE]

PLANB14830

PLAN 35770

H R

[Map: 1,557 x 1,207 m -- Scale 1:9,195 2014-

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject Properties Arc... 5/7/2014

77




avoy

O™

78



F PROPOSED SUBDIVISION FOR HOMESITE

NCE OVER PART OF LOT A DISTICT LOT 131
AP45005 EXCEPT PLAN KAP78655

) METRES 7% AV4
| COPY
5 50 100 METRES
3) 6 _
PLAN 415 F
3 =
1,172 ha E
(2.90 ACRES)
WETLANDS
NORTH SIDE OF DITCH
NORTH SIDE OF DITCH
2
2517 ha
1 (6.22 ACRES)
0.470 ha
(1.16 ACRES) mem A

KLO ROAD

79|




cocy

Sa19do.d Nied puod uosunjn Sunsix3

sa1adoud yled puod uosuniy Suisixg

80



1740 K.L.O. Rd.
Kelowna, B.C.
ViW 3P6

Phone 860-1902

: | f Gy ol Raiowna
DATE: MAY 74/ ' Urhan Planning
, - 7" o *

To; LAND st 2 ¢ANNER.

MR. w;H. ( Bill ) Berard MEMO

MAY 20 204
"RECEIVED

AHen:  #mciANig  STepriatt N

‘Message._R¢. SrATE mcuT oF 7ITEC

Drae melANE STEpLuHN

[LERSE Finve  ATTOCHED ©
k‘ ' -

PROOE OF cuonerSHir Ja) /1912

THIS wprk  WAS Deve By -

MR Tem SwairHwicd ERom Fperer  RamINY LA yeERS,

#. A econenr SLARcH Fom Tivee Compeerga By [oR| Holtree

F Rom LworRTER ?&:M"{.

T Merde TS Socues /M& dowesrion .-

Pl Yipee So hrcess.

el ———
\7&. MK Bewnnro

William H. Berard

1740 K.L.O. Road Kelowna, B.C. VIW 3P6

Phone 250-860-1902 / Fax 250-762-7948 81




Porter
Ramsayue

August 18, 2011

William & Brenda Berard
1740 KLO Rd

Kelowna BC V1W 3P6
Dear Mr. & Mrs. Berard:

Re: Miscellaneous Matters

AVED AUB 2 3 20m

Dennis K. Boon Tom Smithwick, Q.C.*
David M. Frechette* Mark A. Koochin*
Donald L, Wilkinson John S. Kennedy
Timothy T. Brown*  Christopher K. Wendell*
Jaime M. Boyle

File No: 57730-3-44
Via: Mail

Please find enclosed a copy of the probate documents registered at the Land Title Office on October 27,
1972 under registration number G46471. We forward these documents for your review, as requested.

Please feel free to contact the undersigned should you have any questions.

Yours very truly, _—_)

Porter Ramsay=~

TSH
Enclosure

Phone: (250) 763-7646
Facsimile: (250) 762-9960

www.porterramsay.com
email: tsmithwick@porterramsay.com

#200-1465 Ellis Street, Kelowna, British Columbia V1Y 2A3

82



/f”C46471

4

RECENED ericE
KAM LoOPS B c

L enD *:f\-: \ TR

-

772 OC1 ﬁ 9308 N [~

PARTICULARS: ‘
SATEICVARCIATL AN ANSY

RIZTIRE £ SOLITIVORR

1475 LLUS STREEY, RELIWHA, DG, TiL /52.200

souicans ror (Wit erdm ‘.‘_;Qg,yfcy /.55,(’/]/?_0, A5 [ZwEcuiar o~ FHE  FSTHCE ¢ s Ay IE
N av Mo M on BERoRD , okn. Awes 77 OIKALY | DEcFised,  oF

DECLARED faLut: s 2 B, 4770, :

S e e /059  Pando Sy SreEry,  Kzsowrd, B.C .

NATURE OF DOCURERY S LSS L

AR sy a0

PL'ENS&%ONAM}—DUG S
FOARRHEART

Ll wiraut e Lidie

83




ot (4O o W0 Y

RSO 2 T GELOWN G
AUG 1 0 1972 ForM A
¢ o g %E«p T RY
. RPN F A RR IT
In the Supreme Gt of B mﬂti?renmmna
IN PROBATE SCP 115/72
LOWNA Registry
Te it kst wat on the........ 20 ' ey
©of August , in the year of our Lord one thousand nins
hundred and seventy-two » tho last Will and Testament (a copy
whereof Is hercunto anncxed) of... ANNIE MoNEIL BERARD otherwlse known as
ANNIE M, BERARD
lote of _....... Kelowma, Province of British Columbia, . . _ .. ...
o deceased, who died at
the City of Kelowna, Province aforesaid,
on or about the...... 184, day of .. February. ,19..72.

was exhibited, read, and proved before a Judge of the Supreme Court of British Columbla, and
administration of all the estate which by law devolves to and vests in the personal representative of

the said decensed was granted to WILLIAN HENRY BERARD of. the ity of

Kelowna aforesaid,

SUF‘RBAE' coum'

IO Of.BﬂlLl&wammmA

LTI TR
i e a0}

Bl A
Loengent ‘ REGISTRY
S thew.8O1E  BxecutOT...... in the said Will named, A

wal

,Given under the Seal of the said Court, this Lenth day

of August ,AD, 1972

/»9 L

.o e ok

Asst ~Dep District Registrar.
|

é.:‘:: 20179 il

‘“ . };xgrac(cd byl. Messrs, Merillians,. Bilsland,. Tinker & Gurney
Solicltor, s

N ‘f
Lo ek e

£y | Kelowna, British Columbia ‘
- . b eveesd vJJ."Y
ez bem P ARTS




CEIVER Al g 3 ﬁ@;
- Application No: él/ég/j//f‘

Zgéé 85 Cancel Running No:
Declared value: /Jsﬁ s007

Cert, of Title No;

not cancelled,
Running No:

Mexrge:

Owner is/is not a British subject:

Date of Application: ;L7/¢;/72_

REGISTERED OWNER: Wit 100 A7 //é‘/!/‘/é'/ BER RO

V958 fendee f N vd
G .
éﬂazm re. q]’ ,/ /4'% /f Grnid . /} v @44({1

ittnced 22 EYEY I

LAND DESCRIPTION:

List of instruments:
///f/'/ ‘}Cﬁ;q' ,/571:;-71/,44»&?«3& "
7z /
»e. /37
0.2.4 2.
/:’Z;Z"W' YAWE V4

Decds Deposited: K#/‘%?/
Mc’/l/)zlaw /9 2

Endorsements: Sl




LEENYY
(48

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE Form No. 3 (Succession Duty)
ForM NO, 2 (PROBATE Feas)

CERTIFICATE OF DISCHARGE  so wu9/723

N SUCCESSION DUTY ACT PROBATE FEES ACT
1A (RO BF R (R (Sectlons 24, 35, 51) (Section 32)

In the Matter of the Estate of... ...... BERARD, ANNIE MCNEIL .. . rmamer e » Deceased

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the full amount of Succession Duty and Probate Fees, if any, payable in
respect of the property or benefielal interest in property of the above-named deceased herein set forth has been
pald or secured and the property or Intercst is therefore discharged from any further claim to Succession Duty

and Probate Fees.
The property or interest comprised in this certificate is as follows: —

"Lt 1, D.L. 131, Osoyoos Division Yale District, Plan 15131% 4

This certificate is given under the terms and subject to the conditions of scction 24 (or 35, or 51) of
the Succession Duty Act and section 32 of the Probate TFees Act,

Dated at Victoria this ... 13th __ dayof.. ......September 19 . 72

Countersigned, %’«‘fﬁf ﬁ o

Minister of Finance,

PARK STATIONERS & PRINTERS LTD.
Low wnd Cammercial Statloners

Jancouver, DL INVENTORY X (Form No. t (Long) lnsert)

Form No, 31d-L—inventory X, Pages 1 & 2




PARK STATIONERS & PRINTERS LTD.
© - Law and Comuercinl Stationers
Vancouver, B.C,
Form Nbo!-314-L—Inyentory X, Poges | & 2

SUCCESSION DUTY ACT (BRITISH COLUMBIA)Y

T thye ... SUSREMS COURT OF BINTLISH COLUMBIA 46471

In the Matter of the Estate of ANELE MENEIL BERARD, otherwise . . . . Deceased

known 48 aandle M. lerard,

1 REAL ESTATB
(Give full valug of properly, seiting out encumbrances {If any) in detall scparately.)

TOTAL

- proporty situate 3n the Vernon agsessment Districk,

rrovince of dritial Colunbia, .,Auat South of the City
of Kelowna on the KLO Road, and being more partloularly

“hnown oe Lot i, Liatrict Lot 131, Osoyoes DAvision
_¥ale osisvrdiet, Plun 15131, registered in the nume of

aande fickel) beraprd, .usessed value - Land ¢l,517.003%

o gy et . 40 1000,00, . MErked Volue $.33,500

oo | S _GRT]
R REGG

e \A-_:.‘__(«j: N \ SEP 1972 i

R

I NTY 15 AWV

STy




MONEYS SECURED Y MORTGAGE OR AGREEMENT OF SALE

A

s

ardarereme b tn

i

| {

. N l.
| {

— SV, DO e
| !
! |

!
\

i - Rl Exiiar] Ailas s (Cantied ThERA
feos e Joaeaenile assreen RS
- B el beaneenaens cermae v
: . ! \ v
adsmuurreyens raseream s - - niemir crarem
'
emrten [ B . revrnn.
. rermesvrvesssrarermaseres [crsarana
eppenerniniras aeresbeones [0 | VST FOVUUns | Poresspusron Pvepery | IRTRIESITIENIE Uateunid iniiaiatel
——an o v v e wensoas [ reavanecsor|esnecen P et Al o Eabinimand
rereerameoms JFTURIIN Suvre  INIURIOIS Fsse ERIEEE ISRt did N
JRESION ervesmaaniasrRnas s nes st Y I TN OO R
- wee e remnenn [ cormmuarsamsesmermaninans fomems
aratnbemonnrons prssumamITas eesrenener O - JUTUURIUTUNN PUDNIN | [RTRRMBPPRSORMS At B

|
!




Brom Title No....26066.85F
LAND REGISTRY ACT '
(Fonm F, SECTION 143)

CERTIFICATE OF INDEFEASIBLE TITLE

Land Registry Offics, .. KAMLOORS. ..., British Columbia.

Whya tn 1o revitf)y that the underaentioned registeted owner in fec-simplé is absolulely and indeeasibly entitled in fee-simple,
gubject 1o such charges, liens, and intercsts as are notificd by endorsement herecn, and subject to {he conditlons, exoéptions, and
reservations set out hereon, to the land situated in the Province of Brithsh Columbia, and more particularly described -below,

_— Registered owner in feo-simple: Application for registration received 27th October 2 1972
WILLIAM HENRY BERARD

1958 Pandosy Street
. Kelowna, British Columbia

Executor of Will of ANNIE McNEIL BERARD, Deceased see (46471,

. Description of land: (See back hereof for transfers (if any) of the land or a part thereof).

Lot 1, District Lot 131, Osoyocos Division Yale Disttict, Plan 15131,

In the Vernon Assessment District.

CHARGES, LIENS, AND INTHRESTS®

Neture or‘l’%fﬁ";\'p‘#\ﬂ%ﬁnbm wnd Reghitered Ownes of Charge Remarks

cmiimeme s+

GANGELLED: 2( [AV 1971
By 5039 -F

1

¥it uritess 1wheeeut [ bave hereunto set my hand and the seal of my office aforesaid, this

ath day of

Novemher..., 19...22

 Bach endorsement allects olf the Jand deseribed hercin, unioss otherwize Indicatsd in * Remarks » eolumn, See back hereof for abbreviations, elc.



Page 1 of 1

Bill Berard

From: "Lori Holtjer" <LHoltjer@porterramsay.com>
Date: Monday, May 26, 2014 11:44 AM
To: <whberard@shaw.ca>

Attach: title search - May 26 14.pdf
Subject: title search for Lot A, KAP45005

Hi Bill
Further to our telephone conversation today, please find attached the current title search reflecting both you and Brenda on title.

This should be sufficient for the City.

©
. ) PORTER RAMSAY LLP
Lori Holtjer 200-1465 Ellis Street
Legal Assistant Kelowna, BC V1Y 243
E-mail: lholtjer@porterramsay.com Telephone: 250-763-7646

Fax: 250-762-9960
www.porterramsay.coh

This message Is infended only for the use of the Individual or entily to which f is addressed and may contaln information that is
privifeged, lential and exempt from disclosire under applicable law. Any other distribution, copying or disclostire is strictly

hiave received this message in error, please nolify us immediately by lelephone af 1-888-933-4411 and delefe the
ion without making a copy.

90

5/26/2014 |



TITLE SEARCH PRINT ~ 2014-05-26, 11:51:49
Requestor: lholtjer@porterramsay.com
Folio/File Reference:57730.5.26

**CURRENT INFORMATION ONLY - NO CANCELLED INFORMATION SHOWN**

Land Title District KAMLOOPS
Land Title Office KAMLOOPS
Title Number CA1937629
From Title Number KX101862
Application Received 2011-03-16
Application Entered 2011-03-23

Registered Owner in Fee Simple
Registered Owner/Mailing Address: BRENDA SUSAN BERARD, HOMEMAKER
WILLIAM HENRY BERARD, SALES REPRESENTATIVE
1740 KLO ROAD
KELOWNA, BC
V1W 3P6
AS JOINT TENANTS

Taxation Authority CITY OF KELOWNA

Description of Land
Parcel Identifier: 017-322-839
Legal Description:
LOT A DISTRICT LOT 131 OSQOYQQS DIVISION YALE DISTRICT PLAN KAP45005
EXCEPT PLAN KAP78655

Legal Notations
THIS CERTIFICATE OF TITLE MAY BE AFFECTED BY THE AGRICULTURAL LAND
COMMISSION ACT SEE PLAN 11328

HERETO IS ANNEXED EASEMENT KE63465 OVER PART OF LOT B PLAN KAP45005
SHOWN ON PLAN KAP45601

Charges, Liens and Interests

Nature: MORTGAGE

Registration Number: CA1934383

Registration Date and Time: 2011-03-15 10:09

Registered Owner: HOME EQUITY MORTGAGE CORPORATION

INCORPORATION NO. A57412

Title Number: CA1937629 Title Search Print Page 1 of 2

91



TITLE SEARCH PRINT
Requestor: lholtier@porterramsay.com
Folio/File Reference:57730.5.26

Nature:

Registration Number:
Registration Date and Time:
Registered Owner:

Duplicate Indefeasible Title
Transfers |

Pending Applications

Title Number: CA1937629

MORTGAGE

CA1934450

2011-03-15 10:57

ALBERT ERNEST WILLMS
CHRISTINA MARIA WILLMS
AS JOINT TENANTS

NONE OUTSTANDING
NONE

NONE

Title Search Print

2014-05-26, 11:51:49

Page 2 of 2

92




$TTOI OM HOF

! w50.ppo

=?nwr et D B CYNMOTEN uoppanadc
B0 82918z un;au:o_- YJOq Of 3D SSLyM ssuippo
"SHOAZAMAS ONYT 2@ * SWeppt
S3LVI00SSY ¥ NOSNDY3Z T'L sooens sRoulm TUATH HLEX 351007
BEnea
W
s Tog . £sqroutys pemiaysns. ] P 3
e g - ccouppn ; )
TRV ARNG oy . : seougp | I TR YR 2Timpe  guw N e))
e pavint, wnam g Baereg 13
/ﬁ\ N ). - .Yn.usv&f.w gy T BB IS 3
. Kodagi ABOLUNIIS GIZINOHLAY it € et o5
0661 "HIEWIAON IO ¢ e o woppand3ac
A0TPeIT L NO QBARTAWO5 ST ABANCS IHL LD38UGD IV Y TR
74.Iuaza AAABDS wrm.n ¥R ONT 6T e SRl A8 TainasINaIs MOAG AYD e g W DY . ssepppo ’
AZAENS ML CIANZLNMEANS ATTINCSETS QNY 17 AN3S3I¥e q@l\gs k) -
Sva L LTR. ASANID WEAARTCD HSLLME N TNMOTIN 30 ALD JuL HG WEG medun 0HvH38 NvSOS VONSHE
¢ HOAIAMGS ONYT ¥ISWNI0D HELNE T NOSH2MIS '3 SYWOHL Y WEANMIOD HSLLING S, L TNy T ¢ s
40 FONAOHD THL JO LHolE . T L e P / -
EETEER NOWN ujcad 11819 3 MO N NTINO THL ALSACYN UAH - o
339Y9.LEON
IV LHON SEINLIM ENAG
N NYSTRTHO (TELMAD 40 TEETHSL 5
_ORASIC TONDISIE Jreh MIRLM. S3C NYIa Sl WO avos O I M -
S = -= 2y 88 46 ZTEPTHGL
TRADIEH 47 ALY BHL #O5 HIDI2I0 SMACHaY T ﬂ DoLT - - _zuo@.
,,,,, T : } IR 60088l
\(.\649.»\, Tovos > 00’68l
L | od
N v _ 28 v dof |
L, ~ S 3
192 NOILYNS3 D8 N . N
e 11235 Qu LNTTSHNG 03ACHodY . | 2
51 N P e S ¢ SISi-8 N¥Id Wk L s M
B Nl W o h .
. / STLBIYT os wae 2§¢
INMCTEN 20 217 Tkt HOs WAJA0 SNAOHAY ~
1 T ~
T ANENS | .
szesiv ) FA4=3 ]
NZd . - Z<|ﬂ &
WUFWYGFS 04T Sy e A _ z
LU ETLL ONTT 3WE MITNG 03ACHAL? GZeY Nvid
? " ¥ 107 Way o _
TIACHILEY I . 2
- 3 oY 96T .
2o
g8 ﬁ v 2 [8
a
g aw
Y 3302 : _ @ {9
Lenpznsss g
! .
; _ -
e ; | 1LPEZ
!
w | NYd
M | - o ‘H. i
g i |
7 N
Zr8ET - * 3
P sr2)
I 10 N
8216T . o ‘
/ . 6
P -
/
’ NV
‘ L LOT : :
S 107
ONNOa LNIWANOW TOMLINOS Q10 S3ILON3T WIO @
13§ 1504 NOMI S3LONIA  di @
ONNOA 1SOd NOMI 070 SALONIA  dio &
WNAROTEN 30 ALD - b 'ON VIYV AJANNS QILVHSRLN
1UGE66°0 HOLIVA GANIBWOD AE ATdlL WA SZLUNIGNC-03
W 4N 40 NOILVANGWOD OL HOIHd "SIONV.LSIO Q3HASVEW T3ATT ONNONS SMOHS NYId SIHL
BEYZHSL ONY SorZHEL "ZSPZHEL SININNNOW “OULNOD U170 WOHd O3AIMIT 3V SONMYIE a9
aN3O93T
wraLSI Y soxiow 001 os 52 0 of
“s3A0¥D =N S3YL3W OS2l + 1 2 3TVIS
£80:328 §'9°0'8
. ; 83
o= AVH e B s ‘aA'do ‘gl ._.On_ 1214.LSIa "IEISl NV 1d

©0°8 SHDUTIAEM ¥ FMIS0 3L ONTT 3nd N CEISTHRE

S00 S ¥ Jyd ON NYId

2 GNV | S1071 Jo zc_w_>_nm:m 40 NVd

(96 48.5)bov- 935 et




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 6/9/2014 KEIOW“a

RIM No. 1210-10

To: City Manager
From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS)

T i . (Charles) Blair Wilson
Application: A14-0004 Owner: Kelly Janine Wilson
Address: 4410 Wallace Hill Road Applicant: Blair Wilson
Subject: Non-farm use application in the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR)
Existing OCP Designation: Resource Protection Area

Existing Zone: A1-Agriculture 1

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0004 for Lot 2 DL 360 ODYD Plan
39632, located at 4410 Wallace Hill Road for a non-farm use of agricultural land in the
Agricultural Land Reserve, pursuant to Section 20(3) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act, be
supported by Municipal Council,

AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration.

2.0 Purpose

To obtain approval from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section 20(3) of the ALC
Act for a “non-farm use” within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) to permit the activity of an
apple vodka distillery and tasting room to complement their apple orchard.

3.0  Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment

The applicant is proposing to establish an apple vodka distillery and tasting room. The apple
vodka tasting room follows the guidelines set out in the Agricultural Land Commission Act for
wineries and cideries for tasting rooms. The area of the tasting room is less than 125 m2, and
the outdoor patio area is less than 125 m2. The applicant is planning for a picnic special events
area, and is applying for a liquor license with a special events endorsement.

The proponent is planning to decommission the existing house prior to occupancy of a new home
currently under construction. The reuse of the existing house as an office for the farm is
permissible as long as it is fully decommissioned prior to the occupancy permit of the home under
construction.

94



A14-0004 - Page 2

The applicant has indicated that the distillery will require more apples than they currently
produce until their smaller trees increase their production. Until then, they will purchase apples
from other local farms to supplement their distillery production.

As this proposal represents another opportunity to produce a value added product and diversify
the local economy’s agricultural products, staff support this application.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

The subject property has been owned by the applicant since 2011. It currently has approximately
2.6 ha (6.4 ha) in apples, as well as an agri-tourist accommodation Recreational Vehicle (RV) site,
washroom facilities for the RV campground, a primary residence, barn, and several horse stables,
riding areas, and a new single family dwelling. A delayed demolition bond has been taken for the
second dwelling, until the residence under construction is complete. The owner would like to
turn the second dwelling into an office, rather than demolish it, to support the apple vodka
distillery.

4.2 Project Description

The applicant is proposing to establish an apple vodka distillery and tasting room. The still is
from a German manufacturer (see photos, attached). It distils the apples multiple times before
the vodka is produced. The plan is to establish the production facility in an existing barn, with
the tasting room attached. The parking area and tasting room are planned for the southeast
corner of the property, in a field that is currently vacant.

4.3 Site Context

The subject properties are located in Southeast Kelowna, with Wallace Hill Road turning a corner
at the southeast corner of the property, and running north/south along the east property line,
and east/west along the south property line.

95



A14-0004 - Page 3

Map 1 - Subject Property - Wallace Hill Road

R =
Subject skl
Property 3

iiad)

Horse Paddocks

The subject property is within Southeast Kelowna, and is surrounded by orchards, hayfields, and

ity 0! Kukrwna - Accuacr and comeciness not guamnsesd Comm

other agricultural and rural land uses.

Sl

Subject #
Property




A14-0004 - Page 4

The subject property is within the ALR, and surrounded by properties within the ALR. The
nearest boundary of the ALR is to the southeast, where the topography steepens.

Map 3 - ALR

Subject
Property

4.4  Future Land Use and Zoning

The future land use of the property and surrounding area is Resource Protection Area (REP).

The zoning of surrounding properties is primarily A1 - Agriculture, with the exception of two
properties that lie directly south, across Wallace Hill Road. These are RR3 - Rural Residential
Small Lot and RR2c - Rural Residential Medium Lot with Carriage House. These two properties, as
well as one to the west of these, are not in the ALR.

Zoning and land uses adjacent to the property are as follows:

Direction Zoning ALR Land Use
North A1 - Agriculture Yes Agricultural
A1 - Agriculture / RR3 - Rural Residential . .
South & RR2c - Rural with Carriage House ves Rural Residential
East A1 - Agriculture Yes Agricultural
West A1 - Agriculture Yes Agricultural

97



A14-0004 - Page 5

The future land use designation of the property and surrounding area is Resource Protection
Area.

Map 5 - Future Land Use

\ - W\, - Z i
“l‘[ 2™ TN\ ’ )
A 3 ]
‘ ‘ 1 i Q’fﬁ.‘.ﬁﬁ"?tﬁ‘.\‘

Resource |
d Protection
Area




A14-0004 - Page 6

Map 6 - Proposed
£ il = SN
Agri-tourist [l ™ — Wy RV Campsite Office
Accommodation gl i § e [ ”
RV Campsite [ & e

- == et B8 B Existing Barn
Existing ¢ - it o | B tobeusedas

Vegetation [ g : ; L the apple

Buffer to be ; % .: h ™ processing area

preserved

i aw

Existing Dwelling to [== S & mag | Vacant field to be
be used as an office I - : L PR used for the tasting
for the tasting room Sl v ~ room and parking

4 ‘ area

Existing Entrance to be
used for the apple vodka
tasting room

4.5 Current Development Policies
4.6 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
4.7 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future

The subject property has a future land use designation of Resource Protection Area and relevant
policies are included below:

Protect and enhance local agriculture’.

Agri-tourism, Wineries, Cideries, Retail Sales. Support agritourism uses that can be proven to
be in aid of and directly associated with established farm operations. Permit wineries, cideries
and farm retail sales (inside and outside the ALR) only where consistent with existing ALC policies
and regulations.

Non-farm Uses. Support non-farm use applications on agricultural lands only where approved by
the ALC and where the proposed uses:

are consistent with the Zoning Bylaw and OCP;

provide significant benefits to local agriculture;

can be accommodated using existing municipal infrastructure;
minimize impacts on productive agricultural lands;

will not preclude future use of the lands for agriculture;

will not harm adjacent farm operations.

' City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.33.

99



A14-0004 - Page 7

Preserve productive agricultural land®.

Homeplating. Locate buildings and structures, including farm help housing and farm retail sales
area and structures, on agricultural parcels in close proximity to one another and where
appropriate, near the existing road frontage. The goal should be to maximize use of existing
infrastructure and reduce impacts on productive agricultural lands.

Reinforce Kelowna’s unique identity/sense of place®. This objective will be achieved by
retaining important natural and community features.

Farm Protection Development Permit Guidelines*.On agricultural lands, where appropriate,
locate all buildings and structures, including farm help housing and farm retail sales, within a
contiguous area (i.e. homeplate). Exceptions may be permitted where the buildings or structures
are for farm use only;

4.8 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan

Economic Enhancement Policies®

Integration. Support the establishment of a process to consider, in addition to the promotion of
agri-tourism and direct farm marketing businesses within the community, an integrated approach
that creates linkages to the cultural and heritage tourism sectors, in terms of marketing an
identity of Kelowna.

5.0 Technical Comments
5.1 Building & Permitting Department
Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building

Permits.

5.2 Development Engineering Department

Development Engineering has the following comments at this point in time with regard to this
application, a comprehensive report will be provided at the time of subdivision application
submission if and when the Agricultural Land Commission agrees to this proposal.

1. General and Access

a) New construction setbacks shall respect the existing road reserve boundaries.

b) Adequate off-street parking shall be provided.

c) The driveway access shall be paved, perpendicular to the road centerline and the
driveway grades shall meet bylaw requirements. (Approaching driveway grade to be no

greater that 3% for a distance of no less that 15 meters from the road asphalt edge.)

d) Foliage shall be kept cleared in both directions to ensure that sightlines are not
obstructed for a minimum of 110 meters.

2 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.34.

3 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Economic Development Chapter; p. 8.4.

4 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Farm Protection Development Permit Guidelines
Chapter; p. 15.3.

3 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 150 - 152.

100



A14-0004 - Page 8

e) Proposed signage shall meet bylaw requirements and the locations will require further
review.

f) Where internal drive aisle vehicle headlights may project onto the fronting roads,
headlight screening will be required.

2. Domestic water and fire protection.

a) The subject property is within the service area of the South East Kelowna Irrigation
District (SEKID). The developer is required to make satisfactory arrangements with the
SEKID for these items.

b) On-site servicing including the use of existing or proposed wells will be reviewed by
the Interior Health Authority and Building & Permitting.

3. Sanitary Sewer.

a) This subject parcel is currently not within the City service area. Sanitary sewage is
presently handled by an on-site sewage disposal system.

b) Existing and proposed on-site servicing will be reviewed by the Interior Health
Authority and Building & Permitting.

4. Drainage.

A site drainage management plan and design will be a requirement of a development
application.

5.3 Policy & Planning

The Zoning Bylaw and OCP supports wineries, cideries and retail sales. A distillery could be
consistent and in character with these policies, subject to ALC approval.

Should the ALC amend their regulations to allow distilleries it may be appropriate to consider
similar amendments to the Zoning Bylaw and OCP.

5.4 Ministry of Agriculture

This application appears to be a non-farm use application and must be adjudicated by the
Agricultural Land Commission. Should approval be granted to carry out this activity, the Ministry
of Agriculture will make comments related to zoning, land use and the legal framework related
to the operation of the distillery.

5.5 Interior Health Authority

The production of alcohol from apples will not contribute to the food security of Kelowna’s
population. However, if imported apples become unaffordable in the future, the entire parcel of
land could be converted back to its original function and contribute to local food supply. Letter
is attached.

101



A14-0004 - Page 9

5.6 Irrigation District

Southeast Kelowna lIrrigation District has been in communication with the applicant regarding
water servicing requirements.

6.0  Application Chronology

Date of Application Received: April 24, 2014
Application Circulated: May 1, 2014
Agricultural Advisory Committee May 22, 2014

The following recommendation was passed (4 of 4 members present voting in support).
MOVED BY Yvonne Herbison/SECONDED BY Leo Gebert

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council supports Agricultural Land
Reserve Appeal Application No. A14-0004 for the property located at 4410 Wallace Hill Road,
Kelowna, BC for an application to the Agricultural Land Commission under Section 20(3) of the
Agricultural Land Commission Act for a “non-farm use” within the Agricultural Land Reserve to
permit the activity of an apple vodka distillery and tasting room as a value added business to
complement the existing apple orchard.

CARRIED

ANECDOTAL COMMENT:
The Agricultural Advisory Committee noted that there are a significant number of existing
structures on the site and expressed a concern with the number of structures.

Report prepared by:

Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner

Approved for Inclusion: Shelley Gambacort, Director, Land Use Management

Attachments:

Site Photos

Subject Property Map

ALR Map

Distillery / Tasting Room Plans
Statement of Title

102



A14-0004 - Page 10

PHOTOS

Photo 1. Proposed Distillery Site

Photo 2. Proposed Distillery Site from Road

103



A14-0004 - Page 11

Wallace Hill Roac_i

T

s

Pht 3. Proposed Entrance to

) el 3 Py

104



A14-0004 - Page 12

Photo 6: Photo of Proposed Apple Vodka Tasting Room and Distillery Site (Vacant Field)

e h

105



A14-0004 - Page 13

Photo 7: Entrance to RV Park

Photo 8: Existing RV Park

106



A14-0004 - Page 14

d along Wallace Hill Road

Ine

to be retai

Vegetation

Photo 9

Vegetation to be retained on the corner of the Proposed Distillery

Photo 10

B — e TR

107



Map Output Page 1 of 1

APPLICATION A14-0004
SUBJECT PROPERTY

4410 WALLACE HILL RD

I Subject Property

| | | PLAN
1247
150 | B | 148 B | c ||I 145 145 | 144
. |
b _ |
— -

1
| 1
PLAN 1247 4 PLAN 39632 | PLAN 1734
I

PLAN

6171

| 2

1C

PLAN 1734 |

A
PLAN 2290}2
3 | A

P
'Ih.m 79298 | | | g

W I
-—-——,.7,.-___-_# | | E ;
o : | | JUDRE—
1

1
1

| B
1

1

|

1

1

(.

|

| 5 PLAN 22964

| " A1C

WNR 1

kL
PLAN 1734 J PLAN 23358

10 PLAN 74510

o || PLAN 1247 | | |
| | | e’
| . PLAN 74510
. o z 57
. === = g I J“I | PLAN 62784 | o/
Al PLAN 35213 PLAN 53640 [ 3 R g
[ _n | | I ! 'I
mz- J : | 2 I
f /
e = ;{
= ‘(l |
~~ 0
86 785 4 PLAN 627847
| T ,-*_'38;1‘1 J- - .-,.-r}

Map: 1,605 x912 m -- Scale 1:9,476 2014-06-04

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=0Overview Map&Client...

6/4/2014

108



Map Output

Page 1 of 1

APPLICATION A14-0004

ALR

ALR 4410 WALLACE HILL RD

I Subject Property
b

PLAN 6171

8

PLAN 62482 q

PLAN ZZQGL
<4 ‘Iﬁ

l
[
L

[
]
PLAN 1734 | s —

1 [ i Al Y Pan 1734 J
A
Pzrm—mssﬂ

g |
ot

_J_—| r-"-----_—..-_'-a-_.-..-_,.__

ﬁ | 179 |

o | | PLAN 1247 |

bal 13

e o £ I__.'« N
| p{_,qN |37392 ;Pmﬁ 3\ v

City offelowna ! Accuracy and correctness not guarafie

PLAN 22964 10 PLAN 74510

| = e . , ]
———|! . . | G | E FTEQS 'I| 1 ‘| P Imw/ <
.]- ===z wr” | 7 H“TMHH | PLAN 62784 "E}‘HH

\
|r'_ 321 Meters ///

“ o PLAN 35213 FLAN 53640 | ) |5 PLan 22084 [-""’f [ ~
] i P | | i[ | III| | ’ 0;.' .
[ a nﬁ ' ! ) &
B 1 gi "—— ! I | %,
. & . — ——HARVARDRD 4 ,
N8 | s 1 | | Ly i T
86 N 185 4 g { .// \ | | b 3 \ 2=
P e - PLAN 52::;4’ AT | | | LL PLAN ?451_0 \a B
| me?,—;f-'—-— = s / | | AN 62784 - z
| | PLAN 26197 \ 10 11 2. r ,r
[ a /s / r = ~/ / \ ¢ | | | J 5 IIII e /)\\(
| HA / 3 \ \ \ \ _ - > —
. / _ - -
ﬂﬁ&kﬁ}?ﬂ & ¢ -1 J—l == JIPLAN 78581 /""
[ | e ‘/ 1. \ rfcﬂ\ ) T T /

S 8

Map: 1,605 x912 m -- Scale 1:9,476

2014-06-04

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.

The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Subject Properties Arc...

6/4/2014

109



PRELIMINARY SITE INFORMATION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: CIVIC ADDRESS:
LOT 2, PLAN KAP39632, DL 4410 WALLACE HILL ROAD
360, LD 41 KELOWNA, BC

EXISTING
Al

ZONING:

PROPERTY LINE (395.74 m

i = SITE AREA: 82,970.2 m? (8.3 ha)
- 3.0m INT. SIDE YARD SETBACK 893,112.9 sq.ft. (20.5 ac)
MOBILE I @ SETBACKS FRONT YARD: 6.0m
HOME INT. SIDE YARD: 3.0m

EXT. SIDE YARD: 4.0m

EXISTING
; ‘ REAR YARD: 10.0m

BLDG)

%;" HORSE TRACTOR
! STABLE SHED ’ |
(EXISTING ExsTNG' | g
BuLONG) |
STILLER - s gl
PIE(I)CI;TEIRIEF}IEE;S EXISLTH&% % I %—J §> '
FFI 1R
(EXISTING e / s s
BLDG) @f{{ g
; =
LOT 2, PLAN KAP39632, ' ; é Iz
DL 360, LD 41 HH
4410 WALLACE HILL o 1o gal
ROAD, KELOWNA, BC
; - o

RV PARK
OFFICE

' HORSE SHED
(EXISTING
BUILDING)

EXISTING

A=11.12m RV PARK ACCESS

PROPERTY LINE
o |

ROBERT MACKENZIE
ARCHITECT ine.

0 32 64 96 128 160FT fanaimo Avenue East, Penticton, BC
z HJ‘IJ—“L_J—“"L_] Phone 250 490 0558/ Fax 250 490 0533 Z Email robe
wwiv.robertmackenzigarchitect.com

FORBIDDEN DISTILLERY (ISSUED FOR LICENSING)

4410 WALLACE HILL ROAD, KELOWNA, BC

SITE PLAN - 4410 WALLACE HILL ROAD

SCALE: AS NOTED
APRIL 8, 2014

i

i

The Copyng ents, and all re ent: 5 exciug]

of Robert Mackenzie Architect Inc and may not be used, part witidy
expressed written consent of the Architect. The Contractor Is responsible for verifying and field checking all
dimensions, and shall immediately report any errors and/or omissions to the Architect. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.




\f\\tl:‘\u )

' SPECIAL EVENTS/
<. PICNIC ENDORSEMENT ™

PROPOSED
TASTING LOUNGE &
DISTILLERY

EXISTING
RV PARK
ACCESS

-~ WALLACE HILL ROAD PROPOSED SIGN: "RV
‘ TURNING AHEAD"

FORBIDDEN DISTILLERY (ISSUED FOR LICENSING)

4410 WALLACE HILL ROAD, KELOWNA, BC

PARTIAL SITE PLAN - 4410 WALLACE HILL ROAD

SCALE AS NOTED
APRIL 8, 2014

0 20 30 40 50 BOFT

< Fa =l el =

%

E
EXISTING

RV PARK
OFFICE
(EXISTING
{ BUILDING,

ROBERT MACKENZIE
ARCHITECT ine. |

102:- 100 Nanatmo Avenue East, l”cnllg"(nn. BC V2A IMH

Phone 250490 0558 Fax 250 490 0538 7 Email robert-nhat@itelus.net
wwviv.robertmackenzitarchitect.com

i ‘

The Copyrig awing, its contents, and all re doct S is d and remains the exclusy]

of Robert nzie Architect Inc and may not be used, modified, or reproduced in whaole or in part witho
expressed written consent of the Architect. The Conlractor is responsible for verifying and field checking all
dimensions, and shall immediately report any errors and/or omissions to the Architect. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.




OANNATA

LAND TITLE OFFICE

STATE OF TITLE CERTIFICATE
Certificate Number: STSA0007238

C WILSON
4410 WALLACE HILL RD
KELOWNA BC VIWA4C3

000069

I certify this to be an accurate reproduction of title number CA2047646 at 00:21 this 15th day of May, 2014.

beland :Z:
O
§:

REGISTRAR OF LAND TITLES 25 Tideasuvey S
Land Title District KAMLOOPS
Land Title Office KAMLOOPS
Title Number CA2047646
From Title Number X258703
Application Received 2011-06-08
Application Entered 2011-06-14
Registered Owner in Fee Simple
Registered Owner/Mailing Address: CHARLES BLAIR WILSON, BUSINESSMAN
KELLY JANINE WILSON, HOMEMAKER
4410 WALLACE HILL ROAD ‘
KELOWNA, BC
V1w 4C3
AS JOINT TENANTS
Taxation Authority CITY OF KELOWNA
SOUTH EAST KELOWNA IRRIGATION DISTRICT
Description of Land
Parcel Identifier: 010-985-549
Legal Description:
LOT 2 DISTRICT LOT 360 OSOYOQS DIVISION YALE DISTRICT PLAN 39632
Title Number: CA2047646 State of Title Certificate Page 1 of 3

TONNNAT7A NNINKRRR1 nnaR

112



LAND TITLE OFFICE

STATE OF TITLE CERTIFICATE
Certificate Number: STSA0007238

Legal Notations
THIS CERTIFICATE OF TITLE MAY BE AFFECTED BY THE AGRICULTURAL LAND
COMMISSION ACT SEE PLAN M11328

Chafges, Liens and Interests

P0000175

Nature:
Registration Number:

Registration Date and Time:

Registered Owner:
Remarks:

Nature: .
Registration Number:

Registration Date and Time:

Registered Owner:

Remarks:

Nature:
Registration Number:

Registration Date and Time:

Registered Owner:
Remarks:

Nature:
Registration Number:

Registration Date and Time:

Registered Owner:

Nature:
Registration Number:

Registration Date and Time:

Registered Owner:

Nature:
Registration Number:

Registration Date and Time:

Registered Owner:

Title Number: CA2047646
10000175 C 00208551 0096

RIGHT OF WAY

K45798

1975-09-02 12:47

SOUTH EAST KELOWNA IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PART ON PLAN A11157

- COVENANT : e -~ -

X258701

1988-05-16 15:11

CITY OF KELOWNA AND

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN

IN RIGHT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
C/O MINISTRY OF ENVIRONMENT

INCLUDES INDEMNITY UNDER SECTION 215(2)(A) LTA
WITH PRIORITY OVER X175678 INTER ALIA

COVENANT

X258707

1988-05-16 15:12

CITY OF KELOWNA

INTER ALIA; PART ON PLAN 39634 WITH PRIORITY OVER
X175678 PURSUANT TO SEC 578(4) MUNICIPAL ACT

MORTGAGE

CA2047647

2011-06-08 11:21
CANADIAN WESTERN BANK

ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS
CA2047648

2011-06-08 11:21
CANADIAN WESTERN BANK

MORTGAGE
CA2047758
2011-06-08 11:41
REGINALD TOMIYE
DONNA TOMIYE

AS JOINT TENANTS

State of Title Certificate

Page 2 of 3

113



POO0D176

LAND TITLE OFFICE

STATE OF TITLE CERTIFICATE
Certificate Number: STSA0007238

Nature: STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY
Registration Number: LB489231
~ Registration Date and Time: 2011-11-01 10:16
Registered Owner: FORTISBC INC.
Duplicate Indefeasible Title NONE OUTSTANDING
Transfers NONE
Pending Applications NONE

This certificate is to be read subject to the provisions of section 23(2) of the Land Title Act(R.S.B.C. 1996 Chapter
250) and may be affected by sections 50 and 55-58 of the Land Act (R.S.B.C. 1996 Chapter 245).

Title Number: CA2047646 State of Title Certificate Page 3 of 3
70000176 C 00206551 0096

114



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10946
Z14-0011 - David and Pamela Watland
412 Christleton Avenue

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 2, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 4366 located on Christleton Avenue,
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c - Large Lot Housing
with Carriage House zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 14" day of April, 2014.
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 29" day of April, 2014.
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 29" day of April, 2014.

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk

115




Report to Council

Date: 6/4/2014 City of

e 114053 Kelowna

To: City Manager

From: J. Saufferer, Manager, Property Management
Subject: City Park Water Activity Concession
Recommendation:

THAT Council approves the City entering into a three (3) year License of Occupation, with
Kelowna Wibit, for a Non-Motorized Water Activity Concession at City Park, with the option to
renew for two (2) additional one (1) year terms, in the form attached to the Report of the
Manager, Property Management, dated June 4, 2014;

AND FURTHER THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute all documents
associated with the License of Occupation.

Purpose:

To obtain Council support to enter into a three (3) year License of Occupation, with two (2)
one year (1) renewal periods (attached as Schedule A), for a City Park non-motorized water
activity concession with Kelowna Wibit.

Background:

As the result of a recently advertised activity concession opportunity, the City of Kelowna’s
Property Management branch received a number of bids for the operation of a non-motorized
water activity concession in City Park. Per the bid request (attached as Schedule ‘B’), key
requirements and conditions relating to the bid opportunity were as follows:

e The water activity concession was to be located at the north end of City Park,
adjacent to the former aquatic area (see Schedule C);

e The concession was to operate from May 15 to September 15%";

e A contract was to be awarded based on a three year contract term, with two 1 year
renewal periods (at the City’s discretion); and,

e The contractor was required to provide site security and supervision.

The selected proponent, Kelowna Wibit, has proposed an aqua-park concept based on a
product by Wibit Sports (www.wibitsports.com), one of the world’s leading producers of aqua
sports parks. The proposed water park consists of interlocking inflatable modules with a
maximum capacity of up to 60 individuals. The proposed Wibit product Sport Pak 60+ is built

116


http://www.wibitsports.com/

City Manager
6/4/2014
Page 2 of 4 Pages

for open water operation and has been successfully implemented in similar lake settings. The
proposed operation would have an inflatable kiosk where customers would pay for the activity
and receive their life jacket.

After paying and receiving safety and use instructions, users are permitted access to the
water park for a set period of time, after which they must return to the staging area to limit
the amount of time spent on the open water. Fees are expected to be in the range of $25 per
person for a one-day pass, with hours of operation from approximately 10:00 am to 8:00 pm,
daily.

The operator has made provisions to ensure the highest standards of life safety measures are
met. To this end, all staff will be required to have a first aid certificate, a minimum of two
lifeguards will be on-site during operational hours and all participants will be required to
wear properly fitting life jackets. The site will also be secured with 24 hour security to
prevent vandalism and unsupervised use of the water park.

Kelowna Wibit

Kelowna Wibit has extensive experience in the operations and management of water sport
activities, including various boat rental companies in Penticton, Summerland and Osoyoos. A
complete copy of the selected bid package is attached to this report as Schedule D.

Advantages

The proposed water park activity concession is a unique opportunity for the City of Kelowna
to further enhance our active, vibrant waterfront for residents and to create a tourism
feature that differentiates our community.Key advantages of the proposed concession include
the following:

¢ Animation of the City’s beach and waterfront, particularly the lesser used area around
the former aquatic centre;

Promotes active living;

Unique tourism experience for visitors;

Wellness attraction for residents that may draw multiple visits per year;

The creation of 12-16 part-time jobs;

Excellent integration with existing City infrastructure in the area (children’s water
park and public washrooms); and,

e Generation of additional revenue from City assets.

Process

Council endorsement of the proposed License of Occupation would result in the proponent
proceeding to obtain the necessary regulatory approvals for the construction of the water
park. As the location of the proposed water park is within a City-owned water lot, further
government approval related to the granting of land tenure rights for the water park is not
required; however, it will be the proponent’s responsibility, at their sole cost, to obtain the

117



City Manager
6/4/2014
Page 3 of 4 Pages

necessary environmental, engineering, and other permits as required for the construction of
the park and the placement of the various anchors.

Financial/Budgetary Considerations:

Kelowna Wibit has provided a staged compensation bid to the City of Kelowna, with
concession fees escalating by $1,000 per year over the three year term of the bid and the two
potential one-year renewal periods. A summary of the proposed bid package compensation is
provided below.

Summary of Compensation to City of Kelowna

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Renewal #1 Renewal #2
Compensation $8,000* $9,000 $10,000
Total 527,000 $11,000 $12,000
*Note: Year 1 compensation would be pro-rated based on length of operating season

The total value of the three-year contract term is in the range of $27,000. Assuming the
concession is renewed for the two additional renewal periods, total revenues associated with
the water park concession would be approximately $50,000.

Internal Circulation

Manager, Risk Management

Manager, Parks Services

Manager, Park & Building Planning
Divisional Director, Active Living & Culture

Considerations not applicable to this report:
Legal/Statutory Authority:

Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements:
Existing Policy:

Personnel Implications:

External Agency/Public Comments:
Communications Comments:

Alternate Recommendation:

In light of the above, the Property Management branch of the Real Estate department
requests Council’s support of the proposed License of Occupation.

Submitted by: J. Saufferer, Manager, Property Management

Approved for inclusion: D. Edstrom, Director, Real Estate Services

Attachments:
1. Schedule A - License of Occupation -Kelowna Wibit
2. Schedule B - Bid Request Document
3. Schedule C - Proposed Water Concession Location
4. Schedule D - Winning Bid Package (Kelowna Wibit)
5. PowerPoint

118



City Manager
6/4/2014
Page 4 of 4 Pages

CcC:

L. Kayfish, Manager, Risk Management

I. Wilson, Manager, Parks Services

T. Barton, Manager, Park & Building Planning

J. Gabriel, Divisional Director, Active Living & Culture
G. Davidson, Director, Financial Services

G. Filafilo, Manager, Financial Projects

119



LICENSE OF OCCUPATION
Non-Motorized Water Activity Concession
City Park North End - 2014

BETWEEN:

CITY OF KELOWNA
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, British Columbia V1Y 1J4
OF THE FIRST PART
AND:

KELOWNA WIBIT
6020 Nixon Road
Summerland, British Columbia VOH 1Z9

(the “Contractor”)
OF THE SECOND PART

WHEREAS the City desires to appoint the services of the Contractor to provide
Activity Concession services (the “Services”) at City Park at 1600 Abbott Street,
Kelowna, BC.

NOW THEREFORE this Agreement witnesses that the parties hereby covenant
and agree with each other as follows:

Services

The Contractor shall provide services on the terms and conditions set out in
this Agreement and are binding upon the parties.

Appendices

The following attached Appendices are a part of this Agreement:
Appendix A - Insurance Requirements
Appendix B - Scope of Services
Appendix C - Fees - Schedule
Appendix D - Premise
Appendix E - Kelowna Wibit Bid Submission May 2014
Appendix F - Contractor Coordination Program

If there is any inconsistency or conflict between the provisions of the Agreement and
the Appendices, the Agreement shall govern and take precedence over all other
Contract Documents.

AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.0  Definitions (For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
meanings set forth below):

Page 1 of 29

120



“Agreement” means the executed agreement between the City and the
successful Contractor on the terms and conditions set out in this document;

“Agreement Administrator” refers to the individual appointed by the
Manager, Property Management to administer this Agreement on behalf of the
City, and any participating members and other authorized purchasers;

“City’s Representative” means the Manager, Property Management or
designate;

“Contractor Coordination Program” means the Prime Contract Agreement,
Contractor Coordination Program Guide, Prime Contractor Designation Form
and Application for Safety Pre-Qualification documents;

“Department” means the Real Estate & Building Services department of the
City of Kelowna

“Department Representative” means the Manager, Property Management,
who shall represent all City Departments for the purposes of this Agreement,
or, such other person who may subsequently be appointed in writing by the
Department Representative and notified to the Contractor;

“Event of Default” references Article 6.1(c);

“Force Majeure” shall mean failures which occur for reasons beyond the
reasonable control of the non-performing party, which include acts of God,
acts of any governmental authority, strikes, blacklisting, embargo, and lockouts
or other industrial disturbances not related to that Party, acts of the public
enemy, wars, blockades, insurrections, explosions, rebellions, revolutions,
riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, storms, subsidence, floods,
fires, high waters, washouts, orders or acts of civil or military authorities, or
civil disturbances, but it shall not include: any inability to fulfill its financial
obligations or financial difficulty or condition, insolvency, or any court
protection from creditors or any other occurrence similar to those recited,
which is beyond the reasonable control of the non-performing party;

“G.S.T.” means any Goods and Services Tax payable in connection with the
goods and services pursuant to the Excise Tax Act of Canada and shall also
include any sales, value added or like taxes as well as any capital tax adopted
by any lawful authority as may be amended from time to time;

“Term” means the term as specified in Section 5.0;
“Schedule” means a schedule to this agreement;

“Seasonal Term” as used herein shall mean a four-month period in each year
from May 15" to September 15, 2014; May 15 to September 15, 2015;

Page 2 of 29

121



2.0

May 15" to September 15", 2016, May 15™ to September 15", 2017; and
May 15" to September 15", 2018 in the Term.

Interpretations

(@) “Authorized”, “directed”, “required”, “requested”, “approved”,
“ordered”, “sanctioned”, and “satisfactory” shall, unless some other
meaning is obvious from the context, respectively mean authorized,
directed, required, requested, approved, ordered or sanctioned by, or
satisfactory to, the City;

(b) “Determination” shall mean the written documentation of a decision of
the City’s Representative including findings of fact to support a
decision. A Determination becomes part of the procurement file to
which it pertains;

(c) the Heading and Subheadings inserted in this Agreement are designed
for convenience only and do not form a part of this Agreement nor are
they intended to interpret, define, or limit the scope, extent, or intent
of this Agreement or any provision thereof;

(d) the word “including”, when following any general statement, term or
matter, shall not be construed to limit such general statement, term or
matter to the specific items or matters set forth immediately following
such word or to similar items or matters, whether or not non-limiting
language (such as “without limitation” or “but not limited to” or words
of similar import) is used with reference thereto but rather shall be
deemed to refer to all other items or matters that could reasonably fall
within the broadest possible scope of such general statement, term or
matter;

(e) any reference to a statute shall include and shall be deemed to be a
reference to such statute and to the regulations made pursuant thereto,
as amended and in force from time to time, and to any statute or
regulation that may be passed which has the effect of supplement or
superseding the same;

(f) no approval, authorization, sanction or permission required to be
provided hereunder shall be unreasonably or arbitrarily withheld or
delayed by the party providing same; and

(2) words importing the masculine gender include the feminine or neuter
gender and words in the singular include the plural, and vice versa and
words importing individuals shall include firms and corporations, and
vice versa.

Page 3 of 29

122



3.0

3.1

Representations of Contractor

The Contractor covenants, represents and warrants to the City that:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

()

Contractor is a duly organized, validly existing and legally entitled to
carry on business in British Columbia and is in good standing with
respect to filings of annual reports according to the records of the
Registrar of Companies of British Columbia;

Contractor has the power and capacity to enter into this Agreement and
to comply with every term and condition of this Agreement;

all necessary proceedings have been taken to authorize Contractor to
enter into this Agreement and to execute and deliver this Agreement;

this Agreement has been properly executed by Contractor and is
enforceable against Contractor in accordance with its terms;

any statement, representation or information, whether oral or written,
made furnished or given by Contractor, its directors, officers or anyone
acting on behalf of Contractor, to the City in connection with this
Agreement is materially correct and accurate;

Contractor has no knowledge of any fact that materially adversely
affects or, so far as it can be foreseen, might materially adversely
affect either its financial condition or its ability to fulfill its obligations
under this Agreement;

the observance and performance of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement will not constitute a breach by it or a default by it under any
statute, regulation or bylaw of Canada or of the Province of British
Columbia applicable to or binding on, its contracting documents, or any
contract or agreement to which it is a party;

Contractor is neither a party to nor threatened with any litigation and
has no knowledge of any claims against it that would materially
adversely affect its financial condition or its ability to fulfill its
obligations under this Agreement;

Contractor has filed all tax, corporate information and other returns
required to be filed by the laws of British Columbia and Canada, and has
complied with all Workers’ Compensation legislation and other similar
legislation to which it is subject and has paid all taxes, fees and
assessments due by Contractor under those laws as of the reference
date of this Agreement;

Contractor holds all permits, licenses, consents and authorities issued

by any level of government, or any agency of any level of government,
that are required by law to conduct its business;

Page 4 of 29

123



)

(m)

(n)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(®)

(u)

v)

Contractor’s investigation has been based on its own examination,
knowledge, information and judgment and not upon any statement,
representation or information made or given by or on behalf of the City;

Contractor accepts the risks assigned within this Agreement identified
as being borne by Contractor;

Contractor has sufficient trained staff, facilities, materials, appropriate
equipment and approved sub-contractual agreements in place and
available to enable it to fully perform the work;

Contractor pays punctually as they become due, all accounts, expenses,
wages, salaries, taxes, rates, fees and assessments required to be paid
by it on any of its undertakings;

Contractor has investigated and satisfied itself of every condition
affecting the work including labour, equipment and material to be
provided; but not limited to, the standards, responsibilities, task
schedules and subsequent written instructions if any, all as prepared by
the City;

Contractor acknowledges that it has the responsibility for informing itself
of all aspects of the work and all information necessary to perform the
work;

Contractor will comply with all the requirements of the Agreement and
will perform all work and supply all labour, equipment and materials
necessary to do so;

Contractor is an independent Contractor and not the servant, employee,
partner, or agent of the City;

Contractor will not, in any manner whatsoever, commit or purport to
commit the City to the payment of any money to any person;

no partnership, joint venture, or agency involving the City is created by
this Agreement or under this Agreement;

the City may, from time to time, give such instructions to Contractor as
the City considers necessary in connection with provision of the work,
which instructions Contractor will comply with, but Contractor will not
be subject to the control of City with respect to the manner in which
such instructions are carried out;

all employees and sub-contractors employed by Contractor to provide
the work are at all times the employees and sub-contractors of
Contractor and not of the City. Contractor is solely responsible for
arranging all matters arising out of the relationship of employer and
employee, and

Page 5 of 29

124



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

(w)

Contractor has independently reviewed all labour relations issues related
to the performance of Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement.

General Obligations of Contractor

Contractor shall:

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

()

(¢

(h)
(i)

Term

offer Activity Concession services, as set out in the Scope of Services
attached as Schedule “B”;

enter into a Prime Contractor Agreement with the City;

perform and contract in its own name and for its sole account for all
things necessary or desirable for the proper and efficient provision of
Mobile Concession services during the term;

use its best endeavours to provide the services to the City in a timely
manner and in accordance with the terms of the Contract;

ensure that all its employees engaged in this contract are suitably
qualified and experienced, and act to the best of their skills and ability
and in accordance with accepted Mobile Concession standards for persons
having those qualifications and experience;

follow all instructions of the City’s Manager, Property Management in
respect of the performance by Contractor of its obligations under this
contract and as set out in the Mobile Food Vending Concession Bid
Package submitted by Kelowna Wibit dated May 9, 2014 and attached as
Schedule “E” and cooperate fully with the various departments and act in
good faith towards the City;

maintain clear communication lines with staff in order to offer the best
customer service;

comply with all laws; and

only use the facilities provided by the City for the purposes of this
Contract.

Collectively, the Initial Term and Renewal Term are referred to as the
“Seasonal Term”.

Page 6 of 29

125



5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

Initial Term

The term of the “Agreement” shall be for a four (4) month period running from
May 31°% to September 15" in 2014, May 15" to September 15", in 2015 and May
15" to September 15%, in 2016, and will expire no later than September 15",
2016, subject to specific termination rights in this document and subject to a
first option to extend the Agreement at the sole and exclusive discretion of the
Manager, Property Management.

Renewal Term

The City agrees that prior to entering into discussions with any third party with
respect to the supply and/or advertising of a Mobile Concession for the period
commencing after the end of the Initial Term, the City may in its sole
discretion with respect to each renewal term renew this Agreement for an
additional year to a maximum of two (2), one (1)-year renewals following the
completion of the Initial Term.

No later than ninety (90) days prior to the start of the optional second
consecutive term of the Agreement, the City may exercise an option to renew
for an additional season in 2017, provided the Contractor is in total compliance
with all the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

The City of Kelowna shall notify the Contractor of its intentions to exercise the
aforementioned option in writing.

Termination - City
This Agreement will terminate:

(@) at the expiration of the initial term, unless extended by mutual
agreement; or

(b) If at any time there occurs an Event of Default (defined below), the City
may give written notice (“Notice of Complaint”) to Contractor specifying
in reasonable detail the Event of Default. If Contractor shall fail to
perform or observe any covenant, condition or agreement to be
performed or observed herein and such Event of Default continues un-
remedied for a period of seven (7) days after receiving the Notice of
Complaint thereof from the City, then the City may, at its option,
terminate this Agreement forthwith without prejudice to any other rights
it may have in law or equity. If this Agreement is terminated by the City,
Contractor shall be entitled to an immediate pro-rata refund of all
unearned monies paid in advance to the City, as determined by mutual
agreement.

(c) For the purposes hereof, “Event of Default” shall mean any one or more
of the following:

Page 7 of 29

126



7.0

(i) if Contractor fails to observe, perform and keep each and every
one of the covenants, agreements, provisions, stipulations and
conditions to be observed, performed and kept by Contractor in
this Agreement, or any agreement entered into pursuant to any
such agreements;

(i1) if Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, makes a general assignment
for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on
account of its insolvency;

(iii) if Contractor has made an assignment of the Agreement without
the required consent of the City; and

(iv) if Contractor fails to provide Activity Concession services as
required under the terms of this Agreement.

(d) The City may conduct inspections, audits, and assessments of
Contractor’s performance to verify that all duties, financial records,
responsibilities and obligations of Contractor are being performed in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and to the quality
standards set out in this Agreement.

Dispute Resolution Procedures

The parties will make reasonable efforts to resolve any dispute, claim or
controversy arising out of this agreement or related to this agreement
(“Dispute”) using the dispute resolution procedures set out in this section.

(a) Negotiation

The parties will make reasonable efforts to resolve any Dispute by
amicable negotiations and will provide frank, candid and timely disclosure of
all relevant facts, information and documents to facilitate negotiations.

(b) Mediation

If all or any portion of a dispute cannot be resolved by good faith
negotiations within 30 days, either party may by notice to the other party refer
the matter to mediation. Within 7 days of delivery of the notice, the parties
will mutually appoint a mediator. If the parties fail to agree on the
appointment of the mediator, then either party may apply to the British
Columbia International Commercial Arbitration Centre for appointment of a
mediator. The parties will continue to negotiate in good faith to resolve the
Dispute with the assistance of the mediator. The place of mediation will be
Kelowna, British Columbia. Each party will equally bear the costs of the
mediator and other out-of pocket costs and each party will bear its own costs
of participating in the mediation.

Page 8 of 29

127



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.0

10.1

Compensation to the City

The initial Agreement, with an optional renewal for the following years, will
commence immediately upon authorization of an Agreement for a Non-
Motorized Water Activity Concession in City Park. The Proponent will pay a
monthly fee as detailed in Appendix C Fees Schedule.

Independent Contractor

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as to constitute a partnership
between the City and Contractor. The duties to be performed and the
obligations assumed by Contractor under this Agreement shall be performed
and assumed by it as an independent Contractor and not an agent or in any
other way a representative of the City. In no circumstances shall Contractor
have any authority to represent or contract on behalf of or otherwise bind the
City.

Contractor is and shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement
be an independent Contractor, and at no time shall Contractor be considered
an agent, servant, or partner of the City; and all persons employed by
Contractor to perform its obligations under the Agreement shall be its
employees or servants and not the employees, servant, or agents of the City.

Employees

The Contractor shall not employ on the work any unfit person or anyone not
skilled in the work assigned, and shall devote only his best-qualified personnel
to work on this project. Should the City deem anyone employed on the work
incompetent or unfit for his duties, and so inform the Contractor, Contractor
shall immediately remove such person from work under this contract and
he/she shall not again, without written permission of the City, be assigned to
work under this contract. All Contractor employees working in the City must
complete and clear a criminal record check.

Liaison

Each party shall maintain liaison with the other party in accordance with their
respective obligations under this Agreement. In particular:

e Contractor shall appoint a representative (“Contractor’s Representative”)
who shall have the duty of instituting and maintaining liaison with the City
as to the requirements of this Agreement, plus an alternative
representative to so act in the absence or inability to act of Contractor’s
Representative; and

e The City shall appoint a representative (“City’s Representative”) who shall
have the duty of instituting and maintaining liaison with Contractor as to
the requirements of this Agreement, plus an alternative representative to
so act in the absence or inability to act of the City’s Representative.

Page 9 of 29

128



10.2

12.0

12.1

12.2

Each party’s representative shall have the full power and authority to act on
behalf of and to bind such party in all administrative issues and to carry out
such party’s obligations hereunder and each party’s representative may be
relied upon by the other party as the official representative of such party.
Meetings between the Contractor Representative and the City’s Representative
may be held by telephone with the consent of all parties participating in such
meetings. Each party may change their respective representative or
alternative representative by written notice to the other.

Governing Law

This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Province of British Columbia, which shall be deemed to be the
proper law hereof. The courts of British Columbia shall have jurisdiction (but
not exclusive jurisdiction) to entertain and determine all disputes and claims,
whether for specific performance, injunction, declaration or otherwise arising
out of or in any way connected with the construction, breach, or alleged,
threatened or anticipated breach of this Contract and shall have jurisdiction to
hear and determine all questions as to the validity, existence or enforceability
hereof. For the purposes of any legal actions or proceedings brought by the
City in respect of this Contract, the Contractor hereby irrevocably submits and
attorns to the jurisdiction of the courts of British Columbia and acknowledges
their competence and the convenience and proprietary of the venue and agrees
to be bound by any judgment thereof and not to seek, and hereby waives, any
review of its merits by the courts of any jurisdiction.

Notwithstanding any provisions herein, the Contractor(s) shall in the
performance of the contract comply with provisions of The Employment
Standards Act and Regulations of British Columbia and City of Kelowna Policies
and By-laws and Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Policies and By-laws
and any amendment thereto and without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Contractor(s) shall pay all of the Contractor(s) employees as
required by the Act and the regulations then in force.

Waiver - City

Any failure of the City at any time or from time to time, to enforce or require
the strict keeping and performance of any of the terms or conditions of this
Agreement, shall not constitute a waiver of such terms or conditions and shall
not affect or impair any terms or conditions in any way or the right of the City
at any time to avail itself of such remedies as it may have for any breach of
such terms or conditions.

No action or want of action on the part of the City at any time to exercise any

rights or remedies conferred upon it under the Agreement shall be deemed to
be a waiver on the part of the City of any of its said rights or remedies.

Page 10 of 29

129



13.0

13.1

13.2

14.0

14.1

14.2

15.0

16.0

17.0

Waiver - Contractor

Any failure of the Contractor at any time or from time to time, to enforce or
require the strict keeping and performance of any of the terms or conditions of
this Agreement, shall not constitute a waiver of such terms or conditions and
shall not affect or impair any terms or conditions in any way or the right of the
Contractor at any time to avail itself of such remedies as it may have for any
breach of such terms or conditions.

No action or want of action on the part of the Contractor at any time to
exercise any rights or remedies conferred upon it under the Agreement shall be
deemed to be a waiver on the part of the Contractor of any of its said rights or
remedies.

Subcontractors

Contractor shall not subcontract the whole of the work nor shall any part of the
work be subcontracted without the prior written consent of the City’s
Representative, which consent may not be arbitrarily withheld in the City
Representative’s sole discretion.

The subcontracting of any of its duties, obligations or responsibilities of
Contractor under this Agreement shall not relieve it of the responsibility for
the proper commencement, execution or completion of the duties, obligations
or responsibilities as set out herein and Contractor shall be fully responsible for
the acts, omissions and debts of its subcontractors.

Amendments

No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding on either party hereto unless
such amendment is in writing and executed by both parties with the same
formality as this Agreement is executed.

Survival of Covenants

All obligations of each of the parties which expressly or by their nature survive
termination or expiration or assighment of this Agreement including, without
limitation, the indemnities in section 20.0 shall continue in full force and
effect subsequent to and not-withstanding such termination or expiration or
assignment and until they are satisfied or by their nature expire.

Confidentiality of Information

The Contractor should be aware that the City of Kelowna is a “public body”
defined by and subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy

Act of British Columbia.

Page 11 of 29

130



18.0

19.0

20.0

21.0

Non Assignability

This Agreement may not be assigned by Contractor without the prior written
consent of the City. For the purpose of this Agreement, a change in the
corporate control of Contractor, shall be deemed to be an assignment requiring
the consent of the City pursuant to the terms hereof.

Joint and Several

If this Agreement is executed by more than one person, firm or Corporation, it
is understood and agreed that all persons, firms or Corporations executing this
Agreement are jointly and severally liable under and bound by this Agreement.

Force Majeure

Except for defaults of subcontractors, neither party shall be responsible for delays
or failures in performance resulting from acts beyond the control of the offending
party. Such acts shall include but shall not be limited to acts of God, fire, flood,
earthquake, other natural disasters, nuclear accident, strike, lockout, riot,
freight embargo, public regulated utility, or governmental statutes or regulations
superimposed after the fact. If a delay or failure in performance by Contractor
arises out of a default of its subcontractor, and if such default arose out of causes
beyond the control of both Contractor and subcontractor, and without the fault
or negligence of either of them, Contractor shall not be liable for damages of
such delay or failure, unless the products or services to be furnished by the
subcontractor were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit
Contractor to meet the required performance schedule, (where provided).

Insurance & Indemnity

Indemnity Save Harmless

Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected officials,
officers, employees and agents, from and against all claims, liabilities,
demands, actions, proceedings, loss and expense (including legal costs)
whatsoever for damage to or destruction or loss of property and loss of use
thereof, and injury to or death of any person or persons arising directly or
indirectly out of (i) the installation, operation, use, relocation, removal,
maintenance and/or repair of any/all equipment or of property of Contractor
(i) the performance, purported performance or non-performance of this
Agreement, or (iii) any act of negligence, willful misconduct or omission by
Contractor, its employees subcontractors and agents except only where such
death, injury to persons or damage to property is due to the sole negligence of
the City.

Page 12 of 29

131



21.2

21.3

22.0

22.1

22.2

22.3

Insurance

The Contractor shall, without limiting it obligations or liabilities herein and at
its own expense, provide and maintain the following insurances in forms and
amounts acceptable to the City as detailed in Appendix A

Compliance with Statutes, By-laws & Regulations

The Contractor shall in the performance of the Agreement, comply with all
applicable City By-laws, and all amendments thereto and The Consumer
Protection Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c.69, and any other applicable acts or
regulations.

All equipment/vehicles used for the work outlined in the Agreement must
comply with the Motor Vehicle Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, Chapter 318 and
Regulations, as amended and the Commercial Transport Act, R.S5.B.C. 1996,
Chapter 58 and Regulations, as amended.

All principal vehicles of the Contractor will be identified with signs setting out
its name and telephone number. Employee owned vehicles, which may be
periodically used for company business, will not necessarily be marked.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Contractor agrees that it is the Prime Contractor for the purposes of the
Workers Compensation Act. The Contractor shall have an occupational health
and safety program acceptable to the WorkSafe BC Board and shall ensure that
all WorkSafe BC Health & Safety Regulations are observed during performance
of this Contract, not only by the Contractor, but by all workers,
subcontractors, employees, personnel, servants and others engaged in the
performance of this Contract.

The Contractor and its workers, subcontractors, employees, personnel,
servants and others engaged in the Services shall conform to all current
occupational health and safety laws, by-laws, or regulations of the Province of
British Columbia including any regulations requiring installation or adoption of
safety devices or appliances. The City may, on twenty-four (24) hours written
notice to the Contractor, suspend the Services hereunder immediately as a
result of failure to install such devices or because the conditions of immediate
danger exist that would be likely to result in injury to any person. Such
suspension will continue until the default or failure is corrected.

Without limiting the generality of any other indemnities granted by the
Contractor herein, the Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City
against any loss or expense or penalty suffered or incurred by the City by
reason of failure of the Contractor, its agents or employees, or any
subcontractors of the Contractor, its agents or employees to comply or ensure
compliance with the health and safety laws, by-laws and regulations mentioned
above.

Page 13 of 29

132



23.0

23:1

23,2

23.3

24.0

WorkSafe BC Coverage

The Contractor agrees that it shall, at its own expense, procure and carry or
cause to be procured and carried and paid for full WorkSafe BC coverage for
itself and all workers, subcontractors, employees, personnel, servants and
others engaged in or upon any Services. The Contractor agrees that the City
has the unfettered right to set off the amount of the unpaid premiums and
assessments for such WorkSafe BC coverage against any monies owing by the
City to the Contractor. The City shall have the right to withhold payment
under this Contract until the WorkSafe BC premiums, assessments or penalties
in respect of the Services done or Services performed in fulfilling this Contract
have been paid in full.

The Contractor shall provide the City with the Contractor’s WorkSafe BC
registration number and a letter from the WorkSafe BC confirming that the
Contractor is registered in good standing with the WorkSafe BC and that all
assessments have been paid to the date thereof prior to the City having any
obligations to pay monies under this Contract.

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from all manner of
claims, demands, costs, losses, penalties and proceedings arising out of or in
any way related to unpaid WorkSafe BC assessments owing from any person or
corporation engaged in the performance of this Contract or arising out of or in
any way related to the failure to observe safety rules, regulations and practices
of WorkSafe BC, including penalties levied by WorkSafe BC.

Conflict of Interest

A council member or any employee of the City shall not have a direct or
indirect interest in a Company or own a Company that is the successful
Contractor.

The Contractor shall disclose to the City prior to accepting the contract, any
potential conflict of interest. If such a conflict of interest does exist, the City
may, at its sole discretion, withhold the contract from the Contractor until the
matter is suitably resolved. And further, that if during the conduct of the
contract, the Contractor is retained by another client giving cause to a
potential conflict of interest, then the Contractor shall so inform the City. If a
significant conflict of interest is deemed by the City to exist, then the
Contractor shall refuse the contract or shall take such steps as are necessary to
remove the conflict of interest.

Contractor shall disclose to the City Representative, prior to awarding of the
Contract, any actual, potential or apparent conflict of interest. If such a
conflict of interest does exist, the City may, at its discretion, withhold the
Contract from the Contractor until the matter is resolved to the satisfaction of
the City.

Page 14 of 29

133



25.0

26.0

27.0

28.0

Contractor will upon request, provide all pertinent information regarding
ownership of their company. This information to be supplied within forty-eight
(48) hours after request.

Non-liability of City Officials

Under no circumstances shall any officer, employee, or agent of the City of
Kelowna acting within the course and scope of his/her City responsibility be
personally liable to the Contractor, or any party claim through or on behalf of
the Contractor, with regards to the contract, including but not limited to its
negotiation, execution, performance, or termination.

Protection and Security

a) Acknowledgment of Proprietary Materials/Limitations on Use. Contractor
acknowledges that the records are unpublished work for purposes of copyright
law and embodies valuable confidential and secret information of the City.
The Contractor will treat such information so received in confidence and will
not use, copy, disclose, nor permit any of its personnel to use, copy, or
disclose the same for any purpose that is not specifically authorized under the
Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, nothing herein shall prevent the
Contractor from utilizing same or similar information, if it is independently
provided by a third party or independently developed in-house.

b) Property Rights. Each party acknowledges and agrees that the other party’s
products and all other material related thereto constitute valuable trade
secrets of the party furnishing the products or materials, or proprietary and
confidential information of such party, and title thereto remains in such party.
All applicable copyrights, trade secrets, patents and other intellectual and
property rights in the products and related material are and remain in the
party furnishing such products. All other aspects of the products and related
material, including without limitation, technologies, procedures, programs,
methods of processing, specific design and structure of individual programs and
their interaction.

Business Licence

The Contractor shall have or obtain a City of Kelowna Business License and

shall keep the license current for the duration of the contract term.
Contractor Performance Review

Contractor’s performance will be evaluated by the City no less than annually on
the following criteria:

5

<%

Volume of customer complaints.

Service levels.

Cleanliness of sites.

Adherence to the terms and conditions of this agreement.

5

A

2o

A

D
0.0

Page 15 of 29

134



29.0

29.1

30.0

31.0

31.1

31.2

31.3

Business Review & Planning

Contractor agrees to conduct annual business review meetings with Property
Management Department Representatives if required.

Enurement

This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
permitted assigns.

Service of Notices

All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given
hereunder shall be in writing and may be given by (i) facsimile transmission, if
the matter is urgent or immediate; (ii) personally delivered; or (iii) transmitted
by prepaid registered mail, to the party to whom such notice or
communications is being given at the following address or fax number:

To the City

(City Representative)

Attention: John Saufferer

Manager, Property Management

City of Kelowna

1435 Water Street, Kelowna, British Columbia V1Y 1J4

Telephone: 250-469-8658 Fax No.: 250-862-3349

E-mail:  jsaufferer@kelowna.ca

(Contractor Representative)

Attention: Rylie Gallagher

Name of Contractor: Kelowna Wibit

Address: 6020 Nixon Road

Summerland, British Columbia VOH 1Z9

Telephone 250-462-8770 Fax No.:250-494-0570

E-mail: ryliegallagher@shaw.ca

Except as otherwise specified herein, all notices and other communications
shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) on the date of receipt if delivered
personally, (ii) five (5) days after posting if transmitted by mail, or (iii) on the
date of transmission if transmitted by fax (provided the sending machine gives
confirmation that all pages have been transmitted to the fax number of the
receiver without error), whichever shall be first.

The Contractor hereby affirms financial responsibility, ability, and willingness

to pay invoices in accordance with published terms. Payment terms are 30 days
from the date of invoice. Invoices not paid within thirty (30) days will be

Page 16 of 29

135



charged 1.5% interest per month. The Contractor authorizes the City to verify
and collect information on the Contractor, including but not limited to bank
references, credit references, consumer and or commercial credit reports. The
Contractor further agrees to pay all costs of collection and litigation on this
account in accordance with British Columbia Business Practices and Consumer
Protection Act. The Contractor agrees that all decisions with respect to the
extension or continuation of credit shall be in the sole discretion of the City of
Kelowna. Interest will be charged at the end of each month on all overdue
charges.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto, by their respective representatives duly
authorized in that behalf, have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day and
year indicated below.

Accepted on behalf of :

KELOWNA WIBIT
by its au ized signatory:
L//— o /Qi = " Name: ;7/&/4;:4\ / /’Z-, /Aq < / s
= == (Print) ./

Pl

CITY OF KELOWNA
by its authorized signatories:

Date Executed:

Page 17 of 29

136



Appendix A - Insurance Requirements

1.

Contractor To Provide

The Contractor shall procure and maintain, at its own expense and cost, the insurance
policies listed in section 2, with limits no less than those shown in the respective items,
unless in connection with the performance of some particular part of the Work or Services,
the City advises in writing that it has determined that the exposure to liability justifies less
limits. The insurance policy or policies shall be maintained continuously from
commencement of the Work or Services until total completion of the Work or Services or
such longer period as may be specified by the City.

Insurance

As a minimum, the Contractor shall, without limiting its obligations or liabilities under any
other contract with the City, procure and maintain, at its own expense and cost, the
following insurance policies:

2.1 WorkSafe BC Insurance covering all employees of Contractor engaged in the Work or
Services in accordance with the statutory requirements of the province or territory
having jurisdiction over such employees.

2.2 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance

(i) providing for an inclusive limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each
occurrence or accident;

(i) providing for all sums which the Contractor shall become legally obligated to
pay for damages because of bodily injury (including death at any time
resulting therefrom) sustained by any person or persons or because of damage
to or destruction of property caused by an occurrence or accident arising out
of or related to the Work or Services or any operations carried on in
connection with this Contract;

(iii)  including coverage for Products/Completed Operations, Blanket Contractual,
Contractor’s Protective, Personal Injury, Contingent Employer’s Liability,
Broad Form Property Damage, and Non-Owned Automobile Liability.

(iv)  providing for Completed Operations Liability to continue for a period of 24
months after total completion of the Work or any part of the Work.

(v) providing for the use of explosives for blasting; vibration from pile driving or
caisson work; the removal of, or weakening of support of such property,
building or land, whether such support shall be natural or otherwise;
demolition; or any other work below ground level.

(vi)  including a Cross Liability clause providing that the inclusion of more than one
Insured shall not in any way affect the rights of any other Insured hereunder,
in respect to any claim, demand, suit or judgment made against any other
Insured.

2.3 Automobile Liability Insurance covering all motor vehicles, owned, operated and
used or to be used by the Contractor directly or indirectly in the performance of the
Work or Services. The Limit of Liability shall not be less than $2,000,000 inclusive,
for loss or damage including personal injuries and death resulting from any one
accident or occurrence.

Page 18 of 29

137



2.4 Al Risks Insurance for loss of or damage to all Contractor’s equipment, owned,
leased or for which Contractor may otherwise be responsible and used or to be used
in the performance of the Work. This insurance shall be for an amount not less than
the replacement cost value of the equipment. In the event of loss or damage,
Contractor shall if so requested by the City, forthwith replace such lost or damaged
equipment. Such All Risks Insurance shall be endorsed to waive all rights of
subrogation against the City.

The City Named As Additional Insured

The policies required by sections 2.2 and 2.3 above shall provide that the City is named as
an Additional Insured thereunder and that said policies are primary without any right of
contribution from any insurance otherwise maintained by the City.

Contractor’s Subcontractors
The Contractor shall require each of its subcontractors to provide comparable insurance to
that set forth under section 2.

Certificates of Insurance

The Contractor agrees to submit Certificates of Insurance, in the form of Appendix A-1,
attached hereto and made a part hereof, for itself and for all of its subcontractors to the
Risk Management Department of the City prior to commencing the Work or providing the
Services. Such Certificates shall provide that 30 days’ written notice shall be given to the
Risk Management Department of the City, prior to any material changes or cancellations of
any such policy or policies.

Other Insurance

After reviewing the Contractor’s Certificates of Insurance, the City may require other
insurance or alterations to any applicable insurance policies in force during the period of
this Contract and will give notifications of such requirement. Where other insurances or
alterations to any insurance policies in force are required by the City and result in increased
insurance premium, such increased premium shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

Additional Insurance

The Contractor may take out such additional insurance, as it may consider necessary and
desirable. All such additional insurance shall be at no expense to the City. The Contractor
shall ensure that all of its subcontractors are informed of and comply with the City’s
requirements set out in this Appendix A.

Insurance Companies

All insurance, which the Contractor is required to obtain with respect to this contract, shall
be with insurance companies registered in and licensed to underwrite such insurance in the
province of British Columbia.

Failure to Provide

If the Contractor fails to do all or anything which is required of it with regard to insurance,
the City may do all that is necessary to effect and maintain such insurance, and any monies
expended by the City shall be repayable by and recovered from the Contractor. The
Contractor expressly authorizes the City to deduct from any monies owing the Contractor,
any monies owing by the Contractor to the City.

Page 19 of 29

138



10.

Non-payment of Losses

The failure or refusal to pay losses by any insurance company providing insurance on behalf
of the Contractor or any subcontractor shall not be held to waive or release the Contractor
or subcontractor from any of the provisions of the Insurance Requirements or this Contract,
with respect to the liability of the Contractor otherwise. Any insurance deductible
maintained by the Contractor or any subcontractor under any of the insurance policies is
solely for their account and any such amount incurred by the City will be recovered from the
Contractor as stated in section 9.

Page 20 of 29

139



APPENDIX A-1

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

City staff to complete prior to circulation

Clty of City Dept.:
Dept. Contact:

Ke I OWI'I a Project/Contract/Event:

Insured Hame:
Address:

Broker Hame:
Address:

Location and nature of operation and/or contract reference to which this Certificate applies:

Policy Dates
Type of Insurance Company: Policy Effective Expiry Limits of Liability/Amounts
Number

Section 1 Badily Injury and Property Damage
Comprehensive General Liability
including: $ 5,000,000 Inclusive
s Products/Completed S Aggregate

Operations; S Deductible
e Blanket Contractual;
e«  Contractor's Protective;
e Personal Injury;
e  Contingent Employer’s

Liability;
e Broad Form Property Damago;
e Non-Owned Automobile;
o  Cross Liability Clause.
Section 2 Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Automobile Liability

$5,000,000  Inclusive

Page 21 of 26
14



APPENDIX B - SCOPE OF SERVICES

General Scope of Services of the Contractor

The Contractor will provide, equip and operate a non-motorized water activity concession
within the designated area of the concession:

Seasonal Concession: during the period of May 15" to September 15" of each year,
with the exception of the first year beginning June 30", 2014, the Contractor will
provide service at the concession location at a minimum between 10:00am and
8:00pm (or dusk whichever is earlier), 7 days per week, weather permitting.

The Contractor is to supply this service for a three (3) year period with the option of
extending for two (2) additional one (1) year terms at the sole discretion of the City as
follows:

1.

The Contractor will provide for use by the public a non-motorized water activity
concession.

The Contractor shall maintain all equipment to such standards as will ensure safety
for participants.

Any anchoring system proposed must be fully within the City of Kelowna water lot
area as noted in the attached map and must be approved by authorities having
jurisdiction.

The Contractor shall ensure that no persons too young to operate the proposed
activity are permitted to use them, and shall ensure that no persons operating the
proposed activity do so in an unsafe manner or endanger persons swimming at any
of the designated beaches.

The Contractor shall ensure that all participants wear personal floatation devices.

At a minimum the Contractor shall operate during the period of May 15" to
September 4™ of each year of the Term, with the exception of the first year which
will begin June 30", 2014.

The contractor shall remove the equipment at the end of each season.

City Park is open from 6 am to 11 pm each day and the contractor will provide
service in the parks between 10 am and 8 pm (or dusk whichever is earlier), 7 days
per week, weather permitting for the core season starting the last weekend of
June until Labour Day in September. During the shoulder season the Contractor
will supply concession service between the hours of 12:00pm to 4:00pm, 7 days per
week, weather permitting.

The Term of the contract will be for three (3) years with an option to renew for
two (2) additional one (1) year terms at the City’s sole discretion:

Page 22 of 29

141



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19;

20.

21,

a. Any extension, if offered, will retain all of the terms and conditions of the
original contract or subsequent extension;

b. Such option period will be negotiated at the sole option of the City on the
basis of the rental rate not being less than the rent bid for 2014.

The Contractor will be responsible to obtain all necessary approvals from
authorities having jurisdiction including, but not limited to, the Ministry of the
Environment, Transport Canada, Canada Coast Guard and provide copies of the
approvals prior to installation and operation.

The Contractor will pay permits, taxes and licenses.

The Contractor will clean and maintain the area surrounding the concession to the
satisfaction of the City, including clean-up of litter from the immediate area (a
radius of 30 meters from the concession).

The Contractor shall comply with all regulations regarding fire, traffic, safety and
shall acquire all necessary permits.

No outside advertising will be permitted without the consent of the City.

The City leases a food concession in the same park so no food or beverage sales
will be allowed.

The Contractor may retail Wibit logo apparel and sunblock only. No other products
may be sold on the concession site.

Solicitation of the public is not allowed.

The Contractor will be responsible to communicate with the City of Kelowna
Outdoor Events Committee and review the Outdoor Events Calendar to determine
the dates the area will be closed for special events, and as a result will also be
closed for the concession operation, unless agreement can be reached with the
event organizer.

The Contractor may not sublet, nor assign the contract without the written
consent of the City. |If approved by the City the minimum amount for such
assignment shall be $500.00 payable by the Contractor to the City.

The Contractor is required to supply a bid deposit in the form of a certified cheque
payable to the City of Kelowna in the amount of $1,000. The deposit of the
successful Contractor will be retained as a “performance deposit”.

The Contractor shall be allowed to display one professionally made sign at the
space allotted. The sign is subject to City approval prior to posting.

Page 23 of 29

142



22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

There will be no structure provided. If the Contractor wishes to provide a
structure the Contractor will be required to meet all regulations and Bylaws and
any design must be approved by the City’s Infrastructure Planning and Parks
department.

There will be no power available.

Prior to awarding the bid to the successful Proponent, the Proponent must prove to
the City ownership of the activity equipment listed in the proposal.

The City will not provide on-site parking for the Contractor’s vehicle and towing
equipment.

The Contractor will provide 24 hour security on the premises.

The Contractor will be required to enter into a Prime Contractor Agreement with
the City which is comprised of a Contractor Coordination Program Guide, Prime
Contractor Designation Form and Application for Safety Pre-Qualification, as set
out in Appendix F to this agreement.

The Contractor will be required to following Canadian Life Saving Society Standards
for operation and supervision of the area.

The Contractor will provide financial statements within 45 days of the end of each
season of the contract.

The Contractor must acknowledge that the City has applied to the Ministry of the
Environment to commence work with a “sand re-nourishment” program at this
specific location. Should the application be approved, the Contractor, at its sole
expense, will be responsible to remove all anchors in the lake to allow for the work
to be done. Should the work commence during the Term of the contract, the rent
due will be abated for the duration of the City’s work to complete the sand re-
nourishment program.

The Contractor will be responsible for all additional swim / marker buoys to be
installed in the lake to ensure a safe swimming area.

The Contractor must keep the promenade clear at all times.

On event days the load in / out of concession related equipment must be
scheduled outside of event times so the prominade is clear and safe for
participants.

The Contractor must specify on a map how much land they require for their
proposal.

Page 24 of 29

143



Page 25 of 29

144



APPENDIX C - FEE SCHEDULE

2014
The contractor acknowledges and agrees to pay to the City of Kelowna the total sum of
$8,000.00 for June 30" to September 15, 2014 plus GST. Payment will be on or before
as follows:

Total Instalment

August 15, 2014 $4,000.00 + 5% (tax) $200.00 = $4,200.00
September 15, 2014 $4,000.00 + 5% (tax) $200.00 = $4,200.00
2015

The contractor acknowledges and agrees to pay to the City of Kelowna the total sum of
$9,000.00 for May 31* to September 15, 2015 plus GST. Payment will be on or before
as follows:

Total Instalment

June 15, 2015 $2,250.00 + 5% (tax) $112.50 = $2,362.50
July 15, 2015 $2,250.00 + 5% (tax) $112.50 = $2,362.50
August 15, 2015 $2,250.00 + 5% (tax) $112.50 = $2,362.50
September 15, 2015 $2,250.00 + 5% (tax) $112.50 = $2,362.50
2016

The contractor acknowledges and agrees to pay to the City of Kelowna the total sum of
$10,000.00 for May 31°* to September 15, 2016 plus GST. Payment will be on or before
as follows:

Total Instalment

June 15, 2016 $2,500.00 + 5% (tax) $125.00 =$2,625.00
July 15, 2016 $2,500.00 + 5% (tax) $125.00 =$2,625.00
August 15, 2016 $2,500.00 + 5% (tax) $125.00 =$2,625.00
September 15, 2016 $2,500.00 + 5% (tax) $125.00 =$2,625.00

Page 26 of 29

145



APPENDIX D - PREMISE

0

Lol Rewana ™ Alssiialy BAd Lamiin

Page 27 of 29

146



Appendix E - Kelowna Wibit Bid Submission

Page 28 of 29

147



& wibit
Wibit Sports Park - Kelowna
Business Proposal

L7

(Logo provided by City of Kelowna)




Business Proposal: Outline

1.0 Executive Summary page 1-3
1.1 Objective page 2
1.2 Mission -e- --page 3
2.0 Company Summary eeesmeemcmeeeeeaes page 3-5
3.0 Services page 5
4.0 Community Benefits page 6-7
4.1 Control of Community Impact ------=-=-=-===-x- page 6
4.2 Control of Environmental Impact ----------=---- page 6
4.3 Site Sustainability page 7
5.0 Safety page 7-8
6.0 Market Analysis Summary ------=--==-===snseee-u- page 8-9
7.0 Strategy and Implementation Summary --------------- page 9-10
7.1 Competitive Edge ---------~-=-===sneemconmcenacn-- page 10
8.0 Financial Investment ----page 10
8.1 Concession Bid --page 11

9.0 Attachments
9.1 Wibit sports park Location
9.2 Wibit sports park 60+ Combination Info
9.3 Wibit anchoring recommendations

9.4  A.Safety Rules,
B. Lifeguard Recommendation
C. Emergency Exit Plan

9.5 A.Installation Manual

B. Wibit Product Standards
9.6 Why Wibit




1.0 Executive Summary

Kelowna Wibit (name is subject to change) is a company devoted to providing a
quality service focused on customer relations and physical activity, while keeping
the highest regards for safety. The company is built on a foundation of passion and
experience in the water sports industry. The Wibit Aquatic Sports Park provides KW
the opportunity to give the community a unique service, which promotes fitness and
tourism in a way that complements the city’s vibrancy.

KW will provide the city of Kelowna with a great, sustainable, tourist attraction. Due
to a wide range of versatility KW is not limited to a minuscule, tourism based, target
marking. The city of Kelowna has a growing population of 117,000, which close to
doubles during the summer season. This gives KW a large sustainable target market
due of the ability to provide a wide range of unique activities for all ages.

Five Year Growth

8.000

6.400

%

@

S

<]
1

Number of
Customers

3.200

1.600

1 2 3 4 5
Year
Years: Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Number of | 3000 4000 5200 6000 6200
Customers

150



e Each year increasing by 30% in customer volume, up to year 4, shows a
conservative estimate incorporating relative customer increase.

e KW’s growth is not limited to one location, or British Columbia. When
business expands it is likely to reach waterfront areas of equal or greater
sustainability

Management of Kelowna Wibit include:

e Ryland Gallagher
e Randy Gallagher

Contact info:

Okanagangwatersports@gmail.com
250 462 8770

1.10 Objectives

Kelowna Wibit’s objective is to achieve customer satisfaction while providing
service to approximately 6,000 customers per indicated season, after initial start up
growth. KW is focused first and foremost on building business in Kelowna to its full
potential; KW also plans to continue growth with Wibit affiliation in Penticton and
Australia.

Financial goals:

Achieve 25% margin payable on books first year
Keep cost of operation below 40%

Donate profit of one weekend to a local charity
Minimum of 30% increase of revenue each year

151



1.2Mission

Our mission is to make activities on the water affordable, accessible, and
environmentally safe. With the Wibit Aqua Park equipment KW can assist customers
to properly experience the Okanagan’s greatest attraction; it’s lakes.

2.0 Ability to Manage Activities

Kelowna Wibit is a new business title (name subject to change), however management
has ownership and has been involvement in water sport companies such as:
e Summerland Boat Rentals Ltd (SBR) operating since 2006
e Penticton Boat Rentals (PBR) operating since 2011
www.pentictonboatrentals.com
e Osoyoos Water Sports (OWS) operating since 2011.
WWW.0Soyooswatersports.com

All companies have provided safe and enjoyable recreational opportunities on the water
serving visitors and residents primarily in the southern communities of the Okanagan
region of BC, Canada.

Previously building three successful water sport businesses gives Kelowna Wibit a
significant advantage. Their experience demonstrates the ability to build a new
sustainable business while maintaining great customer service, and safety on the water.

Kelowna Wibit staff will be qualified and trained to provide all safety and First Aid, they
also ensure that the environment is treated with the utmost respect. To ensure quality and
compliance with KW’s strategic plan, their staff and supervisors are carefully selected.

Fundamentals of KW Operation

Provide stimulus to local tourism and economic development

Based on shared use of Water & Beach area

Based on long-term sustainability

KW is dedicated to provide a recreational activity that fits with the community
needs providing the best experience possible, while maintaining safety.

@,

0@0 152



The Wibit Sports Park includes the following:

Waterfront & Beach Site (refer to attachment 9.1)
Season of operation: May 15 - September 15 (weather permitting)
Hours of operation: 10:00 am - 8:00 pm daily with flexibility to adjust opening
and closing times.
All participants are required to sign waivers & wear life jackets
Life guards on duty during operational hours
24 hour security staff on site
All appropriate insurances and levels of insurance as defined by the City of
Kelowna and/or otherwise to be arranged for by KW
All applicable permits and licenses to be arranged for by KW
Any procedures and regulations the City wished to incorporate, would be
complied with
The Aqua Park operation will create 12 — 16 student employment positions
Wibit Sports Products, meet the highest standards of safety in the industry.
o Please refer to attachment or www.wibitsports.com for additional
information.
All staff will be required to have a first aid certificate.
An engineered anchoring system will be employed to ensure the Aqua Park is
secure (refer to attachment 9.3)

Space Required: ‘60+ Sports Park Setup’

The Aquatic Sport Park will require a depth of 4 - 9 feet — The Park surface area
is 100’ X 130’ft or 30x40m (refer to attachment 9.1)

No City Services are required

Space for Retail & Trailer 24’ X 8’ for first aid, all activity night storage

An area on the beach for conducting registration, orientation & life jacket
disbursal.

153



Daily operation logistics:

Hours of operation 10:00 am - 8:00 pm

A minimum of two trained lifeguard will be on the park for all hours of operation
All participants will be required to sign a liability release form prior to entering
the park

Children under the age of 18 must have consent from a legal guardian

Children under the age of 10 must has supervision by an adult who is required to
be in the park at all times

All participants will be required to wear a properly fitted life jacket

All life jackets will be issued with a Velcro crest indicating the time at which the
customer must return to shore; issued times will be labeled in half an hour
increments

Tickets will be issued at $25 CAD for a one day pass with a maximum time of 2
hours spent on the park before taking a beak on shore (maximum time is subject
to change depending on customer volume)

After hours of operation the park will be accompanied by trained security to
prevent trespassing and vandalism

3.0 Services

Services will include:

Access to Kelowna Sports Park’s equipment through ticket purchase
Scheduled team functions/ team building events

Trained life guard during park hours

Interactive physical activity promoting healthy living

Beach area cleaning of leased concession and surrounding area

24 hour security

Emergency services personal presenting a badge are given free entry
Scheduled local charity fund raising through ticket sales and donations

@,
Q®

154



4.0 Community Benefits

The Wibit aquatic sports park provides locals and tourist with an activity rich in physical
interaction. Because of the aqua park’s wide range of capabilities we will be able to
provide friendly, competitive activities along with organized team building events.
Kelowna Aqua Park also plans to fund raise for a selected local charity through ticket
sales and donations of one scheduled weekend.

4.1 Control of Community Impact

The Wibit sports and events will primarily take place in the water diverting any volume
of customers off of the public beach and into the parks marked off swimming area. The
following outlined areas provide protection of amenities to existing residents while
facilitating our customers. The aqua park will be installed at the beginning of the pre-
determined season and removed once it is over. Life jackets will be mandatory with
participation in the park area. Tickets will be issued with limitations of two hours before
returning to shore. Because the aqua park is physically demanding customers will be
limited to the amount of time consecutively spent on the aqua park. These guidelines
allow us to achieve maximum safety while sustaining a constant rotation of customers.
The Aqua Park will have a staff of trained lifeguards who will be provided all safety
equipment necessary. After hours of operation the aqua park will be accompanied by 24-
hour security.

4.2 Control of Environment Impact

There is no negative environmental impact caused to local wildlife or their environment
from the Wibit Aqua Park. Permanent components of Wibit Aqua Parks consist of the
engineered anchoring systems. KW does acknowledge the sand re-nourishment program
and is able to remove the anchoring system when needed.

155



4.3 Site Suitability

This proposal provides for a new, additional, attraction on the waterfront, to promote
tourism and economic benefit to the community.

It supports the City’s Vision of vibrancy and the strategic priority of waterfront
enhancement.

This long-term sustainable visitor and resident attraction provides affordable, healthy,
family fun and promotes active living.

5.0 Safety

Kelowna Wibit will be under lifeguard supervision during all hours of operation.
Outside of operating hours the sports park will be accompanied by hired security.
Kelowna Wibit will also provide free water to staff and customers to prevent
dehydration.

The Wibit sports park will be inspected twice each day. Safety checks will involve
equipment over-view and security of anchoring.

The Wibit sports park will make all necessary safety rules and regulations visible
and known to customers (refer to attachment 9.4-A). Emergency evacuation and
emergency transport procedures will also be clearly explained to all participants
(refer to attachment 9.1 for emergency transports)(refer to attachment 9.1 and 9.4-
C for emergency evacuation)

Lifeguards will be equipped with:

Rescue tube or buoy
Two-way radio
Paddle board
Binoculars

Sun protection
Mask, Fins, Snorkel
Standard first aid kit

156



Standard First Aid Kit Level 1 Contents:

e 2414 cmx 19 cm wound cleaning towelettes, individually packaged
e 60 hand cleansing towelettes, individually packaged
e 100 sterile adhesive dressings, assorted sizes, individually packaged
e 1210 cmx 10 cm sterile gauze dressings, individually packaged
e 410cmx 16.5 cm sterile pressure dressings with crepe ties
e 27.5cmx 4.5 mcrepe roller bandages
e 125 cmx4.5madhesive tape
e 420 cmx 25 cm sterile abdominal dressings, individually packaged
e 6 cotton triangular bandages, minimum length of base 1.25 m
e 16 safety pins
e 114 cm stainless steel bandage scissors or universal scissors
e 111.5 cm stainless steel sliver forceps
e 12 cotton tip applicators
e 1 pocket mask with oxygen inlet + secondary face shield
e 6 pairs of medical gloves
e firstaid records, pen & pencil
e 3 blankets
Insurance:

Upon receiving the Kelowna north-end city park lease, Kelowna Wibit will comply
with all City of Kelowna insurance requirements of ‘Schedule B’ in the Non-
Motorized Water Activity Bid Package.

6.0 Marketing Analysis Summary

Kelowna offers a diverse market of locals and tourist of all ages. With over 4,400
hotel rooms to accommodate tourist, it is estimated that Kelowna’s population of
117,000 nearly doubles during the summer months. KW’s primary target markets
are young families and teens. KW will reach these target markets through:

Cross marketing - working with existing companies in the community to co-
promote.

Cross media marketing - primarily marketing with established travel sites,
social media, and emailing previous customer base.

Promotional marketing - KW will be very active in marketing to local schools
along with sports clubs, and summer camps

@,
Q¥

157



Market Analysis Gage group) by pereentage

o s
101s
0
1520
|_IRIE
Age group: 5-10 10-15 15-20 20+
Percentage 20 40 30 10
(%)

KW target market will be primarily ages 10-15, however there is still a large market

in young families, which incorporate age groups 5-10 and 20+

7.0 Strategy and Implementation Summary

Kelowna Wibit is focused on accommodating locals and tourist to the city of

Kelowna with the waterfront enhancement of water sports equipment, including un
motorized water activities such as:
e Wibit Sports Park 60+

158



10.

7.1 Competitive Edge

Involvement in Summerland Boat Rentals, Penticton Boat Rentals, and Osoyoos
Water Sports gives KW an advantage by already having a loyal consumer base,
which will extend to and continue with the Wibit Sports Park. This gives Kelowna
Wibit management, collectively, 16 years of experience through operating 3
businesses in the water sports industry located in the Okanagan region. However, it
is a lifetime of experience having fun on the water that makes KW want to provide
the same opportunity for the community and its visitors.

The Wibit sports park gives KW the opportunity to provide an activity for young kid
and their families to share our love for the water.

Summary:

° Combined 16 years experience in the water sports industry
e Experience in starting and operating successful seasonal water sport
business
e Local knowledge and business relationships
Established business relationship with Wibit Canada (Aquam distributors)
e Established quality product line

8.0 Financial Investment

Wibit Sports Equipment:

e Sports Park 60+ - $79,995.00 (USD) (May 5th exchange rate 0.911571)
$87,698.52 (CAD)

Shipping and handling - $1,000

5% GST tax - $4,384.93

Anchoring system - $6,000

Cargo trailer - $10,000

Safety Equipment:

Paddle board - $1,000

Life jackets - $5,000

First aid with defibrillator - $1,500
Radios - $300

Mask, snorkel, fins - $100
Marketing - $10,000

@,
Q®

159



Amount

($)

e Insurance - $7,000

e Miscellaneous expenses - $6,000

Estimated Total:

- $139,983.45 CAD (bid not included)

8.1 Concession Bid

Concession Bid

Concession Bid

11.

14,000 14.000
12,000 12,000
11,600 11,600 ‘.‘..Vé
10,000
9.200 9.200 9.d2/
. o000
5@
6.800 - < 6.800
4,400 4.400
2.000 2.000
1 2 3 4 5
Year Year
Year 1 2 3 4 5
Amount 8,000 9,000 10,000 11,000 12,000
(€3]
Year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5
Percent 12.5 11 10 9
increase (%)
Year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5
Amount 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
increase ($)

160



12.

Bid Structure:

Structuring the bid of ‘Kelowna Park North End Non- Motorized Water Activity
Concession’ with increasing increments of one thousand dollars retains simplicity
and allows KW’s customer base to mature before reaching a twelve thousand dollar
cap. This creates a five year total of $50,000 with a yearly average lease rate of
$10,000 plus applicable taxes.

@,
@Cﬁ’

161



References:

2014 W ibit booklet provided by ‘Aquam’

www.wibitsports.com - Logo, product information

www.kelowna.ca - City logo, bidding information

www.bcfirstaid.ca - Safety, first aid

www.nes.ed.gov - Five-Year Growth, Market Analysis, Concession bid graphs

@ 162



APPENDIX F - Contractor Coordination Program

Page 29 of 29

163



City of %
Kelowna

Contractor Coordination Program
Guide

Certificate of Recognition - Element 4

August 2012

Occupational Health & Safety

164



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Cooramation Program - COK Element 4

Page 2 of 10

165



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

POLICY

To ensure that workers of The City of Kelowna and other employers who are working at The City of Kelowna
workplaces are not placed at risk because of a lack of knowledge of workplace hazards, or a lack of
coordination of workplace safety.

The City of Kelowna will do everything that is reasonably practicable to establish and maintain a system or
process that will ensure compliance with the Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OH&S
Regulations at all workplaces within the City of Kelowna.

The City of Kelowna will ensure that all employers and workers at the City of Kelowna workplaces are aware
of any pre-existing workplace hazards.

The City of Kelowna will ensure co-ordination of occupational health and safety activities on all multiple
employer workplaces, or ensure that a Prime Contractor does so.

SCOPE
This program applies to every situation where workers other than City of Kelowna workers are performing
their job duties at a City of Kelowna workplace.

Exception for Short Term Workplace Visits

The WCB Prevention Manual offers the following guidance on workplace visits: "Virtually all workplaces will
be visited by workers of other employers. For example, workers may deliver or pick up mail, goods, and
materials or enter to inspect premises. Short term visits of this type, even if regular, do not make the
workplace a "multiple-employer workplace” for the purposes of section 118(1)."

DEFINITIONS

Any erection, alteration, repair, dismantling, demolition, structural or routine
maintenance, painting, land clearing, earth moving, grading, excavating, trenching,
digging, boring, drilling, blasting, concreting, the installation of any machinery or
any other work deemed to be construction by the WCB. (WCB OH&S Regulation
Section 20.1)

Construction Project:

Includes a contractor, subcontractor, utility company, government agency or a

Contractor: service company providing/assigning workers and/or services/equipment within the
workplace.

Contractor Safety A contractor's Occupational Health and Safety program as required by WCB OH&S

Program: Regulation.

Multiple employer workplaces are created when workers of two or more employers
are working at the same location.

In this type of workplace workers of one employer do not actually have to come into
contact with the workers of the other employer. They do not even have to be in the

Multiple Employer same place at the same time. What is important is whether or not the workers'

Workplace: activities could affect the health and safety of another employer's workers. This is
true even if the workers on the workplace are workers of City of Kelowna and a
contractor.

Short term visits by couriers, inspectors, and suppliers etc. are not regarded as
workers at the workplace.

Page 3 of 10



CITY OF KELOWNA

Notice of Project:

Prime Contractor:

Qualified
Co-ordinator:

Qualified Person:

Single Employer
Workplace:

Contract
Administrator:

Contract Liaison:

Contractor Cooraination Program - COK Element 4

The Notice of Construction Project given by the Prime Contractor, or Owner, to the
Workers' Compensation Board as defined in and required by Section 20.2 (2) and (3)
of the WCB OH&S Regulation.

In relation to a multiple-employer municipal workplace, the contractor, employer or
other person who enters into a written agreement with the City of Kelowna to be the
Prime Contractor.

Applies where a Prime Contractor has been designated.
On a construction workplace, means the person appointed by a Prime Contractor to
co-ordinate occupational health and safety activities within the workplace.

Applies to every contractor hired whether it is a single employer workplace or a
multi-employer workplace.

On a construction workplace, means a person designated by a contractor (other than
the Prime Contractor) to be responsible for that employer's health and safety
activities and responsibilities.

A defined area in which there are workers of only one employer.

Applies where a Prime Contractor has not been designated and the City of Kelowna
assumes Prime Contractor Status. There will be a person designated by City of
Kelowna to co-ordinate workplace safety on multiple employer workplaces and to
receive/review a contractor's safety program, records, documentation, safety
performance, etc.

Applies where a Prime Contractor has been designated. The person designated by
the City of Kelowna to inspect, and be the City contact person for the Prime
Contractor. The Contract Liaison will alert and explain any pre-existing hazards to
the Prime Contractor and receive/review a contractor’s safety program, records,
documentation, etc.

CO-ORDINATION - OVERVIEW

City of Kelowna can decide to coordinate safety activities at a multiple employer workplace or to designate
this responsibility, in writing, to a Prime Contractor to perform the duties of coordination.

On a multiple employer workplace:

The Contract Administrator/Prime Contractor (Qualified Coordinator) must also:

o Ensure that all of the workers at the workplace are aware of any pre-existing hazards on the workplace.

o Identify any hazards on the workplace that are created by the work.

o Have a workplace drawing that shows where first aid is located, emergency transportation system for
injured workers, and evacuation marshaling points.

o Have written procedures outlining safe work procedures to be followed by all workers at the workplace.

e Have a workplace drawing showing where all employers at the workplace are working, where first aid is
located, emergency transportation system for injured workers, and evacuation marshalling points.

Page 4 of 10

167



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

RESPONSIBILITIES

City of Kelowna is responsible to determine whether a workplace includes the workers of other employers and
whether this is a multiple employer workplace or a single employer workplace.

Responsibilities: Single Employer Workplace, City of Kelowna
City of Kelowna is responsible to ensure that the contractor at the workplace is aware of all pre-existing
workplace hazards and has the information on how to eliminate or control the hazards.

Contract Administrators:
Contract Administrators are responsible to ensure the following Pre-Qualification Items are filled out by the
potential contractor:

e Conduct the Pre-Qualification questionnaire that includes items such as WCB Coverage, Liability
Insurance, Proof of Safety Program (Policy, Risk Assessments, Inspections, Incident Reporting,
Qualifications, etc)

o Decide whether the contractor should be designated, in writing, as a Prime Contractor or falls under
the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management System

Contract Administrators are responsible to ensure the following Contractor Coordination occurs after
completing the Contractor Pre-Qualification and have been awarded contract:

o Designate the Prime Contractor (Sign off on Prime Contractor Status Form)

e Hold pre-job conferences to confirm contractor understanding of compliance with safety
requirements and awareness of the City of Kelowna specific hazards, and to review job plan of
hazardous work.

e Meet with the contractor and explain any hazards peculiar to the City of Kelowna worksites the
contractor is likely to encounter while performing the work. Establish that work must be done safely
in accordance with WCB and City of Kelowna standards. (Standard contract documents identify the
contractor is responsible for the enforcement of regulations).

o Ask the contractor if he/she has any questions related to the safety of the work or what is expected
during the contract period.

* Reinforce the point that the contractor is responsible for the health and safety of his/her workers and
for ensuring compliance by his workers with the City of Kelowna Occupational Health and Safety
Program and WCB regulations.

o Monitor contractor safety performance (Observations of contractor’s work procedures, finished
products, etc. Should be diarized by noting the contractor’s name, date, time, and location and
briefly noting observations. Follow up action can be based on these diaries.

o Check that contractor has copies of required safety information and supplementary instructions
covering the work to be performed (provide if necessary).

° Monitor contractor safety performance through regular inspections or audits, as appropriate. Doing so
without directing work on site otherwise Prime Contractor will revert back to the owner and in this
case that would be the City of Kelowna.

o Document inspections of contractor performance.

o If necessary, coordinate safety on multiple employer sites.

Contractor:
Note: Applies to a contractor to City of Kelowna and to service providers such as BC Hydro or gas distribution

companies.

The contractor is responsible to ensure the safety of his/her workers. The contractor must inspect his
worksites in accordance with WCB requirements to ensure compliance with WCB and City of Kelowna
regulations.

The contractor is responsible for:

o Reviewing the City of Kelowna’s Contractor Pre-Qualification and submitting all relevant
documentation for this program.

Page 5 of 10

168



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

o  Review and sign off on the City of Kelowna’s Prime Contractor Designation Form. If the contractor is
not capable of assuming prime they will fall under the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management
System and be required to attend a contractor orientation that will explain all of the relevant forms
and processes that are expected from the contractor.

o Ensuring compliance with the Workers Compensation Act and the WCB OH&S Regulation.

City of Kelowna Supervisors:
Supervisors must:
o Ensure that all workers know that a contractor has been designated for projects in their areas.
o If during the normal site visits for contract administration, a City of Kelowna employee observes the
work being done by the contractor and hazards are observed, corrective action must follow.
Ensure they do not assign duties, which take City of Kelowna workers into the contractors work area.
Contact the Contract Administrator if any worker reports that they must enter the contractor’s work
site to do their job.

City of Kelowna Workers:
All workers are responsible to ensure that their duties do not take them into the single employer workplace.
If they must enter the workplace, they must inform their supervisor.

Other Contractors (Sub-Contractors or Multiple Contractors at same site):
Other contractors are responsible to deliver to the Prime Contractor’s Qualified Coordinator the name of the
person who supervises their workers.

On a construction workplace, the contractors must designate a Qualified Person to be responsible for that

contractor's health and safety activities. That contractor must give the name of this Qualified Person to the
Prime Contractor.

PROGRAM DETAILS

This program is designed to help ensure that when contractors are working at a City of Kelowna workplace,
the work is performed safely and there is no unnecessary increase in liability for City of Kelowna as a result of
their actions.

Situation Identification
There are two types of situations where workers of another employer are performing duties at a City of
Kelowna workplace.

The first of these, and most difficult for the organization to control, are workers who are not performing
contract work for City of Kelowna. They may include the workers of a utility company, a government agency
or Service Company. The typical example might be workers of a gas utility company who have set up traffic
control to do repair work on the gas distribution system. They are at a workplace, and City of Kelowna
workers may be working on the same workplace.

It is the responsibility of City of Kelowna to ensure that the workplace is safe and that all workers, including
contractors and their employees, are aware of the workplace hazards of which the organization has
knowledge as owners of the workplace. As long as there are no interactions, or overlap between workplaces
that would create hazards for the workers of the contractor or for the workers of City of Kelowna there is no
further action required.

The second situation is one that the organization is most familiar with. This is a situation where a contractor
has come onto a workplace to perform work for City of Kelowna. In this situation, there is still the
responsibility to ensure that the workplace is safe, and that the contractor is aware of pre-existing hazards.

Any other workplace hazards must also be identified.

Page 6 of 10

169



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordwuiation Program - COK Element 4

Providing methods to eliminate or control workplace hazards will include providing the contractor with the
City of Kelowna safety program and procedures. If the contractor is going to do work that is not covered by
the safety program, it is important that once the hazards are identified, the contractor provides the written
procedures for the work.

Multiple Employer Workplaces
Multiple employer workplaces are created when the workers of two or more employers are working at the
same location. They do not have to both been working all of the time.

If they are both at the workplace and the activities of either employer can affect the health and safety of
workers of the other employer, then the workplace becomes a multiple employer workplace. This is true
even if the workers on the workplace are workers of the contractor and City of Kelowna.

When City of Kelowna has contractors on a multiple employer workplace; there is a requirement for
coordination of activities.

The Contract Administrator can fulfill this coordination role, or it can be delegated to a contractor, who is
designated as Prime Contractor in writing.

Contractors must give Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor the names of the individuals who will
be supervising their workers.

Prime Contractor Designation

In the past contracted work was much simpler than it is today. A project was developed and put out to bid.
The successful bidder hired other contractors. These contractors were subcontractors to the successful
bidder. In these cases the successful bidder was usually referred to as the “Principal” or “Prime Contractor”.

As a result of amendments to the Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OHS Regulation, it is
now very important that City of Kelowna carefully decides whether to designate a contractor in writing as the
Prime Contractor. The decision on whether to designate a Prime Contractor rests with Contract
Administrator otherwise the City of Kelowna assumes Prime contractor Status and all contractors would then
be mandated to follow the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management System.

The responsibility for coordination of activities at the workplace, and for ensuring compliance with the
Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OHS Regulation will rest with the Prime Contractor.

It is also very important that these contractors are made aware of all of the pre-existing workplace hazards
that might put their workers at risk. They must also be given the information that they need on how to
eliminate or control those hazards.

If the City of Kelowna appoints a Prime Contractor the affected contractor(s) will be given written notice in
the form of the Prime Contractor Designate Form.

WORKPLACE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

The Prime Contractor has the responsibility to:

e Ensure work is done in a safe manner that complies with all regulatory requirements.

e Direct and co-ordinate the work activities related to the health and safety of all contractors and any
other workers on the workplace.

e Have a supervisor readily available at the workplace. This supervisor will have the necessary skills,
qualifications and experience to co-ordinate the health and safety activities of the workers.

e Obtain from the organization written information on hazards and conditions and the methods to
address the hazards and conditions and will circulate this information.

Page 7 of 10

170



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

Ensure first aid facilities are provided and maintained on the workplace in accordance with Part 33 of
the WCB OHS Regulation.

Take all reasonable steps to ensure that the occupational health and safety activities of all
Contractors and their workers comply with the WCB OHS Regulation.

Immediately give Contract Administrator the name of any contractor who does not co-operate, assist
or do what the qualified co-ordinator requires regarding co-ordination of health and safety activities
within the workplace.

All Contractors:
Prior to starting any work at the workplace, the Contractor must:

Have its own Safety Program or follow the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management System.
Ensure the safety program meets the requirements of Part 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Act and
Part 3 of the WCB OHS Regulation.

Ensure there is a supervisor at the workplace that has the necessary skills and experience to run the
Contractor's Safety Program.

At the start of work, the Contractor will provide Contract Administrator or Contract Liaison in
writing, the names of all supervisors.

Contract Administrator or Prime Contractor, must be immediately informed of any changes.

The Contractor must:

Ensure that a Joint Health and Safety (JHS) Committee is formed for the workplace if required by the
Workers Compensation Amendment Act, and that the activities of the JHS Committee meet the
requirements of the of the Workers Compensation Act.

Advise Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor, of any accidents or incidents at the workplace
that must be reported to the Workers' Compensation Board.

Inform all persons working on the workplace of the health and safety requirements at the workplace.
At all times the contractor will ensure that its workers and subcontractors, and all other workers
coming onto the workplace will:

Comply with the Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OHS Regulation.

Comply with the contractor’s safety program or the City of Kelowna's Health & Safety Management
Program ’

Comply with Contract Administrator (or Prime Contractor's) safety requirements for the work
activities within the workplace.

Provide occupational health and safety records and documentation to Contract Administrator or
Prime Contractor.

Follow the directions of Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor on all matters relating to
occupational health and safety.

Inform Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor of any information that they require to co-
ordinate each employer's work activities within the workplace.

PRIME CONTRACTOR'S HEALTH AND SAFETY RECORDS

The Prime Contractor must:

Maintain all occupational health and safety documentation at one location at or near the workplace
and make these documents available to Contract Administrator or Contract Liaison.

Ensure that its Qualified Co-ordinator collects records of all JHS Committee proceedings at the
workplace and distributes them to other qualified persons working within the workplace and to the
WCB.

In the event of an accident that requires notification to the Workers' Compensation Board, at the
same time, notify Contract Administrator or Contract Liaison about the accident.

If requested, provide information on the progress of the investigation and co-ordinate all responses to
requests for information with City of Kelowna.

Page 8 of 10

171



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

Contract Liaison
If a Prime Contractor is appointed, Contract Liaison will be the City of Kelowna workplace representative and
have duties and responsibilities that include but are not limited to the following:
e Toensure all contractors are informed of appointment of the Prime Contractor.
e Toinform the Prime Contractor that they must be copied in all communications.
e To monitor the Prime Contractor's compliance with the safety requirements of the contract.
e To ensure that City of Kelowna workers do not direct or supervise any contractor's workers on the
workplace.
To receive and/or distribute all necessary documentation.
e To ensure that all pre-existing hazards of the workplace and procedures for addressing the hazards
are conveyed to the Prime Contractor.

If there is no designated Prime Contractor on a multiple employer workplace the responsibility to coordinate
the activities of all employers at the workplace lies with Contract Administrator which is the City of Kelowna.

Contract Administrator will also watch for situations where the work of one contractor or a worker of City of
Kelowna could cause a hazard to the workers of another contractor. It is Contract Administrator's
responsibility to ensure that these situations are controlled.

Contract Administrator will ensure that contractors coming onto the workplace bring with them their written

procedures. If the contractors do not bring written procedures, Contract Administrator must develop those
procedures.

TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

Goal
To ensure that no workers will be put at risk and no liability will accrue to the organization as a result of
workers of another employer performing duties on a workplace owned by the organization.

Objectives
As a result of this training, workers and supervisors will:

e Understand the organization’s policy on contractor coordination including the pre-qualification,
designation of prime contractor status and potential for the city of Kelowna to be the prime
contractor

e Know what their responsibilities are, and understand the responsibilities of other people.

Summary of Training

Why workplace safety coordination is necessary.

The responsibilities for workplace safety coordination.

How to determine if workplace coordination is required.

The effects of the Workers’ Compensation Amendment Act on contractor coordination.
The definitions used in the contractor coordination program.

When to designate a Prime Contractor or for the City to assume prime themselves.
Typical hazards that must be addressed.

How to complete forms and documentation.

Correct responses to typical situations.

PROGRAM MAINTENANCE

Annual review of this program will focus on the number of situations when other employers were on the
organization’s workplace, and whether any liability accrued to the organization as a result.

Page 9 of 10

172



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

DOCUMENTATION

The documentation for this program includes:

e Contract template that includes language concerning Prime Contractor.

o Safety program with names or positions of those responsible for coordination.
o Completed reviews of contractor safety programs.
°

Documentation of discussions with contractors regarding supervision.

Page 10 of 10

173



Prime Contractor Designation

Form
COR - Element 4

City of
Kelown Q  Occupational Health & Safety Branch

PROJECT

After the City of Kelowna has awarded tender/contract it is necessary to see if the contractor can assume the
Prime Contractor role. If the municipality must be deemed the prime contractor they will cover all safety
related items with a City of Kelowna orientation. This orientation will cover all city requirements with OH&S
regulations as a minimum.

This process will ensure that all contractors are suitably qualified to manage health and safety issues on
complex work sites that involve multi-employer relationships. Financial strength, bonding, insurance, technical
ability, and expertise will also be taken into consideration. This process is intended to be the Municipality's
designation of Prime Contractor status, where appropriate.

Coordination at multiple-employer workplaces
118

(1) In this section:

“multiple-employer workplace"” means a workplace where workers of 2 or more employers are working at the
same time;

“prime contractor” means, in relation to a multiple-employer workplace,

(a) the directing contractor, employer or other person who enters into a written agreement with the owner of
that workplace to be the prime contractor for the purposes of this Part, or

(b) if there is no agreement referred to in paragraph (a), the owner of the workplace.
(2) The prime contractor of a multiple-employer workplace must

(a) ensure that the activities of employers, workers and other persons at the workplace relating to
occupational health and safety are coordinated, and

(b) do everything that is reasonably practicable to establish and maintain a system or process that will ensure
compliance with this Part and the regulations in respect of the workplace.

(3) Each employer of workers at a multiple-employer workplace must give to the prime contractor the name
of the person the employer has designated to supervise the employer's workers at that workplace.

DESIGNATION OF PRIME CONTRACTOR STATUS

The City of Kelowna recognizes that some organizations may not meet requirements necessary to be
designated as a prime contractor. Organizations that do not meet these conditions will be given a City of
Kelowna orientation and the City will act as the Prime Contractor.

The preferred qualifications for designation of Prime Contractor status are:

O CcoRr
L1 Prime Contractor Training Course
U Construction Safety Training System

Page 1 of 2

174



Assignn . of Responsibility & Accountability - COI  >ment 1

PRIME CONTRACTOR PROCEDURE

Please provide the following items:

History

A. Alist of current projects in which your organization has been designated as Prime Contractor.

B. A list of past projects in which your organization has acted as Prime Contractor.

PRIME CONTRACTOR ACCEPTANCE

THE UNDERSIGNED further states that they have carefully read the foregoing agreement (Contractor
Coordination Program Guide) and know the contents thereof, and by signing same as accept the designation
of Prime Contractor.

Dated at .....csesesssissossissises s5 BiCiz THIS wassssosssnsssssssnsnsssand AAY 0 sssnussssnsssssunassunsonsois , 2013

Prime Contractor City of Kelowna Representative (Witness)
Print Name: Print Name:

Signature: Signature:

Page 2 of 2

175



SN Application for Safety
[ﬁ Pre-Qualification

COR - Element 4

City of
KEIOwn a Occupational Health & Safety Branch

APPLICATION FOR SAFETY PRE-QUALIFICATION

Submissions, Program Content and Inquiries:

Contractors are invited to apply for Safety Pre-Qualification by completing and submitting the “City of
Kelowna Application for Safety Pre-Qualification.”

1. COMPANY IDENTIFICATION

Business Name:

Full Address:

Mailing Address:
(if different)

Phone: Fax:
(Office/Cell) )
The Company is:
[] Sole Proprietorship [] Partnership [[] Limited Company

Number of years in business:

2. INSURANCE & WORKERS COMISENSATION

a) Attach documents demonstrating your coverage for damages to and incidents involving their parties
including general liability insurance, automotive, umbrella policies, etc.

b) Is your company in good standing under the workers compensation board or authority of each
jurisdiction in which it performs work? Q YES orQ NO

If YES provide clearance letter to substantiate, if NO please explain.

3. SAFETY PROGRAM

a) Does your company have a written Health & Safety Policy signed by Management?
O YES orQ NO

If YES please submit with questionnaire.

b) Does your company have written safety policies and procedures including clearly defined safety
responsibilities for managers, supervisors and workers? O YES or O NO

If YES please submit with questionnaire.

c) How do you communicate your Safety Policies and Procedures?

d) How often do managers/executives visit the worksite? Provide details.

Page 1 of 3

176



CITY OF KELOWNA Appl. .ion for Safety Pre-Qualification

4. ATTACHMENTS

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

6)

7)

8)

Please submit a description of your on-site inspection program, including how often inspections are
conducted, what they cover and who conducts them.

Please attach a description of your risk assessment procedures and form(s)

Please attach a description of your incident reporting and investigation procedures, including how
near misses are reported.

Please attach a list of names and qualifications of all supervisors that you use to oversee work.

Do you provide on the job training to all workers? Q YES ORO NO

Please attach a description of your health and safety training program, including how often training
is provided, in what format, topics covered and who provides the training? If easier submit
certificates of staff rather than list.

Please attach a description of how you notify workers of job specific hazards.

Do you discipline workers for committing health and safety violations? 1 YES ORQ NO
Please describe:

Please attach a description of your health and safety committee/representative (or an explanation
as to why you don’t have one), including its activities, frequency of meetings, etc.

Do you have a preventative maintenance program for tools and machinery? O YES OR U NO
Please describe:

10) Please attach a description of how you incorporate subcontractors’ workers into your health and

safety training and other programs.

11) Please attach a description of other programs, activities or information that you believe

demonstrates that your company carries out its projects safely and in accordance with all health and
safety requirements.

Page 2 of 3

177



CITY OF KELOWNA Appli  ion for Safety Pre-Qualification

5. SAFETY PERFORMANCE

Please complete the following charts current to the last 3 years)

Sub-Contractors (Combined Total)

Safety Performance Calculation Instructions:

HRS = F = Fatalities | LTI = LTF = TR= Total TRF= Total
Total hours Lost time injuries, Lost time recordables | recordable
worked loss by a worker at frequency Medical aid | frequency
least 1 day of work Number of +restricted Number of
incidents x duty+ LTI recordable
200,000 divided incidents x
by hours 200,000, divided by
worked. hours worked

Has your company received any Occupational Health & Safety stop-work orders, charges, convictions or fines
in the last 3 years? Q YES ORO NO
Please describe:

Name of Contractor’s
Safety Coordinator:

Contact Information:

Date: Signature:

6. DECLARATION:

I, the undersigned, in application for Safety Pre-Qualification with the City of Kelowna for construction work
and / or other duties, do hereby certify that all information contained in this application is accurate to the
best of my knowledge.

Print Name: Position:

Signature:

Date:

Page 3 of 3

178



179



City of
Kelowna

City Park North End
Non-Motorized Water Activity Concession

Bid Package

For additional information, please contact:
Tammy Abrahamson, Property Officer
tabrahamson@kelowna.ca

Direct Line: (250) 469-8659

Fax: (250) 862-3349

180


mailto:tabrahamson@kelowna.ca

City of Kelowna
City Park North End

Non-Motorized Water Activity Concession Informational Package

Overview

The City of Kelowna is seeking a Contractor to operate a non-motorized water activity
concession from May 15 - September 15. The concession is located at the north end of City
Park, as shown on the attached map. The term of the contract will be for three (3) years with
an option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year terms at the City’s sole discretion.

An optional information meeting will be held on Thursday April 24", 2014 at 1:00 pm at City
Hall, in the Knox Mountain Meeting Room located on the 4™ Floor.

General Scope of Services of the Contractor

The Contractor will provide, equip and operate an activity concession within the designated
area as per Schedule A.

1.

The Contractor will provide for use by the public a non-motorized water activity
concession.

. The Contractor shall maintain all equipment to such standards as will ensure safety for

participants.

. Any anchoring system proposed must be fully within the City of Kelowna water lot area

as noted in the attached map and must be approved by authorities having jurisdiction.

The Contractor shall ensure that no persons too young to operate the proposed activity
are permitted to use them, and shall ensure that no persons operating the proposed
activity do so in an unsafe manner or endanger persons swimming at any of the
designated beaches.

. The Contractor shall ensure that all participants wear personal floatation devices.

. At a minimum the Contractor shall operate during the period of May 15" to September

4™ of each year of the Term, with the exception of the first year which will begin June
30", 2014.

The contractor shall remove the equipment at the end of each season.

City Park is open from 6 am to 11 pm each day and the contractor will provide service
in the parks between 10 am and 8 pm (or dusk whichever is earlier), 7 days per week,
weather permitting for the core season starting the last weekend of June until Labour
Day in September. During the shoulder season the Contractor will supply concession
service between the hours of 12:00pm to 4:00pm, 7 days per week, weather permitting.

. The Term of the contract will be for three (3) years with an option to renew for two (2)

additional one (1) year terms at the City’s sole discretion:

181



10.

11

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

a. Any extension, if offered, will retain all of the terms and conditions of the
original contract or subsequent extension;

b. Such option period will be negotiated at the sole option of the City on the basis
of the rental rate not being less than the rent bid for 2014.

The Contractor will be responsible to obtain all necessary approvals from authorities
having jurisdiction including, but not limited to, the Ministry of the
Environment, Transport Canada, Canada Coast Guard and provide copies of the
approvals prior to installation and operation.

. The Contractor will pay permits, taxes and licenses.

. The Contractor will clean and maintain the area surrounding the concession to the

satisfaction of the City, including clean-up of litter from the immediate area (a radius
of 30 meters from the concession).

The Contractor shall comply with all regulations regarding fire, traffic, safety and shall
acquire all necessary permits.

No outside advertising will be permitted without the consent of the City.

The City leases a food concession in the same park so no food or beverage sales will be
allowed.

Solicitation of the public is not allowed.

The Contractor will be responsible to communicate with the City of Kelowna Outdoor
Events Committee and review the Outdoor Events Calendar to determine the dates the
area will be closed for special events, and as a result will also be closed for the
concession operation, unless agreement can be reached with the event organizer.

The Contractor may not sublet, nor assign the contract without the written consent of
the City. If approved by the City the minimum amount for such assignment shall be
$500.00 payable by the Contractor to the City.

The Contractor is required to supply a bid deposit in the form of a certified cheque
payable to the City of Kelowna in the amount of $1,000. The deposit of the successful
Contractor will be retained as a “performance deposit”.

The Contractor shall be allowed to display one professionally made sign at the space
allotted. The sign is subject to City approval prior to posting.

There will be no structure provided. If the Contractor wishes to provide a structure the
Contractor will be required to meet all regulations and Bylaws and any design must be
approved by the City’s Infrastructure Planning and Parks department.

There will be no power available.

Prior to awarding the bid to the successful Proponent, the Proponent must prove to the
City ownership of the activity equipment listed in the proposal.

182



24,

25.

26.

27

28.

29

30.

31.

32.

33

The City will not provide on-site parking for the Contractor’s vehicle and towing
equipment.

The Contractor will provide 24 hour security on the premises.

The Contractor will be required to enter into a Prime Contractor Agreement with the
City. Contractor Coordination Program Guide, Prime Contractor Designation Form and
Application for Safety Pre-Qualification documents are attached as Schedule C and form
part of the bid package.

. The Contractor will be required to following Canadian Life Saving Society Standards for
operation and supervision of the area.

The Contractor will provide financial statements within 45 days of the end of each
season of the contract.

. The Contractor must acknowledge that the City has applied to the Ministry of the
Environment to commence work with a “sand re-nourishment” program at this specific
location. Should the application be approved, the Contractor at his sole expense will
be responsible to remove all anchors in the lake to allow for the work to be done.

The Contractor will be responsible for all additional swim / marker buoys to be installed
in the lake to ensure a safe swimming area.

The Contractor must keep the promenade clear at all times.

On event days the load in / out of concession related equipment must be scheduled
outside of event times so the prominade is clear and safe for participants.

. The Contractor must specify on a map how much land they require for their proposal.

Submission Requirements

e The Contractor shall provide photographs or illustrations of all equipment to be
offered for rental.

e The Contractor shall provide a schedule of proposed rental rates with the bid
submission.

e Prior to commencing work the Contractor will be required to submit proof of a City
of Kelowna Business License, Work Safe BC Coverage, and shall obtain the
appropriate insurance coverage as listed in Appendix B by providing the City a
Certificate of Insurance proving the coverage is in place. Insurance requirement
will vary depending on activity.

e Prior to commencing work the Contractor shall complete the requirements outlined
in Section 25 Prime Contractor of the bid document.

e Proposals will not be accepted after the final date and time for receipt of proposals,
nor will they be accepted by facsimile.

e Any one party may submit only one proposal. Any party submitting alternate
proposals shall be disqualified. Conditional proposals will not be considered.

183



MANDATORY CRITERIA

The following are mandatory requirements. Proposals not clearly demonstrating that
they meet them will receive no further consideration during the evaluation process.

Mandatory Criteria

a) Proposal received prior to 3 pm, May 9, 2014

b) Certified Cheque in the amount of $1,000

c) Photographs and description of rental equipment, and rental
rates

d) Business case for the proposal

e) Submit three (3) copies of the bid document including name
of company, phone number and email address

DESIRABLE CRITERIA

Proposals meeting the mandatory requirements will be further assessed against the
following criteria. The relative weighting for each criterion is also given.

Criteria Weight

Relevant experience, qualifications and successes. 30

Proposed rental items and proposed prices. 20

Overall proposal for operating a high quality, safe, 30
service oriented venture

Value (S) of proposal to the City 20

TOTAL 100

The City reserves the right to reject any or all responses, to waive defects in any Submission
documents and to accept any Submission or offer which it may consider to be in the best
interest of the City. The lowest or any submission or offer will not necessarily be accepted.

184



Schedule A - Premises

The premises are those lands legally described as that portion of land, located at 1600 Abbot
Street, Kelowna, BC as shown on the drawing below.

185



Schedule B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. Contractor to Provide

The Contractor shall procure and maintain, at its own expense and cost, the insurance
policies listed in section 2, with limits no less than those shown in the respective items,
unless in connection with this lease agreement, the City advises in writing that it has
determined that the exposure to liability justifies less limits. The insurance policy or
policies shall be maintained continuously from commencement of this lease agreement
until the date of termination of the lease agreement or such longer period as may be
specified by the City.

2. Insurance
As a minimum, the Contractor shall, without limiting its obligations or liabilities under
any other contract with the City, procure and maintain, at its own expense and cost,
the following insurance policies:

2.1 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance

(i) providing for an inclusive limit of not less than $5,000,000 for each
occurrence or accident;

(i) providing for all sums which the Contractor shall become legally
obligated to pay for damages because of bodily injury (including death at
any time resulting there from) sustained by any person or persons or
because of damage to or destruction of property caused by an occurrence
or accident arising out of or related to this lease agreement;

(iii)  including coverage for Products/Completed Operations, Blanket
Contractual, Contractor’s Protective, Personal Injury, Contingent
Employer’s Liability, Broad Form Property Damage, and Non-Owned
Automobile Liability.

(iv) Including a Cross Liability clause providing that the inclusion of more
than one Insured shall not in any way affect the rights of any other
insured hereunder, in respect to any claim, demand, suit or judgment
made against any other Insured.

3. The City Named as Additional Insured
The policies required by section 2.1 above shall provide that the City is named as an
Additional Insured thereunder and that said policies are primary without any right of
contribution from any insurance otherwise maintained by the City.

4, Certificates of Insurance
The Contractor agrees to submit a Certificate of Insurance, to the Risk Management
Department of the City prior to the commencement date of this lease agreement. Such
a Certificate shall provide that 30 days’ written notice shall be given to the Risk
Management Department of the City, prior to any material changes or cancellation of
any such policy or policies.

5. Additional Insurance
The Contractor may take out such additional insurance, as it may consider necessary
and desirable. All such additional insurance shall be at no expense to the City.

6. Insurance Companies
All insurance, which the Contractor is required to obtain with respect to this lease
agreement, shall be with insurance companies registered in and licensed to underwrite
such insurance in the province of British Columbia.

7. Failure to Provide
If the Contractor fails to do all or anything which is required of it with regard to
insurance, the City may do all that is necessary to effect and maintain such insurance,
and any monies expended by the City shall be repayable by and recovered from the 186



Contractor. The Contractor expressly authorizes the City to deduct from any monies
owing the Contractor, any monies owing by the Contractor to the City.

Nonpayment of Losses

The failure or refusal to pay losses by any insurance company providing insurance on
behalf of the Contractor shall not be held to waive or release the Contractor from any
of the provisions of the Insurance Requirements or this lease agreement, with respect
to the liability of the Contractor otherwise. Any insurance deductible maintained by
the Contractor under any of the insurance policies is solely for their account and any
such amount incurred by the City will be recovered from the Contractor as stated in
section 7.

Hold Harmless and Indemnification

The Contractor shall be responsible for all loss, costs, damages, and expenses
whatsoever incurred or suffered by the city, its elected officials, officers, employees
and agents (the indemnities) including but not limited to or loss of property and loss of
use thereof, and injury to, or death of a person or persons resulting from or in
conjunction with the performance, purported performance, or non-performance of this
contract, excepting only where such loss, cost, damages and expenses are as a result
of the sole negligence of the indemnities.

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnities from and
against all claims, demands, actions, proceedings, and liabilities whatsoever and all
costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith and resulting from the
performance, purported performance, or non-performance of this contract, excepting
only where such claim, demand, action, proceeding or liability is based on the sole
negligence of the indemnities.

187



32X
&
City of &=

Schedule B-1

Ke I Owna City staff to complete prior to circulation

City Dept.:

Dept. Contact:

Project/Contract/Event:

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE
This Certificate is issued to: The City of Kelowna
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4

Insured Name:
Address:

Broker Name:
Address:

Location and nature of operation or contract to which this Certificate applies:

Limits of Liability/Amounts

Policy Dates
Type of Insurance Company & Policy | Effective Expiry
Number
Section 1
Comprehensive General Liability
including:
e  Products/Completed Operations;
e Blanket Contractual;
e Contractor’'s Protective;
e Personal Injury;
e Contingent Employer’s Liability;
e Broad Form Property Damage;
e Non-Owned Automobile;

e  Cross Liability Clause.

Bodily Injury and Property Damage

$ 5,000,000 Inclusive
$ Aggregate
$ Deductible

Section 2
Automobile Liability

Bodily Injury and Property Damage
$ 5,000,000 Inclusive

It is understood and agreed that the policy/policies noted above shall contain amendments to reflect the following:
1. Any Deductible or Reimbursement Clause contained in the policy shall not apply to the City of
Kelowna and shall be the sole responsibility of the Insured named above.

2. The City of Kelowna is named as an Additional Insured.

3. 30 days prior written notice of material change and/or cancellation will be given to the City of
Kelowna.

Print Name Title Company (Insurer or Broker)

Signature of Authorized Signatory

Date

188



Contractor Coordination Program
Guide

Certificate of Recognition - Element 4

August 2012

Occupational Health & Safety

189



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

Page 2 of 10

190



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

POLICY

To ensure that workers of The City of Kelowna and other employers who are working at The City of Kelowna
workplaces are not placed at risk because of a lack of knowledge of workplace hazards, or a lack of
coordination of workplace safety.

The City of Kelowna will do everything that is reasonably practicable to establish and maintain a system or
process that will ensure compliance with the Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OH&S
Regulations at all workplaces within the City of Kelowna.

The City of Kelowna will ensure that all employers and workers at the City of Kelowna workplaces are aware
of any pre-existing workplace hazards.

The City of Kelowna will ensure co-ordination of occupational health and safety activities on all multiple
employer workplaces, or ensure that a Prime Contractor does so.

SCOPE

This program applies to every situation where workers other than City of Kelowna workers are performing
their job duties at a City of Kelowna workplace.

Exception for Short Term Workplace Visits
The WCB Prevention Manual offers the following guidance on workplace visits: "Virtually all workplaces will
be visited by workers of other employers. For example, workers may deliver or pick up mail, goods, and

materials or enter to inspect premises. Short term visits of this type, even if regular, do not make the
workplace a "multiple-employer workplace” for the purposes of section 118(1)."

DEFINITIONS

Any erection, alteration, repair, dismantling, demolition, structural or routine
maintenance, painting, land clearing, earth moving, grading, excavating, trenching,
digging, boring, drilling, blasting, concreting, the installation of any machinery or
any other work deemed to be construction by the WCB. (WCB OH&S Regulation
Section 20.1)

Construction Project:

Includes a contractor, subcontractor, utility company, government agency or a

Contractor: service company providing/assigning workers and/or services/equipment within the
workplace.

Contractor Safety A contractor's Occupational Health and Safety program as required by WCB OH&S

Program: Regulation.

Multiple employer workplaces are created when workers of two or more employers
are working at the same location.

In this type of workplace workers of one employer do not actually have to come into
contact with the workers of the other employer. They do not even have to be in the

Multiple Employer same place at the same time. What is important is whether or not the workers'

Workplace: activities could affect the health and safety of another employer's workers. This is
true even if the workers on the workplace are workers of City of Kelowna and a
contractor.

Short term visits by couriers, inspectors, and suppliers etc. are not regarded as
workers at the workplace.

Page 3 of 10



CITY OF KELOWNA

Notice of Project:

Prime Contractor:

Qualified
Co-ordinator:

Qualified Person:

Single Employer
Workplace:

Contract
Administrator:

Contract Liaison:

Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

The Notice of Construction Project given by the Prime Contractor, or Owner, to the
Workers' Compensation Board as defined in and required by Section 20.2 (2) and (3)
of the WCB OH&S Regulation.

In relation to a multiple-employer municipal workplace, the contractor, employer or
other person who enters into a written agreement with the City of Kelowna to be the
Prime Contractor.

Applies where a Prime Contractor has been designated.
On a construction workplace, means the person appointed by a Prime Contractor to
co-ordinate occupational health and safety activities within the workplace.

Applies to every contractor hired whether it is a single employer workplace or a
multi-employer workplace.

On a construction workplace, means a person designated by a contractor (other than
the Prime Contractor) to be responsible for that employer's health and safety
activities and responsibilities.

A defined area in which there are workers of only one employer.

Applies where a Prime Contractor has not been designated and the City of Kelowna
assumes Prime Contractor Status. There will be a person designated by City of
Kelowna to co-ordinate workplace safety on multiple employer workplaces and to
receive/review a contractor's safety program, records, documentation, safety
performance, etc.

Applies where a Prime Contractor has been designated. The person designated by
the City of Kelowna to inspect, and be the City contact person for the Prime
Contractor. The Contract Liaison will alert and explain any pre-existing hazards to
the Prime Contractor and receive/review a contractor’s safety program, records,
documentation, etc.

CO-ORDINATION - OVERVIEW

City of Kelowna can decide to coordinate safety activities at a multiple employer workplace or to designate
this responsibility, in writing, to a Prime Contractor to perform the duties of coordination.

On a multiple employer workplace:

The Contract Administrator/Prime Contractor (Qualified Coordinator) must also:

e Ensure that all of the workers at the workplace are aware of any pre-existing hazards on the workplace.

¢ Identify any hazards on the workplace that are created by the work.

e Have a workplace drawing that shows where first aid is located, emergency transportation system for
injured workers, and evacuation marshaling points.

e Have written procedures outlining safe work procedures to be followed by all workers at the workplace.

e Have a workplace drawing showing where all employers at the workplace are working, where first aid is
located, emergency transportation system for injured workers, and evacuation marshalling points.

Page 4 of 10

192



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

RESPONSIBILITIES

City of Kelowna is responsible to determine whether a workplace includes the workers of other employers and
whether this is a multiple employer workplace or a single employer workplace.

Responsibilities: Single Employer Workplace, City of Kelowna
City of Kelowna is responsible to ensure that the contractor at the workplace is aware of all pre-existing
workplace hazards and has the information on how to eliminate or control the hazards.

Contract Administrators:
Contract Administrators are responsible to ensure the following Pre-Qualification Items are filled out by the
potential contractor:

e Conduct the Pre-Qualification questionnaire that includes items such as WCB Coverage, Liability
Insurance, Proof of Safety Program (Policy, Risk Assessments, Inspections, Incident Reporting,
Qualifications, etc)

e Decide whether the contractor should be designated, in writing, as a Prime Contractor or falls under
the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management System

Contract Administrators are responsible to ensure the following Contractor Coordination occurs after
completing the Contractor Pre-Qualification and have been awarded contract:

e Designate the Prime Contractor (Sign off on Prime Contractor Status Form)

e Hold pre-job conferences to confirm contractor understanding of compliance with safety
requirements and awareness of the City of Kelowna specific hazards, and to review job plan of
hazardous work.

e Meet with the contractor and explain any hazards peculiar to the City of Kelowna worksites the
contractor is likely to encounter while performing the work. Establish that work must be done safely
in accordance with WCB and City of Kelowna standards. (Standard contract documents identify the
contractor is responsible for the enforcement of regulations).

e Ask the contractor if he/she has any questions related to the safety of the work or what is expected
during the contract period.

e Reinforce the point that the contractor is responsible for the health and safety of his/her workers and
for ensuring compliance by his workers with the City of Kelowna Occupational Health and Safety
Program and WCB regulations.

e Monitor contractor safety performance (Observations of contractor’s work procedures, finished
products, etc. Should be diarized by noting the contractor’s name, date, time, and location and
briefly noting observations. Follow up action can be based on these diaries.

e Check that contractor has copies of required safety information and supplementary instructions
covering the work to be performed (provide if necessary).

e Monitor contractor safety performance through regular inspections or audits, as appropriate. Doing so
without directing work on site otherwise Prime Contractor will revert back to the owner and in this
case that would be the City of Kelowna.

e Document inspections of contractor performance.

e If necessary, coordinate safety on multiple employer sites.

Contractor:
Note: Applies to a contractor to City of Kelowna and to service providers such as BC Hydro or gas distribution
companies.

The contractor is responsible to ensure the safety of his/her workers. The contractor must inspect his
worksites in accordance with WCB requirements to ensure compliance with WCB and City of Kelowna
regulations.

The contractor is responsible for:

e Reviewing the City of Kelowna’s Contractor Pre-Qualification and submitting all relevant
documentation for this program.

Page 5 of 10

193



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

e  Review and sign off on the City of Kelowna’s Prime Contractor Designation Form. If the contractor is
not capable of assuming prime they will fall under the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management
System and be required to attend a contractor orientation that will explain all of the relevant forms
and processes that are expected from the contractor.

e Ensuring compliance with the Workers Compensation Act and the WCB OH&S Regulation.

City of Kelowna Supervisors:
Supervisors must:
e Ensure that all workers know that a contractor has been designated for projects in their areas.
e If during the normal site visits for contract administration, a City of Kelowna employee observes the
work being done by the contractor and hazards are observed, corrective action must follow.
e Ensure they do not assign duties, which take City of Kelowna workers into the contractors work area.
¢ Contact the Contract Administrator if any worker reports that they must enter the contractor’s work
site to do their job.

City of Kelowna Workers:
All workers are responsible to ensure that their duties do not take them into the single employer workplace.
If they must enter the workplace, they must inform their supervisor.

Other Contractors (Sub-Contractors or Multiple Contractors at same site):
Other contractors are responsible to deliver to the Prime Contractor’s Qualified Coordinator the name of the
person who supervises their workers.

On a construction workplace, the contractors must designate a Qualified Person to be responsible for that

contractor's health and safety activities. That contractor must give the name of this Qualified Person to the
Prime Contractor.

PROGRAM DETAILS

This program is designed to help ensure that when contractors are working at a City of Kelowna workplace,
the work is performed safely and there is no unnecessary increase in liability for City of Kelowna as a result of
their actions.

Situation Identification
There are two types of situations where workers of another employer are performing duties at a City of
Kelowna workplace.

The first of these, and most difficult for the organization to control, are workers who are not performing
contract work for City of Kelowna. They may include the workers of a utility company, a government agency
or Service Company. The typical example might be workers of a gas utility company who have set up traffic
control to do repair work on the gas distribution system. They are at a workplace, and City of Kelowna
workers may be working on the same workplace.

It is the responsibility of City of Kelowna to ensure that the workplace is safe and that all workers, including
contractors and their employees, are aware of the workplace hazards of which the organization has
knowledge as owners of the workplace. As long as there are no interactions, or overlap between workplaces
that would create hazards for the workers of the contractor or for the workers of City of Kelowna there is no
further action required.

The second situation is one that the organization is most familiar with. This is a situation where a contractor
has come onto a workplace to perform work for City of Kelowna. In this situation, there is still the
responsibility to ensure that the workplace is safe, and that the contractor is aware of pre-existing hazards.

Any other workplace hazards must also be identified.

Page 6 of 10

194



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

Providing methods to eliminate or control workplace hazards will include providing the contractor with the
City of Kelowna safety program and procedures. If the contractor is going to do work that is not covered by
the safety program, it is important that once the hazards are identified, the contractor provides the written
procedures for the work.

Multiple Employer Workplaces
Multiple employer workplaces are created when the workers of two or more employers are working at the
same location. They do not have to both been working all of the time.

If they are both at the workplace and the activities of either employer can affect the health and safety of
workers of the other employer, then the workplace becomes a multiple employer workplace. This is true
even if the workers on the workplace are workers of the contractor and City of Kelowna.

When City of Kelowna has contractors on a multiple employer workplace; there is a requirement for
coordination of activities.

The Contract Administrator can fulfill this coordination role, or it can be delegated to a contractor, who is
designated as Prime Contractor in writing.

Contractors must give Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor the names of the individuals who will
be supervising their workers.

Prime Contractor Designation

In the past contracted work was much simpler than it is today. A project was developed and put out to bid.
The successful bidder hired other contractors. These contractors were subcontractors to the successful
bidder. In these cases the successful bidder was usually referred to as the “Principal” or “Prime Contractor”.

As a result of amendments to the Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OHS Regulation, it is
now very important that City of Kelowna carefully decides whether to designate a contractor in writing as the
Prime Contractor. The decision on whether to designate a Prime Contractor rests with Contract
Administrator otherwise the City of Kelowna assumes Prime contractor Status and all contractors would then
be mandated to follow the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management System.

The responsibility for coordination of activities at the workplace, and for ensuring compliance with the
Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OHS Regulation will rest with the Prime Contractor.

It is also very important that these contractors are made aware of all of the pre-existing workplace hazards
that might put their workers at risk. They must also be given the information that they need on how to
eliminate or control those hazards.

If the City of Kelowna appoints a Prime Contractor the affected contractor(s) will be given written notice in
the form of the Prime Contractor Designate Form.

WORKPLACE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

The Prime Contractor has the responsibility to:

e Ensure work is done in a safe manner that complies with all regulatory requirements.

e Direct and co-ordinate the work activities related to the health and safety of all contractors and any
other workers on the workplace.

e Have a supervisor readily available at the workplace. This supervisor will have the necessary skills,
qualifications and experience to co-ordinate the health and safety activities of the workers.

e Obtain from the organization written information on hazards and conditions and the methods to
address the hazards and conditions and will circulate this information.

Page 7 of 10

195



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

Ensure first aid facilities are provided and maintained on the workplace in accordance with Part 33 of
the WCB OHS Regulation.

Take all reasonable steps to ensure that the occupational health and safety activities of all
Contractors and their workers comply with the WCB OHS Regulation.

Immediately give Contract Administrator the name of any contractor who does not co-operate, assist
or do what the qualified co-ordinator requires regarding co-ordination of health and safety activities
within the workplace.

All Contractors:
Prior to starting any work at the workplace, the Contractor must:

Have its own Safety Program or follow the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management System.
Ensure the safety program meets the requirements of Part 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Act and
Part 3 of the WCB OHS Regulation.

Ensure there is a supervisor at the workplace that has the necessary skills and experience to run the
Contractor's Safety Program.

At the start of work, the Contractor will provide Contract Administrator or Contract Liaison in
writing, the names of all supervisors.

Contract Administrator or Prime Contractor, must be immediately informed of any changes.

The Contractor must:

Ensure that a Joint Health and Safety (JHS) Committee is formed for the workplace if required by the
Workers Compensation Amendment Act, and that the activities of the JHS Committee meet the
requirements of the of the Workers Compensation Act.

Advise Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor, of any accidents or incidents at the workplace
that must be reported to the Workers' Compensation Board.

Inform all persons working on the workplace of the health and safety requirements at the workplace.
At all times the contractor will ensure that its workers and subcontractors, and all other workers
coming onto the workplace will:

Comply with the Workers Compensation Amendment Act and the WCB OHS Regulation.

Comply with the contractor's safety program or the City of Kelowna’s Health & Safety Management
Program

Comply with Contract Administrator (or Prime Contractor's) safety requirements for the work
activities within the workplace.

Provide occupational health and safety records and documentation to Contract Administrator or
Prime Contractor.

Follow the directions of Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor on all matters relating to
occupational health and safety.

Inform Contract Administrator or the Prime Contractor of any information that they require to co-
ordinate each employer's work activities within the workplace.

PRIME CONTRACTOR'S HEALTH AND SAFETY RECORDS

The Prime Contractor must:

Maintain all occupational health and safety documentation at one location at or near the workplace
and make these documents available to Contract Administrator or Contract Liaison.

Ensure that its Qualified Co-ordinator collects records of all JHS Committee proceedings at the
workplace and distributes them to other qualified persons working within the workplace and to the
WCB.

In the event of an accident that requires notification to the Workers' Compensation Board, at the
same time, notify Contract Administrator or Contract Liaison about the accident.

If requested, provide information on the progress of the investigation and co-ordinate all responses to
requests for information with City of Kelowna.

Page 8 of 10

196



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

Contract Liaison
If a Prime Contractor is appointed, Contract Liaison will be the City of Kelowna workplace representative and
have duties and responsibilities that include but are not limited to the following:
e To ensure all contractors are informed of appointment of the Prime Contractor.
e To inform the Prime Contractor that they must be copied in all communications.
¢ To monitor the Prime Contractor's compliance with the safety requirements of the contract.
e To ensure that City of Kelowna workers do not direct or supervise any contractor's workers on the
workplace.
To receive and/or distribute all necessary documentation.
e To ensure that all pre-existing hazards of the workplace and procedures for addressing the hazards
are conveyed to the Prime Contractor.

If there is no designated Prime Contractor on a multiple employer workplace the responsibility to coordinate
the activities of all employers at the workplace lies with Contract Administrator which is the City of Kelowna.

Contract Administrator will also watch for situations where the work of one contractor or a worker of City of
Kelowna could cause a hazard to the workers of another contractor. It is Contract Administrator's
responsibility to ensure that these situations are controlled.

Contract Administrator will ensure that contractors coming onto the workplace bring with them their written

procedures. If the contractors do not bring written procedures, Contract Administrator must develop those
procedures.

TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

Goal
To ensure that no workers will be put at risk and no liability will accrue to the organization as a result of
workers of another employer performing duties on a workplace owned by the organization.

Objectives
As a result of this training, workers and supervisors will:

e Understand the organization’s policy on contractor coordination including the pre-qualification,
designation of prime contractor status and potential for the city of Kelowna to be the prime
contractor

e Know what their responsibilities are, and understand the responsibilities of other people.

Summary of Training

Why workplace safety coordination is necessary.

The responsibilities for workplace safety coordination.

How to determine if workplace coordination is required.

The effects of the Workers’ Compensation Amendment Act on contractor coordination.
The definitions used in the contractor coordination program.

When to designate a Prime Contractor or for the City to assume prime themselves.
Typical hazards that must be addressed.

How to complete forms and documentation.

Correct responses to typical situations.

PROGRAM MAINTENANCE

Annual review of this program will focus on the number of situations when other employers were on the
organization’s workplace, and whether any liability accrued to the organization as a result.

Page 9 of 10

197



CITY OF KELOWNA Contractor Coordination Program - COK Element 4

DOCUMENTATION

The documentation for this program includes:
e Contract template that includes language concerning Prime Contractor.
e Safety program with names or positions of those responsible for coordination.
o Completed reviews of contractor safety programs.
e Documentation of discussions with contractors regarding supervision.

Page 10 of 10

198



P Prime Contractor Designhation

City of w ?,% Form

v <d
KEIOwna Occupational Health & Safety Branch COR - Element 4

PROJECT

After the City of Kelowna has awarded tender/contract it is necessary to see if the contractor can assume the
Prime Contractor role. If the municipality must be deemed the prime contractor they will cover all safety
related items with a City of Kelowna orientation. This orientation will cover all city requirements with OH&S
regulations as a minimum.

This process will ensure that all contractors are suitably qualified to manage health and safety issues on
complex work sites that involve multi-employer relationships. Financial strength, bonding, insurance, technical
ability, and expertise will also be taken into consideration. This process is intended to be the Municipality's
designation of Prime Contractor status, where appropriate.

Coordination at multiple-employer workplaces
118

(1) In this section:

"multiple-employer workplace” means a workplace where workers of 2 or more employers are working at the
same time;

"prime contractor” means, in relation to a multiple-employer workplace,

(a) the directing contractor, employer or other person who enters into a written agreement with the owner of
that workplace to be the prime contractor for the purposes of this Part, or

(b) if there is no agreement referred to in paragraph (a), the owner of the workplace.
(2) The prime contractor of a multiple-employer workplace must

(a) ensure that the activities of employers, workers and other persons at the workplace relating to
occupational health and safety are coordinated, and

(b) do everything that is reasonably practicable to establish and maintain a system or process that will ensure
compliance with this Part and the regulations in respect of the workplace.

(3) Each employer of workers at a multiple-employer workplace must give to the prime contractor the name
of the person the employer has designated to supervise the employer's workers at that workplace.

DESIGNATION OF PRIME CONTRACTOR STATUS

The City of Kelowna recognizes that some organizations may not meet requirements necessary to be
designated as a prime contractor. Organizations that do not meet these conditions will be given a City of
Kelowna orientation and the City will act as the Prime Contractor.

The preferred qualifications for designation of Prime Contractor status are:

O COoR
O Prime Contractor Training Course
U Construction Safety Training System

Page 10f 2 199




Assignment of Responsibility & Accountability - COR Element 1

PRIME CONTRACTOR PROCEDURE

Please provide the following items:

History

A. Alist of current projects in which your organization has been designated as Prime Contractor.

B. A list of past projects in which your organization has acted as Prime Contractor.

PRIME CONTRACTOR ACCEPTANCE

THE UNDERSIGNED further states that they have carefully read the foregoing agreement (Contractor
Coordination Program Guide) and know the contents thereof, and by signing same as accept the designation
of Prime Contractor.

Dated at ., B.C., this e day Of....ccceveureeeeee , 2013

Prime Contractor City of Kelowna Representative (Witness)
Print Name: Print Name:

Signature: Signature:

Page 20f 2 200



=N Application for Safety
City of ;w ?,% Pre-Qualification

v <d
KEIOwna Occupational Health & Safety Branch COR - Element 4

APPLICATION FOR SAFETY PRE-QUALIFICATION

Submissions, Program Content and Inquiries:

Contractors are invited to apply for Safety Pre-Qualification by completing and submitting the “City of
Kelowna Application for Safety Pre-Qualification.”

1. COMPANY IDENTIFICATION
Business Name:

Full Address:
Mailing Address:

(if different)
Phone: Fax:
(Office/Cell) :
The Company is:
] Sole Proprietorship ] Partnership [] Limited Company

Number of years in business:

2. INSURANCE & WORKERS COMPENSATION

a) Attach documents demonstrating your coverage for damages to and incidents involving their parties
including general liability insurance, automotive, umbrella policies, etc.

b) Is your company in good standing under the workers compensation board or authority of each
jurisdiction in which it performs work? d YES orQ NO

If YES provide clearance letter to substantiate, if NO please explain.

3. SAFETY PROGRAM

a) Does your company have a written Health & Safety Policy signed by Management?
Q YES orQ NO

If YES please submit with questionnaire.

b) Does your company have written safety policies and procedures including clearly defined safety
responsibilities for managers, supervisors and workers? 0 YES orQd NO

If YES please submit with questionnaire.

c) How do you communicate your Safety Policies and Procedures?

d) How often do managers/executives visit the worksite? Provide details.

Page 10of 3 201



CITY OF KELOWNA Application for Safety Pre-Qualification

4. ATTACHMENTS

1) Please submit a description of your on-site inspection program, including how often inspections are
conducted, what they cover and who conducts them.

2) Please attach a description of your risk assessment procedures and form(s)

3) Please attach a description of your incident reporting and investigation procedures, including how
near misses are reported.

4) Please attach a list of names and qualifications of all supervisors that you use to oversee work.

5) Do you provide on the job training to all workers? O YES ORO NO
Please attach a description of your health and safety training program, including how often training
is provided, in what format, topics covered and who provides the training? If easier submit
certificates of staff rather than list.

6) Please attach a description of how you notify workers of job specific hazards.

7) Do you discipline workers for committing health and safety violations? O YES OR Q1 NO
Please describe:

8) Please attach a description of your health and safety committee/representative (or an explanation
as to why you don’t have one), including its activities, frequency of meetings, etc.

9) Do you have a preventative maintenance program for tools and machinery? O YES OR O NO
Please describe:

10) Please attach a description of how you incorporate subcontractors’ workers into your health and
safety training and other programs.

11) Please attach a description of other programs, activities or information that you believe

demonstrates that your company carries out its projects safely and in accordance with all health and
safety requirements.

Page 20f 3 2()2



CITY OF KELOWNA Application for Safety Pre-Qualification

5. SAFETY PERFORMANCE

Please complete the following charts current to the last 3 years)

Year Hrs F LTI TR TRF

Sub-Contractors (Combined Total)

Year \ Hrs \ F \ LTI TR TRF

Safety Performance Calculation Instructions:

HRS = F = Fatalities | LTI = LTF = TR= Total TRF= Total
Total hours Lost time injuries, Lost time recordables | recordable
worked loss by a worker at frequency Medical aid frequency
least 1 day of work Number of +restricted Number of
incidents x duty+ LTI recordable
200,000 divided incidents x
by hours 200,000, divided by
worked. hours worked

Has your company received any Occupational Health & Safety stop-work orders, charges, convictions or fines
in the last 3 years? d YES ORO NO
Please describe:

Name of Contractor’s
Safety Coordinator:

Contact Information:

Date: Signature:

6. DECLARATION:

I, the undersigned, in application for Safety Pre-Qualification with the City of Kelowna for construction work
and / or other duties, do hereby certify that all information contained in this application is accurate to the
best of my knowledge.

Print Name: Position:

Signature:

Date:

Page 30of 3 203



Schedule B - Premises

The premises are those lands legally described as that portion of land, located at 1600 Abbot
Street, Kelowna, BC as shown on the drawing below.

204



G wibit

Wibit Sports Park — Kelowna
Business Proposal




Business Proposal: Outline

1.0 Executive SUMMBTY sssmmecmmmmmmtmssonsmmnrmssenss page 1-3
1.1 Objective --=-=-==mmnmmmmmmm oo page 2
1.2 MiSSion ----=--mmmmmmmmmme e e page 3
2.0 Company SIMIHALY sn=sssssssanmmmsssninanions o page 3-5
3.0 Services ==---m-m-=smmsmmmmme s s oS n e s page 5
4.0 Community Benefits -----------=-mmmmmmmco e page 6-7
4.1 Control of Community Impact ------------------- page 6
4.2 Control of Environmental Impact --------------- page 6
4.3 Site Sustainability -------=------=-c-coeme e page 7
5.0 Safety -----m-mmmmmmm o page 7-8
6.0 Market Analysis Summary --------=-=-=------s-memcmeneme page 8-9
7.0 Strategy and Implementation Summary --------------- page 9-10
7.1 Competitive Edge ----------------------occemmeemee page 10
8.0 Financial Investment ----=-=--=-=-==emmmmmmmomcec e page 10
8.1 Concession Bid ----------=-=-=--mnmmmmmmmceeeeen page 11

9.0 Attachments
9.1 Wibit sports park Location
9.2 Wibit sports park 60+ Combination Info
9.3 Wibit anchoring recommendations
9.4 A. Safety Rules,
B. Lifeguard Recommendation
C. Emergency Exit Plan
9.5 A.Installation Manual
B. Wibit Product Standards
9.6 Why Wibit




1.0 Executive Summary

Kelowna Wibit (name is subject to change) is a company devoted to providing a
quality service focused on customer relations and physical activity, while keeping
the highest regards for safety. The company is built on a foundation of passion and
experience in the water sports industry. The Wibit Aquatic Sports Park provides KW
the opportunity to give the community a unique service, which promotes fitness and
tourism in a way that complements the city’s vibrancy.

KW will provide the city of Kelowna with a great, sustainable, tourist attraction. Due
to a wide range of versatility KW is not limited to a minuscule, tourism based, target
marking. The city of Kelowna has a growing population of 117,000, which close to
doubles during the summer season. This gives KW a large sustainable target market
due of the ability to provide a wide range of unique activities for all ages.

Five Year Growth

8.000 ~

Number of
Customers

Year
Years: Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Number of | 3000 4000 5200 6000 6200
Customers

207



e Each year increasing by 30% in customer volume, up to year 4, shows a
conservative estimate incorporating relative customer increase.

e KW’s growth is not limited to one location, or British Columbia. When
business expands it is likely to reach waterfront areas of equal or greater
sustainability

Management of Kelowna Wibit include:

e Ryland Gallagher
e Randy Gallagher

Contact info:

Okanagangwatersports@gmail.com
250 462 8770

1.10 Objectives

Kelowna Wibit’s objective is to achieve customer satisfaction while providing
service to approximately 6,000 customers per indicated season, after initial start up
growth. KW is focused first and foremost on building business in Kelowna to its full
potential; KW also plans to continue growth with Wibit affiliation in Penticton and
Australia.

Financial goals:

e Achieve 25% margin payable on books first year
e Keep cost of operation below 40%

e Donate profit of one weekend to a local charity
e Minimum of 30% increase of revenue each year

N7
e



1.2Mission

Our mission is to make activities on the water affordable, accessible, and
environmentally safe. With the Wibit Aqua Park equipment KW can assist customers
to properly experience the Okanagan’s greatest attraction; it's lakes.

2.0 Ability to Manage Activities

Kelowna Wibit is a new business title (name subject to change), however management
has ownership and has been involvement in water sport companies such as:
e Summerland Boat Rentals Ltd (SBR) operating since 2006
e Penticton Boat Rentals (PBR) operating since 2011
www.pentictonboatrentals.com
e (Osoyoos Water Sports (OWS) operating since 2011.
WWW.0S0yoOoswatersports.com

All companies have provided safe and enjoyable recreational opportunities on the water
serving visitors and residents primarily in the southern communities of the Okanagan
region of BC, Canada.

Previously building three successful water sport businesses gives Kelowna Wibit a
significant advantage. Their experience demonstrates the ability to build a new
sustainable business while maintaining great customer service, and safety on the water.

Kelowna Wibit staff will be qualified and trained to provide all safety and First Aid, they
also ensure that the environment is treated with the utmost respect. To ensure quality and
compliance with KW’s strategic plan, their staff and supervisors are carefully selected.

Fundamentals of KW Operation

Provide stimulus to local tourism and economic development

Based on shared use of Water & Beach area

Based on long-term sustainability

KW is dedicated to provide a recreational activity that fits with the community
needs providing the best experience possible, while maintaining safety.

N7
Ce®

209



The Wibit Sports Park includes the following:

Waterfront & Beach Site (refer to attachment 9.1)
Season of operation: May 15 - September 15 (weather permitting)
Hours of operation: 10:00 am - 8:00 pm daily with flexibility to adjust opening
and closing times.
All participants are required to sign waivers & wear life jackets
Life guards on duty during operational hours
24 hour security staff on site
All appropriate insurances and levels of insurance as defined by the City of
Kelowna and/or otherwise to be arranged for by KW
All applicable permits and licenses to be arranged for by KW
Any procedures and regulations the City wished to incorporate, would be
complied with
The Aqua Park operation will create 12 — 16 student employment positions
Wibit Sports Products, meet the highest standards of safety in the industry.
o Please refer to attachment or www.wibitsports.com for additional
information.
All staff will be required to have a first aid certificate.
An engineered anchoring system will be employed to ensure the Aqua Park is
secure (refer to attachment 9.3)

Space Required: ‘60+ Sports Park Setup’

The Aquatic Sport Park will require a depth of 4 - 9 feet — The Park surface area
is 100° X 130’ft or 30x40m (refer to attachment 9.1)

No City Services are required

Space for Retail & Trailer 24’ X 8’ for first aid, all activity night storage

An area on the beach for conducting registration, orientation & life jacket
disbursal.

210



Daily operation logistics:

Hours of operation 10:00 am — 8:00 pm

A minimum of two trained lifeguard will be on the park for all hours of operation
All participants will be required to sign a liability release form prior to entering
the park

Children under the age of 18 must have consent from a legal guardian

Children under the age of 10 must has supervision by an adult who is required to
be in the park at all times

All participants will be required to wear a properly fitted life jacket

All life jackets will be issued with a Velcro crest indicating the time at which the
customer must return to shore; issued times will be labeled in half an hour
increments

Tickets will be issued at $25 CAD for a one day pass with a maximum time of 2
hours spent on the park before taking a beak on shore (maximum time is subject
to change depending on customer volume)

After hours of operation the park will be accompanied by trained security to
prevent trespassing and vandalism

3.0 Services

Services will include:

Access to Kelowna Sports Park’s equipment through ticket purchase
Scheduled team functions/ team building events

Trained life guard during park hours

Interactive physical activity promoting healthy living

Beach area cleaning of leased concession and surrounding area

24 hour security

Emergency services personal presenting a badge are given free entry
Scheduled local charity fund raising through ticket sales and donations

211



4.0 Community Benefits

The Wibit aquatic sports park provides locals and tourist with an activity rich in physical
interaction. Because of the aqua park’s wide range of capabilities we will be able to
provide friendly, competitive activities along with organized team building events.
Kelowna Aqua Park also plans to fund raise for a selected local charity through ticket
sales and donations of one scheduled weekend.

4.1 Control of Community Impact

The Wibit sports and events will primarily take place in the water diverting any volume
of customers off of the public beach and into the parks marked off swimming area. The
following outlined areas provide protection of amenities to existing residents while
facilitating our customers. The aqua park will be installed at the beginning of the pre-
determined season and removed once it is over. Life jackets will be mandatory with
participation in the park area. Tickets will be issued with limitations of two hours before
returning to shore. Because the aqua park is physically demanding customers will be
limited to the amount of time consecutively spent on the aqua park. These guidelines
allow us to achieve maximum safety while sustaining a constant rotation of customers.
The Aqua Park will have a staff of trained lifeguards who will be provided all safety
equipment necessary. After hours of operation the aqua park will be accompanied by 24-
hour security.

4.2 Control of Environment Impact

There is no negative environmental impact caused to local wildlife or their environment
from the Wibit Aqua Park. Permanent components of Wibit Aqua Parks consist of the
engineered anchoring systems. KW does acknowledge the sand re-nourishment program
and is able to remove the anchoring system when needed.

212



4.3 Site Suitability

This proposal provides for a new, additional, attraction on the waterfront, to promote
tourism and economic benefit to the community.

It supports the City’s Vision of vibrancy and the strategic priority of waterfront
enhancement.

This long-term sustainable visitor and resident attraction provides affordable, healthy,
family fun and promotes active living.

5.0 Safety

Kelowna Wibit will be under lifeguard supervision during all hours of operation.
Outside of operating hours the sports park will be accompanied by hired security.
Kelowna Wibit will also provide free water to staff and customers to prevent
dehydration.

The Wibit sports park will be inspected twice each day. Safety checks will involve
equipment over-view and security of anchoring.

The Wibit sports park will make all necessary safety rules and regulations visible
and known to customers (refer to attachment 9.4-A). Emergency evacuation and
emergency transport procedures will also be clearly explained to all participants
(refer to attachment 9.1 for emergency transports)(refer to attachment 9.1 and 9.4-
C for emergency evacuation)

Lifeguards will be equipped with:

e Rescue tube or buoy
e Two-way radio

e Paddle board

e Binoculars

e Sun protection

e Mask, Fins, Snorkel
e Standard first aid kit

<
Q@

213



Standard First Aid Kit Level 1 Contents:

24 14 cm x 19 cm wound cleaning towelettes, individually packaged
60 hand cleansing towelettes, individually packaged

100 sterile adhesive dressings, assorted sizes, individually packaged
12 10 cm x 10 cm sterile gauze dressings, individually packaged

4 10 cm x 16.5 cm sterile pressure dressings with crepe ties

2 7.5 cm x 4.5 m crepe roller bandages

1 2.5 cm x 4.5 m adhesive tape

4 20 cm x 25 cm sterile abdominal dressings, individually packaged
6 cotton triangular bandages, minimum length of base 1.25 m

16 safety pins

1 14 cm stainless steel bandage scissors or universal scissors

1 11.5 cm stainless steel sliver forceps

12 cotton tip applicators

1 pocket mask with oxygen inlet + secondary face shield

6 pairs of medical gloves

first aid records, pen & pencil

3 blankets

Insurance:

Upon receiving the Kelowna north-end city park lease, Kelowna Wibit will comply
with all City of Kelowna insurance requirements of ‘Schedule B’ in the Non-
Motorized Water Activity Bid Package.

6.0 Marketing Analysis Summary

Kelowna offers a diverse market of locals and tourist of all ages. With over 4,400
hotel rooms to accommodate tourist, it is estimated that Kelowna'’s population of
117,000 nearly doubles during the summer months. KW’s primary target markets
are young families and teens. KW will reach these target markets through:

Cross marketing - working with existing companies in the community to co-
promote.

Cross media marketing - primarily marketing with established travel sites,
social media, and emailing previous customer base.

Promotional marketing - KW will be very active in marketing to local schools
along with sports clubs, and summer camps

@,
Q@

214



30

10

Market Analysis (age group) by pereentage

s
5 O10-15
15-20

[ JRIE

Age group: 5-10 10-15 15-20 20+
Percentage 20 40 30 10
(%)

KW target market will be primarily ages 10-15, however there is still a large market

in young families, which incorporate age groups 5-10 and 20+

7.0 Strategy and Implementation Summary

Kelowna Wibit is focused on accommodating locals and tourist to the city of

Kelowna with the waterfront enhancement of water sports equipment, including un

motorized water activities such as:
e Wibit Sports Park 60+

215



10.

7.1 Competitive Edge

Involvement in Summerland Boat Rentals, Penticton Boat Rentals, and Osoyoos
Water Sports gives KW an advantage by already having a loyal consumer base,
which will extend to and continue with the Wibit Sports Park. This gives Kelowna
Wibit management, collectively, 16 years of experience through operating 3
businesses in the water sports industry located in the Okanagan region. However, it
is a lifetime of experience having fun on the water that makes KW want to provide
the same opportunity for the community and its visitors.

The Wibit sports park gives KW the opportunity to provide an activity for young kid
and their families to share our love for the water.

Summary:

e Combined 16 years experience in the water sports industry

e Experience in starting and operating successful seasonal water sport
business

e Local knowledge and business relationships

e Established business relationship with Wibit Canada (Aquam distributors)

e Established quality product line

8.0 Financial Investment

Wibit Sports Equipment:

e Sports Park 60+ - $79,995.00 (USD) (May 5th exchange rate 0.911571)
$87,698.52 (CAD)

e Shipping and handling - $1,000

e 59 GST tax - $4,384.93

e Anchoring system - $6,000

e (Cargo trailer - $10,000

Safety Equipment:

Paddle board - $1,000
Life jackets - $5,000
First aid with defibrillator - $1,500

Radios - $300
Mask, snorkel, fins - $100
e Marketing - $10,000

:@c 216



Amount

(9)

e Insurance-$7,000
e Miscellaneous expenses - $6,000

Estimated Total:

- $139,983.45 CAD (bid not included)

8.1 Concession Bid

Concession Bid

11.

Concession Bid
14,000 14,000
12,000 12,000
11,600 11,600 ﬁlV
10,V
9.200 9.200 9.C2/
. son—"]
2%
6.800 - < 6800
4,400 4,400
2,000 J 2,000
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4
Year Year

Year 1 2 3 4 5

Amount 8,000 9,000 10,000 11,000 12,000

€3]

Year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5

Percent 12.5 11 10 9

increase (%)

Year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5

Amount 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

increase ($)

217



12.

Bid Structure:

Structuring the bid of ‘Kelowna Park North End Non- Motorized Water Activity
Concession’ with increasing increments of one thousand dollars retains simplicity
and allows KW’s customer base to mature before reaching a twelve thousand dollar
cap. This creates a five year total of $50,000 with a yearly average lease rate of
$10,000 plus applicable taxes.

@
@::ﬁ

218



References:

e 2014 W ibit booklet provided by ‘Aquam’

e www.wibitsports.com - Logo, product information

e www.kelowna.ca - City logo, bidding information

e www.bcfirstaid.ca - Safety, first aid

e www.nes.ed.gov - Five-Year Growth, Market Analysis, Concession bid graphs

O 210



A 'HOVC)QVVL?/” )’

9.

Tickets will be sold in v..c . cone ccvenn «cnne
Dimensions: L. 9.0 x W. 6.8 x H. 8.0 ft.

Red - Outlined area of Wibit Sports Park & ticket sales area

Yellow - Outlined emergency evacuation meeting areas

Orange - Outlined emergency transport area, if inaccessible emergency
transport will be at the closed main street located at evacuation area #2




A

>
)
a
—_
(]
-
()
=
Y
o
=
e
+
=
o
>
(<))
(]
il =
el

Sports Park 60+

Combination
Info

Company name

Contact person
Street, nr.

City, ZIP Code
Country

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document, particularly

text, photographs and drawings, is protected

by copyright. Wibit Sports GmbH owns exclusive
exploitation rights, unless labeled otherwise.

A reproduction, even in extracts, is strictly forbidden.




Wibit - Sports Park 60+ (refer to attachment 9.2 for full equipment list)




Combination information

The Sports Park 60+ consists of:

<

V
4

E’ 1x Action Tower XXL 2x Balance Beam
=

| —

(V]

)

o -

= _—

Y e

5 =

=

(=)

= 1x Bridge 1x Cliff

=

[)

>

(<]

2 / <

= \\ - v Q

1x Double Rocker 1x Flip

2X Junction 3x Pond

o)+

18x Safety Buoy 3x SideKick

1x Spinner ) 1x Swing

[
2
%
2
=
x
LY
»
=
2
=]
> =3
=1
E
o
9
=
o
(=%
wv
=
]
-
=

o
@
@
o
5
v
)
]
=
|
g
£
20
c
o
S
a
X
()

text, photographs and drawings, Is protected

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH
The content of this document, particularly

=
173
22}
wvi
g
o]
!
&
%
fo]
=
=
o
>
@
c
8
=t
o]
5
©
2
a
®
<

Combination_Info_SP60+_1

<>

1x Base

1x Curve

=

1x Flipper

==

1x Ramp

Ve

1x Slider

1x Trampoline

£

1x Bouncer XXL

1x IceTower XXL

o

1x Roller

1x Slide



Wibit Products

- v

Action Tower XL  Action Tower XXL Balance Beam Base Beach Tent Billboard
Bouncer XL Bouncer XXL Bridge Cliff Climber Curve

- Wy e = ,[_1 <z

Deck Double Rocker Flip Flipper High Jump Hurdle

= - ‘

IceTower XL IceTower XXL Junction Kayak Goal Kayak Long Jump

>
.0
Q.
=
()
+—
m
2
Y—
(@)
=
2
=
=,
o
>
(¢]
(<))
.
+—

Mini Spinner Oval Podium Polo Goal Pond Ramp

Rocker Roller Safety Buoy SideKick Sled Slide
Ve b &2 9,
Slider Slope Spinner Splasher Swing Target Cube

i

Trampoline Volley Wibit Hand Wiggle Bridge

hts, unless labeled otherwise.
ormity_1

A reproduction, even in extracts, is strictly forbidden.

by copyright. Wibit Sports GmbH owns exclusive

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document, particularly
text, photographs and drawings, Is protected

Certificate_of_confi

exploitat

224




Combination information
The Sports Park 60+ can best be used for:

open water  commercial pool  deep water shallow water games events free play

v v v v
Persons per combination:

L

< R

the evolution of waterplay

+
-
@

Technical info:

ctly forbidden.

Item Shipping Info Gross Weight Net Weight Dimensions #¥M Min. Water i‘ Electric Hand Inflation Anchor
No. LxWxH kg/lbs kg/lbs LxWxH &3 Depth ~ > Pump Pump Time Bungee

40,0x32,0x4,3m

2163kg/4764lbs - 1946kg/4290Ibs ‘1305 1050x 141 3.0m/9.8ft

Wibit Sports GmbH owns exclusive

ion rights, unless labeled oth
uction, even in extracts, is st

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document, particularly
text, photographs and drawings, is protected

Combination_Info_SP60+_1

225




>
ne)
a
=
(<]
+—
mn
=
y—
o
=
S
4
=,
o
>
@
Q
=
+—

Installation
Open Water - detailed

You have made the right decision on purchasing a Wibit Sports Park!

This document quides you through the most important steps that you need to consider when setting up a

Wibit Sports Park yourself.

Wibit will gladly assist with any further operational information or materials you will need for the Sports Park.

Note: These are general instructions recommended by Wibit!
Please study your location carefully to be aware of any special needs!

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document, particularly

text, photographs and drawings, is protected

by copyright. Wibit Sports GmbH owns exclusive
exploitation rights, unless labeled otherwise.

A reproduction, even in extracts, is strictly forbidden.




Anchoring

Anchors

Your number one priority is the anchors! Either purchase these from a local company or build them
yourself. Ask your local marina for advice.

Wibit recommends using two different sized concrete anchors depending on the specific product.

Y|

7cm/ 3in

30cm/ 12in

the evolution of waterplay

\
ble concrete \
possib! 12 grave

Wpe‘?oo', o 77‘7_/) [TypeB 3

7cm/ 3in

25cm /10in

Steel rebar and bar

rly

ights, unless labeled othen

=
@
o
D
2
>
=
=]
17
U]
%)
4]
o]
e
S
3
o
=
c
@
>
@
=
(=3
=3
o]
=
°
2
a
&
<<

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document,
by copyright. Wibit Sports GmbH owns e

text, photographs and drawings, Is prot

Installation_OW_detailed_3

227



Anchoring

Calculate chain length

Wibit recommends using a hot galvanized long link chain to connect the bungee to the anchors. Use
of chain as opposed to rope provides a long lasting anchoring method that securly holds the park in
position. Should the water depth however be > 10m / 32.8ft then revert to use rope as chain will
be too heavy!

> Wibit Bungees (2m / 6.6ft) are included with many Wibit products (see Wibit Specs)!
o
b
12 Wibit Bungee
=
Y
[S)
c
0
4+
=
o
>
[T}
.tCI:J Shakel
-
e — = Chain
Anchor

es in
please Us€
formulal

S
Note: If there aré wav
your \ocation

the pottom 0

=
5]
o
=
2
S
&£
=
=1
=
=
17
b
v
B
o]
ol
&
x
]
c
=
o
>
@
=
S
2
o]
S
=]
e
a
P
<

Installation_OW_detailed_3

Water depth + wave height - Bungee = Chain length 998




229

(-} 2 9 [ = 5
3 o L
= 3 8 & © c
= = & = =
2 g
(W] (]
c 2
<<
G ﬁ\
iy .
/ A
- e g
y
>
o
=
=]
£
(5]
(=]
S
(=]
P,
>
Gt
w
2 , 3
< k
g f _
Q
g
o
S 3
£
1]
=
(]

€7P3|(eI3p~ MO~ UOfE|(eISU|

Aejdia1em Jo UOIIN|OAS B3Y]

'uapp|q.oy A | ‘S10RJIX3 U| UBAR ‘Uo3anpoidal i
‘9S|MJBYI0 P3jaqe| SS3|un ‘sIyd 10/dxa
BN|SN|IX3 SUMO HQwn syiods 3gim y81Adod Aq
3uimelp pue sydesdojoyd xa)

114ed JUaLWNIOP S|y} JO JURRUOD Ay L

HQWD suods 11qIM @ pantasal siysu ||y




Anchoring

Positioning the anchors
There are several ways of bringing the anchors into the water. The best solution depends on the
location. You can ask your local fire brigade or port officials for assistance!

- hors
0
. olace the an¢ ‘

o approx. 12™ Wheel loader
=Y
—_
a
©
=
Y
o
c
ie)
+_J
=
o
>
(]
(o]
=
+—

AL Barge

Digger

Truck

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document, particularly

o
@
2
5
I
2
5
a
Ll
“w
oo
=
E
]
o
o
=
o
-
E
oo
=}
)
21
F =
[=%
o
x
o
2

Installation_OW_detailed_3

230



All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

Anchoring

Positioning the anchors
Once the anchors are in the water - in a depth of at least 1,2m / 3.9ft - they can be moved into the
exact position using a Wibit Lifting bag.

h \
exact specmca \onz (tm
—  weights —
anq‘\‘t(;ons for yo rcombtlga
% 0:, listed i he eje\;}r;v\ i
a lnstallution ma =
h i
: L
+—
o
=S
—
| .
C Carabiner
(@]
=]
=
o
>
a
(V)
o =
—
Valve

c
o
=]
=]
B
S
2
>

Wibit Lifting bag with carabiner

A reproduction, even in extracts, is stric

Installation_OW_detailed_3

231



Anchoring

Plastic buoy
The plastic buoy is attached with rope to the corresponding anchor and remains in the water. These
help to keep the Wibit Safety Buoys in a straight line.

plastic buoy
>
9
[=%
7]
] \
=N
2 -
Y
o =
= -
9
5 — T - Wibit Safety Buoy
§ e et T ewenagheie = —~— 2
QJ _—_—= —J— —_— e T ————— ——————— P o
() - : s e =
= = e L E———
'—__, ——r = —_— & T —— s
S| - -
- % .
Rope
te: only one shakel
No O tessaly
for connection
Anchor

Water depth = Rope length
or

Water depth + wave height = Rope length

n, even in extracts, is s

>
o5
ES
oo
ne
s
gD.
ng
£ o’
D E
'3:\
o
(*R -]
g
25
i
wQ
e
ng
£ c
»8
=2
<i-

Installation_OW_detailed_3

232




Anchoring checklist

v" Amount Needed

“means of bringing anchors to the water

Comments
wheel loader / barge / digger / truck

| oxygen tanks / compressor
Lifting bags*

for Lifting bags to position the anchors 7

positioning buoys*

styrofoam

plastic buoys*

rope (10mm / 0.4in)*

to anchor the Wibit Safety Buoys

chain (8mm / 0.3in)*

to anchor the products

chaincutter
o ' stainless steel shakel (10mm / 0.4pt)*
2 divers

to cut the chain - |
1 per concrete anchor + 1 for connection

' to set positioning anchors and remaining
anchors

*calculate how many / much you need and simply order from Wibit.

>
e
(e 18
=
()
+—
1)
=
Y
(@]
=
2
+—
—
o
>
()}
(<]
N e
-

NOTES:

A reproduction, even in extracts, is strictly forbidden.

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document, parti

text, photographs and drawings, is

by copyright. Wibit Sports GmbH owns exclusive
exploitation rights, unless labeled otherwise.
Installation_OW_detailed_3

233




All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

The content of this document, parti

text, photographs and drawings, is pi

Product set-up

Ensure you have all of the Wibit products and equipment needed at the location.

1. Unpack the products. Exact instructions as to which order to set-up the products can be found in
the Installation manual.

2. Inflate according to the Product manual.

ure is Electric pump

P

Note: the correct press
add'\t'\ona\\y (o ;

the valve of ea

>
o
a
—
()
+—
m
=
Y—
o
=
S
e
=
o
>
(8}
(<}
4=
+—

3. Connect the products using the connector straps and safety flaps in the water.

Connector strap

- Wibit Safety flap

Installation_OW_detailed_3

234



235

Shakel
Shakel

Product set-up

bungee of the specific product.

4. Remove the styrofoam buoy and rope marking the positioning anchors and replace them with the

€7P2||e1ap” MO uofe||elsu|

Aejn ‘JUBWNI0P SIY} JO JUBUOD By |
HQWD suods QM @ panJasal sysu ||y




Product set-up checklist

v" Amount Needed Comments

products at the beach

electricity and cable drum

small motor boat and driver / jet ski

(multiple plugs) min 3KW
for positioning of products - if possible

tool box, cutter knife, measuring tape,
lighter, tape

set-up helpers

unloaiding, unpacking, inflating, bringing the
products to the water, etc.

tarp

for inflation

NOTES:

>
i)
a
—
(U]
—
mn
S
Y
(@]
=
o
k=
=
(@]
>
(3]
(<]
=
+

All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH
The content of this document, particularly
A reproduction, even in extracts, Is strictly fdrbir]den.

text, photographs and drawings, i
Installation_OW_detailed_3

236



st 7 JLes

TO ENSURE YOUR SAFETY IN THE WIBIT
SPORTS PARK,PLEASE RESPECT THE
FOLLOWING RULES:

Av Only use during the official opening hours!

w Only use in the presence of a life guard!

>
L
el
e
()
4+
1)
=
Y
o
=
=
+
=
o
>
Q
Q
=
+—

QL' Do not use in darkness or when there is lightning!

Remove watches, jewelry, keys or other sharp objects before using
Wibit!

QL' Use of a lifejacket is recommended!
er No smoking, drinking or eating in the Wibit Sports Park!

Qv Do not use the Wibit Sports Park while under the influence of
alcohol, medication or drugs!

Qx/ Do not swim or dive underneath the Wibit products!

Av Always slide with your feet first and move out of the landing
area immediately!

W Do not jump from the Wibit Trampoline, Action Tower XXL etc.
onto other objects!

QL’ Use the products responsibly to ensure you don‘t injure yourself or
others!

THE OPERATOR CAN NOT BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR
ANY ACCIDENTS THAT OCCUR DUE TO UNPROPER USE
OF THE WIBIT PARK OR BY NOT FOLLOWING THE
SAFETY RULES ABOVE.

mat
All rights reserved © Wibit Sports GmbH

Confidential Informations

237




SAFETY RULES

To ensure your SAFETY in the Wibit Sports Park, PLEASE respect the following RULES:
e Only use during the official opening hours!

e Only use in the presence of a lifeguard!

¢ Do not use in darkness or when there is lightning!

¢ Do not jump from the Wibit Trampoline, Action Tower XXL etc. onto other objects<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>